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Merging company details ©

Full company name ]SONY SUPPLY CHATN SOLUTIONS (EUROPE} E V

[_
Registered number € [—é— ’_.3- ro_ IT |—4. ’? F I—S_— ,_ [_
I Please enter the registered office address

Butlding name/number IE 00

Street E)Ongenseweg

-

Post town [?}047 SH Tilburg

County/Region r

S I A I A A

Country |Tl‘he Netherlands

Legal form ﬁ’rlvate company with limited liabality, organized
and law ©

|;nd existing under the laws ¢f The Netherlands

Member state and

Frrade Register of the Chamber of Commerce
registry ©

IBe Ruijerkade 5, 1013 AA Amsterdam, The Netherlands

© Merging Company details
Piease use a CBO1 continuation page
to enter the details of additronal
MErging companies

© Registered number
Please give the registered number
as it appears In the member
state registry

© Legal entity and governing law
Please enter the legal form and law
which applies to the company

O Member state and registry
For non-UK companies, please enter
the name of the member state and
the name and address of the registry
where decuments are kept

Part 3 Details of meetings ©

If apphcable, please enter the date, time and place of every meeting summoned

under regulation 11 {power of court to summon meeting of members or creditors)
Details of meeting

oo R PR EEf

Time llam
Place The Heights, Weighbridge, Surrey, KT13 OXW

Details of meeting
o Naa N aan

Time

Place

Details of meeting
va S N A

Time

Place

Details of meeting

o N

Time

Place

O Details of meetings
For additional meetings held under
regulation 11, please use a CB{1
continuation page
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Part 4

Terms of merger and court orders

Terms of merger

You must either
- enclose a copy of the draft terms of merger,
or,
- give detalls (below) of a website on which the draft terms are available @

Website address

€ Draft terms of merger on a

website

In order to be able to give notice of

draft terms of merger on a website,

the followmng conditions must

be met

- the website 1s maintained by
or on behalf of the UK merging
company,

- The website identifies the UK
mergung company,

- no fee Is required to access the
draft terms of merger,

- the draft terms of merger
remam available on the website
throughout the penod beginning
one month before and ending on
the date of the first meeting of

members

Court orders

I apphicable, you must enclose a copy of any court order made where the court

has summoned a meeting of members or credifors
Part 5 Signature
Signature

[l am signing this form on behalf of the UK merging company

Slgna{ure Signature

X % %’—/ g X

This form may be signed by a director of the UK merging company on behalf of

the Board
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B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact informatien, but if
you do it will help Companies House If there 1s a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record

Contactname  Tonathan Yeo

Company name

Baker & McKenzie LLP

Address 100 New Bridge St

|
|
|
|

Posttewn T ondon

CountyfRegion

= E[E [ E R

| County

bx

Tekphare + 44 20 7919 1000

Checkhist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing,

Piease make sure you have remembered the
following

[] The company name and number of the UK merging
company match the information held on the
public Register

You have completed the details of each merging
company in Part 2

You have completed Part 3

You have completed Part 4 and {if applicable)
enclosed the relevant documents

You have signed the form in Part 5

0 0o 4

Please note that all information on this form will
appear on the public record

E Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return it to the appropnate address below

For companies registered in England and Wales
The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

For companies registered in Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbndge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 SFF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post}

For companies registered in Northern Ireland
The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 NR Belfast 1

Further information

For further information, please see the gurdance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enquines@companieshouse gov uk

This form 1s available in an
alternative format, Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

CHFP{25
08111 Version 50




IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE No, 8663 of 2014
CHANCERY DIVISION

COMPANIES COURT

MR REGISTRAR NICHOLAS BRIGGS

Tuesday 9 December 2014

IN THE MATTER OF SONY EUROPE LIMITED

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES (CROSS BORDER MERGERS) REGULATIONS
2007

ORDER

UPON THE APPLICATION by Part 8 Clam Form (the "Claim Form") of the above-named Sony
Europe Limied (the "Company") whose registered office s at The Heights, Brooklands,
Weybndge, Surrey, KT13 0WX

AND UPON HEARING Counsel for the Company

AND UPON READING the said Claim Form and the evidence

IT IS ORDERED that the Company do have permission to convene a meeting of its sole
shareholder, such meeting to be convened and held i accordance with the prowisions of the
arbicles of association of the Company save where otherwise agreed between the Company and its

sole shareholder subject always to the terms of the above-mentioned Regulations

AND THE COURT HEREBY ADJOURNS the Claim Form to a date to be fixed and directs that the
papers for the adjourned heanng be filed not later than 7 days before the date so fixed




No. 8663 of 2014

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE
CHANCERY DIVISION
COMPANIES COURT

IN THE MATTER OF
SONY EUROPE LIMITED

and
IN THE MATTER OF

THE COMPANIES (CROSS BORDER
MERGERS) REGULATIONS 2007

ORDER

Baker & McKenzie LLP
100 New Bridge Street
London EC4V 6JA

Solicitors to the Claimant
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THESE COMMON DRAFT TERMS OF MERGER are made by the boards of directors of

(1)

2

SONY SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS (EUROPE) B.V. a private company with [imited
hability incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, having 1ts corporate seat in Utrecht,
the Netherlands and registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce with
registered number 23034865 and having 1ts registered office at Dongenseweg 200, 5047 SH
Tilburg, the Netherlands ("SSCSE")

SONY EUROPE LIMITED a private mited company incorporated under the laws of
England and Wales, registered with the registrar of companies for England and Wales with
registered number 02422874 and having 1its registered office at ¢/o Legal Department, The
Heights, Brooklands, Weybridge, Surrey KT13 0XW ("SEU")

PURSUANT TO the provisions of the Dutch Regulations (as defined below), the provisions of the
UK Regulations (as defined below) and Article 5 of the Directive (as defined below)

1
11

INTERPRETATION
Defimtions

In these Common Draft Terms unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise
specified

"Assets" means all assets held by SSCSE as at the Effective Time,

"Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which clearing banks are
generally open for business in the Netherlands and the UK,

"Chamber of Commerce" means the Dutch Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce,

"Contracts" means all agreements and arrangements (whether or not having contractual
status or effect) to which SSCSE i1s a party as at the Effective Time,

"Court Order" means the order granted by the UK Court following 1ts scrutiny of the legality
of the completion of the Merger, as provided for by Article 11 of the Directive and Regulation
16 of the UK Regulations,

"Cross-Border Merger" means a merger of a national limited bability company with a
hmited hability company from another Member State, as provided for by the Directive,

"Directive” means Directive 2005/56/EC of the European Parhament and of the Council of
Ministers of 26 October 2005 on cross-border mergers of limited hiability companies,

"Directors’ Explanatory Report" means a report prepared by the directors of SEU intended
for the Shareholders and the employee representatives explaining and justifying the legal,
economic and social aspects of the Merger and explaining the implications of the Merger for
Shareholders, creditors and employees of the Merging Companies, as provided for by Article
2 313 and 2 314 of the Dutch Regulations and Regulation 8 of the UK Regulations,

"Dutch Court" means the Court of the Central Netherlands (Midden-Nederland),

"Dutch Pre-Merger Certificate” means the certificate to be granted by the Dutch Court
attesting that no creditors have opposed the Commeon Draft Terms, as provided for by Article
2 316 of the Dutch Regulations,



"Dutech Regulations" means the Dutch Civil Code, in particular Title 7, section 2, 3 and 3A
of Book 2 of the Dutch Cuvil Code,

"Effective Time" means 23-59 on 31 March 2015 or such other date and time as may be
agreed by the Merging Companies, subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the UK
Court,

"Employee Involvement" means the influence of the body or bodies representative of the
employees and/or the employees’ representatives on the decisions to be taken within SEU,

"Enghish Pre-Merger Certificate” means the certificate to be granted by the UK Court
attesting to the proper completion of the Pre-Merger Acts and Formalities, as provided for by
Regulation 6 of the UK Regulations,

"General Meeting of SSCSE" means the meeting to be held by the Shareholder of SSCSE 1n
order to resolve to merge in accordance with Article 2 330 of the Dutch Regulations,

"General Meeting of SEU" means the meeting to be held by the Shareholder of SEU i order
to approve these Common Draft Terms, as provided for by Article 9 of the Directive and
Regulation 13 of the UK Regulations,

"Independent Expert Report" means a report prepared by an independent expert, which
where obtained, shall evaluate the proposed Merger, as provided for by Article 2 328 and
2 333g of the Dutch Regulations and Regulation 9 of the UK Regulations,

"Liabilities” means all the habihities of SSCSE existing at the Effective Time,

"Merger" means the proposed Cross-Border Merger, by absorption of a wholly-owned
subsidiary, of SSCSE nto SEU, under the terms and conditions set forth in these Common
Draft Terms, by which the Assets and Liabihities of SSCSE shall pass to SEU and SSCSE will
be dissolved without going into hquidation subject to completion of the consultation
processes 1n the Netherlands,

“Merging Companies”" means SSCSE and SEU, and "Merging Company" shall be
construed accordingly as the context requires,

"Pre-Merger Acts and Formalities” means those requirements set out n Articles 6 to 9
inclusive of the Directive, and more particularly provided for 1n clause 7 of these Common
Draft Terms,

"Pre-Merger Certificates” means the Dutch Pre-Merger Certificate and the Enghsh Pre-
Merger Certificate,

"Resulting Company" means SEU following the Merger,
"SEU Netherlands Branch” means the branch of SEU established 1n the Netherlands,
"SEU Slovak Branch" means the branch of SEU established n the Slovak Republic,
"SSCSE Slovak Branch" means the branch of SSCSE established in the Slovak Republic,
"Shareholder(s)" means

(a) the sole shareholder of SSCSE at the Effective Time, being SEU, and

(b) the sole shareholder of SEU at the Effective Time, being SOH,
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and includes any person(s) entitled by transmission,

"SOH" means Sony Overseas Holding BV, a private company with limited hability
incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, having 1ts corporate seat in Badhoevedorp,
the Netherlands and registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce with
registered number 34103478 and having its registered office at Schipholweg 275, 1171 PK
Badhoevedorp, the Netherlands,

"Transferor Company" means SSCSE being the Merging Company which will cease to
exist as a resuit of the Merger,

"UK Court" means the High Court of England and Wales, and
"UK Regulations” means the Companies (Cross-Border Mergers) Regulations 2007

Interpretation Generally

In these Common Draft Terms, unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise
specified

{(a) any reference to any statute, statutory provision or to any order or regulation
shall be construed as a reference to that statute, provision, order or regulation
as extended, modified, amended, replaced or re-enacted from time to time
(whether before or after the date of these Common Draft Terms) and all
statutory nstruments, regulations and orders from time to time made
thereunder or deriving vahidity therefrom (whether before or after the date of
these Common Draft Terms),

(b) words denoting any gender mclude all genders and words denoting the
singular mclude the plural and vice versa,

(<) all references to recnals, sections, clauses, paragraphs, schedules and
annexures are to recttals n, sections, clauses and paragraphs of and schedules
and annexures to these Common Draft Terms,

(d) headings are for convenience only and shall not affect the interpretation of
these Common Draft Terms,

(e) words such as "hereunder”, "hereta", "hereof” and "herem" and other words
commencing with "here" shall unless the context clearly mdicates to the
contrary refer to the whole of these Common Draft Terms and not to any
particular section, clause or paragraph hereof,

H in construmg these Common Draft Terms general words mtroduced by the
word "other" shall not be given a restrictive meaning by reason of the fact
that they are preceded by words indicating a particular class of acts, matters
or things and genera! words shall not be given a restrictive meaning by reason
of the fact that they are followed by particular examples mntended to be
embraced by the general words and any reference to the word "include” or
"mcluding” 1s to be construed without limitation,

(8) any reference to "Common Draft Terms" or any other document or to any
specified provision of these Common Draft Terms or any other document 1s
to these Common Draft Terms, that document or that provision as mn force for
the time being and as amended from time to time 1n accordance with the
terms of these Common Draft Terms or that document,
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(h)
)

®

Schedules

"writing” or any similar expression wncludes transmission by fax or by email,

any reference to a document being 1n the "agreed form" means n relation to
that document the draft of that document which has been mitialled by each of
the Merging Companies or by their respective solicitors on their behalf by
way of 1dentification, and

if any action or duty to be taken or performed under any of the provisions of
these Common Draft Terms would fall to be taken or performed on a day
which is not a Business Day such action or duty shall be taken or performed
on the Business Day next following such day

The contents of the Schedules form an integral part of these Common Draft Terms and shall
have as full effect as 1f they were incorporated 1n the body of these Common Draft Terms and
the expressions "these Common Draft Terms" and "the Common Draft Terms™ as used n any
of the Schedules shall mean these Common Draft Terms and any reference to "these Common
Draft Terms" shall be deemed to include the Schedules

PRELIMINARY

SSCSE
()

(b)

(©)

(d)

SEU
(2

(®)

SSCSE 15 a private company with himited habihity incorporated under the
laws of the Netherlands on 17 June 1971 with registered number 23034865
having 1ts corporate seat in Utrecht, the Netherlands and with registered
office at Dongenseweg 200, 5047 SH Tilburg, the Netherlands The issued
share capital of SSCSE 15s EUR 7,763,854 divided into 17,101 shares of EUR
454 each

According to the shareholders’ register of SSCSE, as of the date of these
Common Draft Terms, the sole shareholder of SSCSE 1s SOH At the
Effective Time, the sole shareholder of SSCSE will be SEU

The directors of SSCSE are Gerard Dirk de Witt and Salvatore Gruseppe
Paparellr and the supervisory directors of SSCSE are Atsushi Kobayashi and
Senchi Kawasak

SSCSE shall participate in the Merger as the Transferor Company, as such
term 1s employed and translated in the relevant provisions of the Dutch
Regulations and the UK Regulations, which implement the provisions of the
Directive into Dutch and English law, respectively

SEU 1s a private limited company incorporated under the laws of England
and Wales on 14 September 1989 with registered number 02422874 and
having 1ts registered office at c/o Legal Department, The Heights,
Brooklands, Weybridge, Surrey, KT03 0XW The 1ssued share capital of
SEU 1s EUR 56,596,321 10 divided into 51,451,201 shares of EUR 1 10 each
all of which are fully paid

Accordmg to the register of shareholders of SEU, as of the date of these
Common Draft Terms, the sole shareholder of SEEf 1s SOH
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(c)

(@)

The members of the board of directors of SEU are Atsushi Kobayashi, Ricky
Londema, Gildas Pelliet and Masaru Tamagawa. There are no intentions to
change the composition of the board of directors of SEU in connection with
the Merger

SEU shall participate in the Merger as the transferee company, as such term
15 employed and translated in the relevant provisions of the UK Regulations
and the Dutch Regulations, which implement the provisions of the Directive
into Dutch and English law, respectively

Purpose of the Merger

(a)

(&

(c)

(d)

Q)

The purpose of the Merger 1s to simplify and rationalise the corporate
structure of the group of companies owned by SOH

At the Effective Time, SSCSE will merge into SEU in accordance with the
terms and conditions set forth in these Common Draft Terms, with SEU
being the Resulting Company

As a consequence of the Merger, the ownership, title and the possession of
the Assets and Liabilities will pass to SEU by operation of the Directive, the
Dutch Regulations and the UK Regulations at the Effective Time SEU will
become entitled to the Assets of SSCSE and shall assume, carry out, perform
and complete the Liabihties of SSCSE from the Effective Ttme All other
rights and obligations of SSCSE shall pass from SSCSE to SEU at the
Effective Time

Following the completion of the Merger, SSCSE will automatically cease to
exist

Each Merging Company shall do, sign or execute, or procure to be done,
signed or executed all such other acts, deeds, documents and things as may be
necessary or desirable 1a respect of the Merger and the transfer of the Assets
and Liabilities to SEU pursuant to these Common Draft Terms

Merger by Abscrption of a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary

()

(b)

As SEU will be the sole sharcholder of SSCSE at the Effective Time, the
Merger shall be carried out in the manner provided for n Article 2(2)(c) of
the Directive and pursuant to Article 2 333 paragraph 1 of the Dutch
Regulations (merger by absorption of a wholly-owned subsidiary) and
Regulation 2(3) of the UK Regulations (merger by absorption of a wholly-
owned subsidiary)

No consideration shall be paid for the transfer of the Assets and Liabilities

Allotment of Shares

No shares shall be allotted to SSCSE as consideration for the Merger as the Merger 1s a
merger by absorption of a wholly-owned subsidiary carried out pursuant to Article 2 333
paragraph 1 of the Dutch Regulations and Regulation 2(3) of the UK Regulations not
requiring the allotment of shares
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ACCOUNTING
Merging Companies' Accounting Details

(a) SEU shall file its adopted audited annual accounts for the years ending
31 March 2014, 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 and intenm management
accounts as at 31 October 2014 at its registered office and with the Chamber
of Commerce and shall use the adopted audited accounts for the year ending
31 March 2014 for the purpose of establishing the conditions for the Merger
The mamn data thereof are those set out at Schedule 1

(b) SSCSE shali file 1ts adopted audited annual accounts for the years ending
31 March 2014, 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 and mterim management
accounts as at 31 Qctober 2014 at its registered office and with the Chamber
of Commerce and shall use the adopted audited accounts for the year ending
31 March 2014 for the purpose of establishing the conditions for the Merger
The main data thereof are those set out at Schedule 2

Evaluation of the Assets and Liabilities

The evaluation of the Assets and Liabilities of SSCSE will be made as at their values in the
interim balance sheet of SSCSE drawn up as at 31 October 2014 and set out at Schedule 3 of
these Common Draft Terms

The Merger will have positive effect on the goodwill and the distributable reserves of the
Resulting Company It 1s intended that prior to the Effective Time SSCSE will make an
intertm distribution to its current shareholder SOH n the amount of approximately EUR
965,000 but such distribution will not impact any of the statements in these Common Draft

Terms

Date from which the transactions of Transferor Company are treated as those of Resulting
Company.

The transactions of SSCSE will be treated for accounting purposes as being those of SEU
from 1 April 2014 The financial data of SSCSE shall be accounted for in the annual accounts
of SEU as of | Apnit 2014

RESULTING COMPANY
Special Rights Conferred by SEU

SEU will be the sole shareholder of the Transferor Company at the Effective Time There are
no parties who, 1n & capacity other than shareholder, enjoy special rights or hold securities
other than shares representing the Transferor Company's capital Consequently no special
rights will be conferred by SEU on any such party as a result of the Merger No shares are to
be allotted as consideration for the Merger

Independent Expert Report

Pursuant to Article 2 333 paragraph 1 of the Dutch Regulations and Regulation 9(1)(a) of the
UK Regulations, there 1s no requirement to obtain an Independent Expert Report where the
Merger 1s a merger by absorption of a wholly-owned subsidiary
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No Advantages Granted to Experts or Directors of the Merging Companies

No special advantages, amounts or benefits will be granted, paid or given or are intended to
be granted, paid or given to any directors, supervisory board members, or managers of the
Merging Companies nor to any auditors or independent experts assisting with the Merger

Statutes

The Articles of Association of SEU are attached at Schedule 4 to these Common Draft Terms
The Articles of Association of SEU will not be amended 1n connection with the Merger

EMPLOYEES
Repercussions on Employment

(a) As at 1 September 2014, SEU has 2,977 employees and SSCSE has 24
employees

b) As a consequence of the Merger, the employees of SSCSE will become
employees of SEU by operation of law pursuant to the laws of each of the
Merging Companies

(c) The employees of SSCSE will continue to be employed n the same location
and on the same terms as they are currenily employed once the Merger has
completed The nights and obligations of SSCSE existing on the date of the
Merger, whether arising from a contract of employment or from an
employment relationship, will be transferred to SEU pursuant to the Merger
Such employment relationships, therefore, are not considered to be new
employment relationships, but merely a continuation of the existing
employment relationships with a different employer  The transfer 1s
automatic and, accordingly, no written or verbal consent or approval of the
employees 1s necessary Regarding penstons, where and 1f possible under
Dutch and UK legislatton, SEU will maintain the existing pension
arrangements of the SSCSE employees

(d) It 15 not anticipated that the Merger will have any negative mmpact on
employment mn the Merging Companies

Employee Involvement

SSCSE does not have a works council or other employee representative body The Merger
will be submitted for the prior advice of the employees during a staff meeting within the
meaning of article 35b of the Dutch Works Council Act ("DWCA") SEU has established a
works council The Merger will be submitted by SEU to the works council for 1ts prior advice
in accordance with article 25 of the DWCA The Merger 1s subject to completion of the
consultation processes m the Netherlands

Part 4 of the UK Regulations does not apply to the Merger
PRE-MERGER FROCEDURE
Filing

The directors of SSCSE shall file these Common Draft Terms with the Chamber of
Commerce at least one month before the General Meeting of SSCSE and the directors of SEU
shall file these Common Draft Terms with the registrar of companies for England and Wales
at least two months before the General Meeting of SEU
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Publication

(a)

(®)

SSCSE shall undertake to procure the announcement of the filing with the
Chamber of Commerce of the following particulars at least one month before
the General Meeting of SSCSE and such notice should include

®
(u)

{u1)

(v)

v

the type, name and corporate seat of the Merging Companies,

the legal form of the Merging Companites and the law by which they
are governed,

the registered numbers of the Mergimng Companies and the particulars
of the national registers i which the Merging Companies' files are
kept,

a statement that copies of the Common Draft Terms and the
Directors’ Explanatory Report are available for mspection at SEU’s
and SSCSE's registered office, and

confirmation from the Merging Companies of arrangements made for
the exercise of the rights of creditors and of any minority
shareholders of the Merging Companies and the addresses at which
complete information on those arrangements may be obtained free of
charge

SEU shall deliver to the registrar of companies for England and Wales the
mformation required to be disclosed pursuant to Regulation 12 of the UK
Regulations, for publication in the London Gazette of a notice of receipt by
the registrar of companies for England and Wales of the documents in
relation to the Merger, at least one month before the General Meeting of SEU
and such notice should include

M

(1)
(1i1)

(1v)

v

(v

(vit)

the date of receipt of the documents by the registrar of companies for
England and Wales,

the type, name and registered office of the Merging Companzes,

the legal form of the Merging Companies and the law by wiich they
are governed,

the registered number of the Merging Companies and the particulars
of the national register in which the Merging Companies’ files are
kept and their registration numbers n those registers,

a statement that information relating to SEU is kept 1n the register of
companies,

a statement that regulation 10 of the UK Regulations requires copies
of the Common Draft Terms and the Directors’ Explanatory Report
to be kept available for inspection, and

the date, time and place of every meeting summoned under
regulation 11 of the UK Regulations
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Inspection

The Common Draft Terms and Directors’ Explanatory Report of each Merging Company
shall be held at their respective registered offices for mspection by the Shareholders and
employees of each Merging Company for a period of at least one month before the General
Meeting of SSCSE and the General Meeting of SEU until the date of the Merger The
Common Draft Terms and Directors’ Explanatory Report must be held for a further six
months following the Merger at the registered address of the Resulting Company

Directors' Explanatory Report

(2) The directors of SEU shall draw up a Directors’ Explanatory Report in
respect of each Merging Company, which shall be made available to the
Shareholders not less than one month before the date of the General Meeting
of SEU and not less than one month before the date of the General Meeting
of SSCSE

(b) The Directors' Explanatory Report shall set out the following mformation

(1) the expected implications of the Merger for Sharcholders, creditors
and employees of the Merging Companies,

(1) the legal, social and economic grounds for the Merger and the
Common Draft Terms, and

() any matenal interests of the directors and the effect on those interests
of the Merger 1n so far as the effect i1s different from the effect on the
like terests of other persons

(c) Where the directors of either Merging Company receives an opinion from the
representatives of their employees, that opimon shall be appended to the
Phrectors' Explanatory Report

Approval by the Shareholders

(a) A General Meeting of SEU shall be held in order to consider the Directors'
Explanatory Report and to decide on the approval of the Common Draft
Terms, the draft balance sheets and other relevant documentation regarding
the Merger A General Meeting of SSCSE shall be held to approve the
Merger

(b) The General Meeting of SEU and the General Meeting of SSCSE may
resolve to reserve the rnight to make the implementation of the Merger
condrtional on

(1) any other regulatory approval, or

(1) such other conditions as the Shareholder(s) of either Merging
Company consider(s) appropriate 1n the circumstances

Pre-Merger Certificate

Upon comphance with the Pre-Merger Acts and Formahties, SEU shall apply to the UK
Court, for an order conclusively attesting to the proper completion of the Pre-Merger Acts and
Formalities to which SEU was subject SSCSE shall apply to the Dutch Court to 1ssue the Pre-
Merger Certificate confirming that no creditors have opposed these Common Draft Terms
According to Article 2 3331 paragraph 3 of the Dutch Regulations a Dutch notary will certify
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that 1t appears to mm that the procedural provisions were observed (as required by section 2, 3
and 3A of Title 7 of Book 2 of the Duich Civil Code and the articles of SSCSE) in relation to
the participation of SSCSE in the Merger and that the provisions of the above mentioned
sections of the Dutch Regulations were complied with

OPERATION OF THE MERGER
Court Scrutiny of the Merger
(a) Each Merging Company shall

(1) submut to the UK Court the Pre-Merger Certificates as well as the
certificate of the Dutch notary within six months of such Certificates
being 1ssued, such Pre-Merger Certtficate to be accompanied by the
Common Draft Terms as approved by the General Meeting of SEU
and executed by the respective board of directors of each Merging
Company,

(i) petitton the UK Court to scrutimse the legality of the Merger as
regards that part of the procedure which concerns the completion of
the Merger, and

(1) seek to ensure that the Merging Companies have approved the
Common Draft Terms in the same terms

(b) If the UK Court satisfies itself that the Merger can legally be completed, the
Merging Companies shall apply to the UK Court to 1ssue a Court Order
approving the completion of the Merger

Entry mto Effect of the Merger
At the Effective Time

(a) the shares held by SEU in the capital of SSCSE shall be cancelied by
operation of law,

(b) the Assets and Liabiltties shall pass to SEU by operation of law,

(c) SEU shall allocate all Assets and Liabilities to the SEU Netherlands Branch
except for any of the Assets and Liabilities currently held by SSCSE Slovak
Branch which shall be allocated to SEU Slovak Branch, and

) SSCSE shall automatically cease to exist
Repgistration

Within 7 days of the granting of the Court Order, the directors of SEU shall deliver to the
registrar of companies for England and Wales a copy of the Court Crder confirming the
Merger together with the particulars of the register in which SSCSE's company file 1s kept

MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS
Survival of Obhigations

The provisions of these Common Draft Terms which shall not have been performed at the
Effective Time shall, to the extent possible and to the extent that this does not contravene the
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legal rules governing the Merger, remain 1n full force and effect notwithstanding the Effective
Time

Binding on Successors

These Common Draft Terms shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of the respective
Merging Companies hereto and their respective personal representatives, successors and
permitted assigns

Variation

No variation of these Common Draft Terms shall be vahd unless 1t 1s 1n wniting and signed by
or on behalf of each of the Merging Companies hereto, or unless 1t 1s required pursuant to an
order of the Dutch Court or the UK Court or other Dutch or UK authorities

Announcement

No announcement or disclosure regarding all or any part of the transactions contemplated by
these Common Draft Terms shall be made by any of the Merging Companies hereto without
the prior written approval of the other Merging Company save for any such announcement as
1s required to be made under any apphcable law 1t which case the announcement shall be
made only after consultation with the other Merging Company and after the other Merging
Company has, where practicable, been given the opportunity to approve such announcement

For the avoidance of doubt, the above provisions shall not apply in so far as the disclosure or
announcement in relation to the Common Draft Terms 1s required by the Dutch Regulations
or the UK Regulations for the purpose of perfecting and carrying out the Merger

Whole Commeon Draft Terms

These Common Draft Terms contamn the whole agreement between the Merging Companies
hereto relating to the transactions provided for in these Common Draft Terms and supersede
all previous agreements (if any) between such Merging Compames 1n respect of such matters
and each of the Merging Companies to these Common Draft Terms acknowledges that n
agreemg to enter mto these Common Draft Terms 1t has not relied on any representations or
warranties except for those contained 1n these Common Draft Terms

Severability

Each of the provisions of these Common Draft Terms are separate and severable and
enforceable accordingly and 1f at any time any provision 1s adjudged by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable the validity, legality and enforceability of
the remaining provisions hereof and of that provision mn any other jurisdiction shall not 1n any
way be affected or impaired thereby

Costs

Each Merging Company hereto shall bear any costs, fees or expenses incurred by 1t 1n
connection with negotiating, preparing and entering into these Common Draft Terms

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

These Common Draft Terms shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of England and Wales save to the extent that the application of the laws of England and Wales
would be contrary to the mandatory rules of the laws of the Netherlands, in which case and to
that extent, only the laws of the Netherlands shall apply Each of the Merging Companies
hereto hereby agrees that the courts of England and Wales shall have jurisdiction to hear and
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determine any suit, action or proceedings that may arise out of or in connection with these
Common Draft Terms and for such purposes irevocably submits to the junsdiction of such
courts
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The directors of the Merging Companies have shown their acceptance to the terms of these Common
Draft Terms by executing 1t below

Gerard Dirk de Wiitt for and
on behalf of SONY SUPPLY
CHAIN SOLUTIONS
(EUROPE) B.V.

Salvatore Giuseppe Paparell:

for and on behalf of SONY
SUPPLY CHAIN
SOLUTIONS (EUROPFE) B.V.

Atsushi Kobayashi for and

on behalf of SONY SUPPLY
CHAIN SOLUTIONS
(EUROPE) B.V.

Senchi Kawasaki for and

on behalf of SONY SUPPLY
CHAIN SOLUTIONS
(EUROPE) B.V,

S S S S

Atsusin Kobayashi for and on
behalf of SONY EUROPE
LIMITED

Ricky Londema for and on
behalf of SONY EUROPE
LIMITED

Gildas Pelliet for and on
behalf of SONY EUROPE
LIMITED

Masaru Tamagawa for and on
behalf of SONY EUROPE
LIMITED

S S St
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SCHEDULE 1

Annual audited accounts of SEU for the years ending 31 March 2014, 31 March 2013 and 31
March 2012
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Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Directors’ Report

The duectors present thewr annual report and the audited financial statements of the company for the year ended 31

Maich 2014

Principal activities

Sony Europe Limited (“SEU”} 1s the distnibutor in Europe of Sony branded products, which are prmcipally electronic
goods for the domestic, leisure. business and professional markets The company distnibutes Sony branded TV, video,
cameras, audio, computer systems and media penipheral products, including semuconductor products for commercial
and professional use, throughout Europe The company also distrmbutes broadcast camera and digital cinema
equipment, for the domestic and export markets Durning the year, the comipany also provided repair services at its
facility in Alsace, France, which was disposed of on 31* March 2014 Under the terms of the agreement, 49% of the
busmess transferred in September 2013 and the remaining 51% transferred 1 March 2014, for a conssderation of €1
As a result, SEU incurred iotal restructuring costs of €51 5m relating to the write off of net assets and the cost of
termination benefits payable to former employees The company will also discontinue sales of PC (Vaio) products m

20135, following a global decision by Sony Corporation

Pirincipal risks and uncei tainties
A descniption of the principal 11sks and uncertainties facing the company 1s mncluded 12 the Strategic Report on pages
5and 6

Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2013 €ml)

Future developments

Despite difficult trading condittons experienced during the first half of the year we have seen a consistent
nnprovement in the second half SEU's retail environment has seen positive signs with the strengthemung of the Euro
agamst both the US dollar and Japanese Yen There has also been an unprovement m market share, although the
ongomg declne m the consumer electronics masket continnes, largely due to constrants on domestic discretionary
spending

The economic cutlook remains challenging, but the directors believe SEU 1s well placed to 1apidly take advantage of
growth opportmuties as market cond:tions 1mprove, and anticipate that the company's profitability will continue to
recover 1n the future

The unique breadth of the range of mnovative products and content available wathin the Sony brand, ncluding those
offered by SEU's sister companies (mcleding mobile, games, film and musie), coupled with an mcreasingly
networked and connected customer offering, will be leveraged by SEU to drave fiture sales giowth

SEU wnll also continue to differentiate itself from 1ts competitors through highly effective advertising and promotion
of the wmque featwres of the Sony brand and product range as well as its high quality pre and post sales service

support
Directors’ confirmation of the company as a going concern

The company made a sigmficant loss 1o the financial year However, the directors feel that the Jong-term financial
posinon of SEU 15 satisfactory, as a letter of comfort has been provided by Sony Corporation. providing supporl to
SEU m the settlement of 1ts habiliies The period of tlus support has been confirmed to run until 31 July 2015, at

wiich time the positzon will be re-assessed

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financ:al statements are given below

K Takeda (resigned 1 October 2013)

S Foucher (resigned 17 March 2014)

G Pelliet

R Londema

M Tamagawa

A Kobayash: (appointed 30 October 2013)




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ indemnities

Durmg the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, the company has mamtamed hability msurance
for 1ts duzectors and officers through a third paity insurer In additton, as set out 1n the company’s Articles of
Association, the company also provides mdemmity for its directors, secretary and officers thhough a quahifymg thad

party mdemmty provision as defined m the Companies Act 2006

Existence of Branches

SEU has branches m the following EU countries Austria, Belgium, Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Repubhic, Denmark,
Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Ireland, Italy, Latvia. Netherlands, Norway, Poland. Portugal, Romama,
Slovakia, Sloverua, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and UK

Research and development

The company undertakes 1esearch m the semiconductor and professional broadeast sedustries and mvestigates new
mnovations and techniques for television product impiovement and functionality mcrease i preparation for future
designs Research and development expenditure totalled €9 3mullion (2013 €16 I millien), of wiuch €4 4m was

recharged to other Sony global group companites (2013 €13 2 million)

Employees

The company gives full and fan consideration to apphcations for employment made by disabled persons, having
regard to therr particular aptitudes and abihities Where people became disabled durng the course of thewr
employment, every effort 13 made to retamn theu services and to provide retrammng 1f necessary All employees are
eligible for conmsideration for approprnate traming, career development and promotronal opportonities Disabled

persons are not tieated differently in thie respect

Employee Involvement

The values of our company are built on fhe foundation of the mnovation, comtmiment and loyalty of our workforce
Therefore as a Company, we are focussed on engaging our people behind the visions and values, creating a high
performance culture that delivers best service to customers and rewardmng success

The company’s policy is to consult with employees and then representatives and to provide them with information
via the internal website and email regardimg business performance and other matters affecting them This policy 15
cariied out throngh hne management channels and through regular meetings with representatives of employees
(through local Woikers Counctl or Representative Councils, as well as our pan-Eurcpean EICC which meets
monthly) Quarteily commumications are provided by sentor management on the busmess performance, either n
writing or all-employee webcasts In addstion, many funchions hold annual conference meetings o share management
strategy and share best practice (e g Sales & Marketing annual conference), or regulal onhne virtual meetings to
provide monthly management updates The company also encourages the mvolvement of employees in the
performance of Sony, by offering voluntary participation 1n a European employee share option scheme, which offers
subsidised shares 1 Sony Corporation fo employees

Where the company anmounces plans for a proposed restructure with any potential job Iosscs, the correct consultation
procedure 1s carried out with affected employees

The Company participates m the annual Sony Corporation Global Employee Survey (GES), this 15 held
August/September each year, with results publhished 1 October

The 1emuneration packages to attract and retam the highest calibie workforce ate tied to a measured progiam of
performance review, company objectives, and mdividual excellence This 15 combined further with a package of

flexible benefits that can be tailored to suit individual employees’ preferences
Statement of directors® responsibilities

The directors are 1esponsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law 1equires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements n accordance with United Kimgdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Umted Kmgdom Accounting Standards and applhicable law). Under company Jaw the directors must not




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Directors’ Report (continued)

Statement of directors’® responsibilities (continued)
appiove the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they grve a true and fan view of the state of affans of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are requuired to
s  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any material departures
disclosed and explamned i the financial statements, and

» piepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 mnappropmate to presume that the
company will contmue n busmess

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounfing records that are sufficient to show and explain the

company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accmacy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financral statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of

fraud and other irregularities

Independent auditors

The suditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have mdicated therr willingness to contunue 1n office and a resolution
concerming then reappointment will be proposed at the annual general meeting

Disclosure of information to audifors

Each of the persons who are a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

& Sp far as the director 15 aware there 15 no 1elevant audit information of which the company’s auchtors are
unaware, and

e The director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director it order to make himself‘herseif
aware of any 1elevant audit mformation and to establish that the company’s auditors a1e awaie of that mformation

Tius confimation s given and should be mterpreted in accordance with the provisions of 418 of the Compames Act 2006

Approved by the Board of Duectois and signed by order of the Board

K. Bromley
Company Secretary
18 July 2014




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Strategic Report

Strategy

SEU 1s aligned with the strategic direction of the global Sony Corporation, 1n striving to become the leading network
entertainment and business solutions company

A number of key strategic objectives are 1 place

e Amaze consumers, business and professional customers with Sony's outstanding range of innovative
products and services, umhing hardware, content and network services,

*  Adveitise and promote these products and services vsing the globally consistent “BE MOVED*
communication message To emphastse our significant strengths in providing consumers with emotional
experences through owt product, content and services 1n a way that our competitors cannot,

s Investm best practice workforce support and training to maxumise the ahgnment of employee activities
towards the business objectives;

On-gomg cost containment and rationalisation of operations to support profit margns, and
Continue commitment to envirenmental and health and safety best practice

Results

The company's turnover for the financial year was €4.492 2 milhon (2013 €4,54]1 2 million) The company's loss for
the financial year was €329 9 milhon (2013 €318 3 muillion), which wall be deducted from reserves

Review of the business

This year’s performance has been delivered by focus on incieased 1n-store and on-line presence together with
effective marketing deployment for a new (enhanced) model line-up, and 1mprovements in product supply. Thus has
enabled us to gam market share mn several key sectors, and maintamn tumover at 99% of prior year, despite difficult

market conditions

Improvements 1 gross margin. and reductions n both variable and fixed costs, have resulied m an oveall
improvement of €53 3m m Losses on Ordinary Activities before Interest & Tax Gross margm unprovement includes
€40 6m of other operating mcome from msurance claims relating to business interruptton msurance for the Thailand
{loods of 2011 The cost reductions are primartly as a result of recent restructuring activities, designed to improve
efficiency and create a sohd foundation for the future

As a result of these activities, SEU incurred total restructuring costs this year of €132 5m (see note 18) We continued
implementing the “Shapmg Ow Future,” restructurmg programme which was commenced m 2013, which has
resulted 1t a 10% reduction mn fixed costs In addition, the loss-makimng repair service facility m Alsace, France has
been sold to Cordon Electronics on 31st March 2014, resulting 1n a €51 5im restructuring charge Further restructuring
1s planned during the first half of next year, following the decision by Sony Carporation to sell the PC (VAIO)
business Sales of VAIO equipment by SEU will cease during the first half of 2015, The VAIO restructuring activity
15 expected to cast SEU €75milhon, of which €54mullion has been expensed m 2014

Consumer categories "

SEU sales inc1eased in LCD telewision and personal audio areas, dniven by 1mprot ed market share, and achieved
despite difficult market conditions due to consumer spending constraints At the same time, we have increased our
tnarket share for compact digital camera and mamiamed share for camcoider although sales of both have decreased
as consumers move focus away from these products and toward smart phones with cameras For peisonal computer
(PC) products, we masmtained maiket share, although expeniencing a declme n volume terms 11 line with the market

SEU will discontinue the PC business in 2015

Piofessional categoiies

Semiconductor & Electromc Solutions sales have mereased. driven by strong demand from the automotive business,
particularly from Chuna In addition there were strong energy sales, dmven by increasmg demand from the thard party
mobile sector Overall Professional Services sales declned, driven by a decline 1n the AV Media & Solutions

calegory




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Strategic Report (continued)

Key performance mndicators (KPls)
The following KPIs are relevant in reviewing the performance of the company during the year ended 31 March 2014.

KFPI Definitien and method of calculation 2014 2013

Growth 11 sales (%) Year on year sales growth expressed as a percentage (11%) {22 6%)
The ratio of operating loss on ordmnary activaties before

Operating margin (%) interest to sales expressed as a percentage (6 1%) (7 3%)

Liquidity Total current assets less stock expressed as a ratio of total

048 038

current hiabiliies

Days Sales Outstanding The Accounis Recervable balance compared to credit sales 29 56
over the penod, expressed n days

Inventory Days Supply The Inventory balance compared to the cost of sales over the 24 37
period, expressed m days

Supperting analysis

¢ For supporting detail regarding the movement 1 sales and operating margi, please refer to the Review of

the Business section above

s The low liqmdity positton for SEU 1s mutigated through a letter of comfort as explained in the Directors’
confirmatien of the company as a gomg concermn Liquidity 1s sumnproved as a result of improvements i Days
Sales Outstanding and Inventory Turnover

¢ Improvements 1 Days Sales Outstanding (DSO) and Inventory Days Supply are the 1esnit of improvements
m aperational efficiency 1n each of these areas, m order to mprove cashflow and hiquichty DSQ has also
been mmproved by the accounts receivable assignment programime operated n comyunction with Sony
Corpomaticn (Sony Accounts Receivable Fund, ‘SARF’)

Pincipal risks and uncertamties

The wanagement of the busmess and the execufion of the company’s strategy ate subject te a number of risks

Competition risk

The electronics market 1s subject to the continmng threats of new entrants and price eioston, as well as the ever
mereasing sophistication of consumers SEU works to mitigate this nsk thiough differentiating itself usmg
mformative advertising and promotion material to leveiage the power of the Sony brand, lughlighting the 1nnovative
netwoiked features of Sony products and services, differentiating its technologies and also through providing high
quality pre and post sales service support  SEU also undertakes regular market research and detarled analysis of

market activity

Employee rsk

The attraction, retention and development of staff forms a key pillar 11 managing risks assocrated with staff turnover,
undei-performance, capability and open vacancies SEU has a number of schemes designed to attract and retamn key
members of staff, as discussed within the Directors’ Report under Employees Involvement

Regulatory rnsk

SEU is subject to a wide range of regulations related to social responsibibity, such as environmental, occupational
health and safety, and certam human nghts regulations that can increase the costs of operations, lunit 1ts activities or

affect 1ts reputation

Price rish

Price usk 18 managed within a framework of contmuous momtonng of market conditrons to enable a rapid response to
adverse developments Costs are regularly reviewed and efficiency programmes undertaken to support praduct

margins




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Strategic Report (continued)

Liquadity risk

The company’s current Mquidity posiion has been supported through a letter of comfort provided by Sony
Corporation, providing support to SEU n the settlement of its hebilites The pentod of this support has been
confirmed to run vntil 31 July 2015, at which tiume the position wall be re-assessed

Credit 115k

The company s trade receivables are largely covered by credit msurance poheies taken out through third party
msurance providers  Wheie umnsured risk 1s taken 1t 15 subject to a rigorous authorisation process Credit hanits are

regularly reviewed

Credit nisk relating to cash and deposits with financial institutions 15 managed through Sony Global Treasury Services
plc

Credut risk has been greatly reduced duning the year by the significant reduction n Days Sales Outstanding (see table
above), and an 1mprovement i customer account agenig

Business contimuty

There is a nisk of disruption 10 business actrvities from external physical events such as natural disasteis, a major
epidenuc or loss or theft of sensiive mformation SEU has implemented and fully communicated a busmess
contimnty planning framework to enable rapid recovery were such an event to occur Instructions outhmng the steps
that should be followed immediately after a major mcident have been circulated to employees, and information

channels put mn place

SEU has also established a pandemic planning and response team, and has prepared contingency plans for business
recovery in the specific event of a major pandemic

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board

K Bromley
Company Sec
18 July 2014

ary




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below

¢ giveatrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its loss for the year

then ended;
¢ have been propetly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

This opinion 15 to be read in the context of what we say 1 the remainder of this 1eport.

What we have audited
The financial statements, which are prepared by Sony Ewope Limited, comprise

balance sheet as at 31 March 2014,
profit and loss account and statement of total recogmised gains and losses for the year then ended,
the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation 15 applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example in respect of sigmficant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and

considered future events,

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK &
Irelandy”) An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient o give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are fiee from material musstatement, whether

caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

e whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently

applied and adequately disclosed,
o the reasonableness of significant accounting estunates made by the directors, and

» the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information w the Annual Report and Financial Statements
(the “Annual Report™) to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any
mnformation that 15 apparently materially mcorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired
by us in the cousse of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenial misstatements or

inconsistencies we consider the tmphcations for our report

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2014
Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, 1 our opigion

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received

from branches not visited by us, or
e the financial statements are not m agreement with the accounting records and returns,

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibihty

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Compamnes Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certamn disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report arising from this responstbility.

Responsibilities for the financial staterments and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully m the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on pages 2 and 3, the duectors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fawr view

Our responsibility is to audut and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical

Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, n giving these
opinions, accept or assume responstbility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent m writing.

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Uxbridge

18 J\JL/ Wiy




Sony Europe Limited
Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 March 2014

Turnover
QOther operating income

Change 1n stocks of finished goods and work in progress
Raw matenals and consumables

Other external charges

Staff costs

Depreciation and other amounts

writter: off tangible and intangible fixed assets

Other operating charges

Loss on ordinary activities before interest and
taxation

Interest recervable and similar mcome
Interest payable and simular charges

Other finance incoine

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

TFaxation on loss on ordinary activities

Loss for the financial year

2914 2014
Continuing Discontinued 2014 2013
operations operations Total Total
Notes €m €m €m €m
2 3,641.7 8505 4,492 2 4,5412
673 138 811 247
3,709 0 8643 4,573 3 4,565 9
4572 (20.3) 249 (89 1)
357 2mn 330 324
(3176 4) (709 1) (3,885 5) (3,780 2)
3 (308 9) (108 4) (417 3) 4319)
(24 0) “4n (28 1) 293)
) 476 ) {104 ) {580 5) {601 3)
(195 4) 84 8) {280 2) (333 %)
4 02 417
35 (27 1) (193)
6 2.2 14
7 (304 9) (G467
8 (250) 284
18 (3299 (3183

Discontinued operations relate to the Vaio (PC) business, which will be discontinued 1n July 2014, and the Alsace
service reparr business, which has been disposed of durtag the year

There 1s no material difference between the loss on ordmary activities before taxation and loss for the financial year

stated above, and therr lustonical cost equivalents




Sony Europe Limited
Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Year ended 31 March 2014

Loss for the financial year
Actuanal loss on pension scheme
Currency translation gams on foreign currency net investments

Total recogmised gains and losses for- the year

Notes

21

i8

2014 2013
€m €m
(329 9) (3183)
(16 0) (1009)
09 -
(345 0) (419 2)

10




Sony Europe Limited
Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2014

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and 1 hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net curient liabihties

Total assets less curtent Habilifies

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provision for liabilities

Net habilities excluding pension liability
Penston liability

Net habihties mcludmg pension Hability
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premum account

Profit and loss account

Total sharcholders® deficit

Notes

10

12
13

14

15

16

21

17
18

i8

2014 2613
€m €m
88 112
1001 106 4
206 207
1295 1383
2730 251.6
6857 7335
498 327
1,008 5 10178
(1,533 7 {2,029 5)
(525 2} {1,0117)
(395N {873 4)
(821 6) (4 0)
(1619) {151 5)
(1,379 2) (1,028 9)
{76 2) (81 8)
(1,455 4) (1,110 7}
566 566
1,5157 1,5157
(3,0277) (2.683 0)
(1,455 4) (1,110 D

‘The financial statements on pages 9 to 34 of Sony Europe Limited, registered number 02422874, were approved by

the Board of Directors on 18 July 2014
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

(7 S

A Kobayashu
Director

11




Sony Europe Limited
WNotes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2014

-

Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

These financiat statements have been prepared on the gomg concern bass, under the historical cost convention
and m accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and apphicable accounting standards i the United Kingdom.
The principal accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently throughout the year and

preceding year

Consolidation

The financial statements contain information about SEUJ as an indrwidual company and do not contam
consolidated financial mformation as the parent of a group The Company 15 exempt under section 401 of the
Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated finapcial statements as it and 1ts subsidiary
undertakings are ncluded by full consohdation i the consolidated financial statements of its parent, Sony
Corporation The consolidated financial statements of Sony Corporation are publicly available (see note 23)

Going concern

The company made a sigmificant loss duning the year ended 31 March 2014 However the dwectoys beheve
that the long term financial position of SEU 15 satisfactory, as a letter of comfort has been provided by Sony
Corporation, providing support to Sony Europe Limited m the settlement of its habilities The letter of comfert
currently extends to Fuly 2015. at which time 1t will be re-assessed

Turnover

Turnover for the year tepresents the imvorced value of goods sold and services supplied to third party and
ntercompany customers, exclusive of value added tax and net of trade discounts, sales incentives and
anticipated returns  Turnover from product sales is recogmised upon dehvery, which is considered to have
occuired when the customer has taken title to the product and the nsk and rewards of ownership have been
substantively transferred Tumover from service contracts 1s recognised when the service has been provided
Turnover on long term fixed price conhacts 18 recogiused on a percentage of completion basis Revenue is
deferred when it has been immvoiced but the goods/services have not yet been delrvered This deferral 15
included within creditors balances Revenue s accrued when 1t 15 both supported by a contractual agreement
and has been earned Accrued revenue 15 ncluded within debfors balances

Other opes ating mcome

Included 1n other operating 1ncome are 1nSUrance receipts, commissions recerved for internet services and for
extended warranties digita] cinema virtual punt fees recerved, 1ebates recewved for the sale of energy efficient
products and mtercompany comnussions recetved on the generaton of sales of semtconductors and devices to
manufacturing customers Income from services provided 1s recognised in hine with the tuning of the provision
of the service Income from commuissions 15 recognssed in relation to the sales generated for the peniod

Business combinations and goodwill

Goodwll ansmg on the acquisition of businesses, representmg any excess of the fawr value of the consideration
given over the fair value of the 1dentifiable assets and habihties acquired, 1s capitalised and written off on a
straight hine basis over its estimated useful economic life In the year of acquisition a full year amortisation 1s
charged to the profit and loss account Goodwill is reviewed for impawrment at the end of the first full
financial year after acqusition Subsequently, goodwill 1s reviewed for rmpairment indicators by management
on an anmual basis dunng the fourth financial quarter, and between annual fests whenever an impairment
mdicator 15 noted Provision 15 made for any impaument and the expense is recognised thiough the profit and
loss Goodwill 1s amortised over 10 years, which represent the periods over which the directors believe that

the company will benefit fiom the use of the asset

Where the company has acquired the nght to use the assets and employees through a fease agreement, the on-
gomg lease payments are recorded as operating lease commtments

12




Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

1.

Accounting policies (contiued)

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are stated at historic purchase cost including mcidental expenses, less accumulated
depreciation Cost mecludes the oniginal purchase price of the asset and the costs atirbutable to bringing the
asset to 1ts working condition for 1ts intended use, Depreciation 18 charged on tangible assets, other than land,
over the periods set out below, calculated on a straight line basis on cost to write them off over their estunated
useful economuic Itves less residual value The cost of mmor capital expenditure (individual items under £500

excluding laptops) 18 written off as it is mcurred.

Freehold land and buildings 30— 50 years

Leasehold land and buildings Depreciated over the Iife of the lease
Plant and machinery 3 —10 years

Fixtures, fittings tools and equipment 3~ 10 years

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakuigs are shown at historic cost, less proviston for impawrment QOther
investments are shown at lustoric cost adjusted for the impact of any profit or loss arsing from the
performance of the wmvestment for the year, less provision for umpairment. Semor management review

mvestments for unpanment mndicators ammually

Leased assefs

Operating lease ventals are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of each lease on a straight
line basis

Stock, work int progress and long term contracts

Stock 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. and 1s valued using a moving weighted average
Cost includes all attributable expenses of unportation and delivery to the company's premises Work
progress manufactured by the company includes labour and appropnate overhead costs Slow movmg,
obsolete and defective stocks are devalued and provision 15 made using set rules based on future sales forecast
mformation and management judgement

Long term contract balances are stated at cost less amounts taken o cost of sales, provisions for foreseeable
losses and progress payments recerved on account Turnover 1s assessed 1n a marner appiopriate to the stage
of completion of the long teim contracts and attributable profit 1s taken at that time,

Research and development

Expendsture on research and development, to the extent 1t 18 not fully recharged to other Sony global group
companes, 15 charged to the profit and loss account in the year m winch 1t 15 incurred

13




Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax

Full provision for deferred taxation 1s made on all tumng differences Deferred taxation 18 recognised n
respect of all timmg differences that have ongnated but not reversed at the balance sheet date, where
transactions ot events that result i an obligation to pay more tax 1 the futuie, or a right to pay less tax in the
future, have ogcurred at the balance sheet date

Defened tax asset 15 recogmsed only when, on the basts of all available evidence, 1t can be regarded as more
Likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlymng

tmung differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rate that 1s expected to apply i the pertods m which the tirmng
differences ate expected to 1everse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and habiites recognised have not been discounted

Foreign cm rencies

Foreign currency transactions are transtated mto the local currencies at the rates of exchange prevaihng at the
transaction dates Monetary assets and habilities denominated m foreign currencies are converted to Euros at
the relevant rates at the balance sheet date, with resulting gans and losses bewng charged to the profit and Joss
account

Profits and losses of SEU divisions who keep their bocks of accounts denomnated 1 local curtencies other
than Euro are translated fiom the local cumency mto Euro at the average rates prevailling at month end
throughout the year Assets and habilities are translated mto Euro at the rates miing at the year end Due to the
local currency of some divisions and overseas branches of the company being the currencies other than Euro,
the closing rate method has been used to translate the results of these divisions Under this method, resulting

exchange differences are dealt with i reserves

Foreign currency hedging 1s carned out by Sony Global Treasury Services ple on behalf of SEU  Natural
hedging 15 applied which matches off all currency assets agamst the habihities where the net (posttive or
negatrve) value 1s smaller than €0 250 mllion equivalent Any over or under exposures will be matched with
loans or deposits with Sony Global Treasury Services plc  SEU enters mto derivative contracts (forward
exchange contiacts) solely with Sony Global Treasury Services ple i order to 1educe foreign currency risk
The derrvatives relaie pnmanly to sales and purchase transactions with other Sony compames, and are
accounted for on an accruals basis whereby the undeilying payables and recetvables associated with the
forward exchange contract are recorded at the forward rate, with any difference recorded 1n the profit and loss

Provisions

Frovisions are recogmsed when the cormpany has a present obligation as a result of a past event, 1t 18 probable
that a tiansfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the oblbgation, and a rebable esimate can be
made of the future economtc outflows

Pensions

The company operates voluntary pension schemes, which have defined benefit and defined contribution
sections The assets of these schemes are held in separate independently admimstered funds The pension cost
charge relating to the defined contribution schemes are disclosed in note 21 and represent contributions
payable by the group to the funds in respect of the accounting penod

Defined benefit pension sections assets are measured using current bid price  The pension schernes liabihties
ale measured usmg the projected umit actuarial method and are discounted at the current rate of returmn on a

hagh quality corporate bond of equivalent terms and currency to the liability

The ncrease 1 the present value of the liabihties of the company's defined benefit pension schemes expected
to anise from employee service n the year 15 charged to operating profit The expected retun on the schemes'
assets and the wncrease during the year m the present value of the schemes' liabihities ansing from the passage
of time are included 1n other finance mcome Actuarial gams and losses and foreign exchange ansing on
translation of the non-Eure schemes are recogmised 1 the statement of total recogised gains and losses

14




Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Pensions {continued)

Pension scheme surpluses, to the extent that they are censidered recoverable, or deficits are recogmsed 1 full
and presented on the face of the balance sheet net of the related deferred tax

Share based payments

Share options are granted directly from the ultimate parent undertaking (Sony Corporation) to selected key
employees of SEU for the purposes of Incentivisation and retention These transactions are recorded as equuty-
settled share based payments to employees and are measured at the fair value of the share options granted at
the date of the grant The fair value of the options granted 1s determuned using a Black-Scholes pricing model
and 1 expensed on a straight lme basis over the vesting period subject to the company's esttmation of the
proportion of the options that will eventually vest The increase i equity resulting from the transaction is
recorded as a contmbution from the parent undertaking

15




Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

2. Segmental mformation

Geographical analysis of turnever by destination:

UK and Ireland
Western Europe
Eastern Europe
Asia

North Amernca
Middle East
Africa

Othex

Geogiaphical analysis of turnover by otigin:

UK and Ireland
Western Europe
Eastern Europe

Geographical analysis of net liabilities by origm:

UK and Ireland
Western Eurape
Eastem Europe

2014 2013
€m €m
5616 599 8
2,696 9 27120
1,102 1 1,093 5
5517 612
275 282
260 294
24 76
200 95
44922 45412
2014 2013
€m £€m
1,362 6 125213
2,7383 29218
3913 3671
4,492 2 45412
2014 2013
€m €m
{1,270 8) (1,051 8)
(2112) (750
266 161
(1 455 4) (1,1107)
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

3. Staff costs

2014 2013
€m €m
Directors
Aggregate emoluments 25 28
25 28
Highest paid director
Aggregate emoluments 06 07
06 07

No director 1s aceruing retirement benefits (2013: nil) under a defined benefit scheme No director (2013 ml)
15 1n a defined contnbution scheme

During the year no directors (2013 ml) exercised options i the vltimate parent company's shares

Average menthly number of persons employed by the company dunng the year (including directors)

2014 2013

No. No.

UK and Ireland 1,274 1,350
Western Europe 2,142 2,876
Eastern Europe 528 367
3,944 4,593

2014 2013

No. No,

Consumer Sales 906 1,001
Consunter Marketing 418 439
Professional Solutions Furope 554 640
Busmess Support 835 624
Other , 1,231 1,589
3,044 4,593

38 (2013 6) employees who weie transacted through the SEU payroll are excluded from the above figure for
the year ended 31 March 2014 as they are fully recharged to other Sony entrties and aie not included ut the
{igures below for staff costs .
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

3. Staff costs (continued}

2014 2013
€m €m

Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
Wages and salaries 3419 3438
Social security costs 64 2 763
Other pension costs (note 21) 109 114
Equity-settled share based payments 03 04
4173 4319

Smce 1 Apnl 2002, the 'Stock Acquisition Rights' (STAR) scheme has been 1n operaiion  STAR provides
selected key employees with the nght to buy specified amounts of shares m the ulttmate parent undertaking
(Sony Corporation) The rght extends for 10 yeais fiom the date of grant, and the shares vest over thiee years
with approximately one third vesting each year on the anmversary of the grant date, There are no other vesting
conditions Options may be exercised at any point after the vesting date as Jong as the market price exceeds the
granted option price  Upon exercise the shares are purchased at the option grant price and automatically sold
the next day at market price  No 1echarges for the costs of the scheme are made to SEU by Sony Corporation

Since November 2007 a proportion of options are granted usmg Aimnerican Depositary Receipts, which enable
shares m Sony Cosporation (hsted on the Tokyo stock exchange) to be traded via the New York Stock

exchange

On 20 November 2013, Sony Corporation granted to employees of Sony Europe Limited 21,700 options for
the Tokyo exchange plan (with an exercise price of 2,007 Yen (€14 89 equivalent at grant date)), and 84,000
options for the New York exchange plan (with an exercise price of 20 01 USD (£14 81 equivalent at grant
date)) No options have been exercised during the year for either plan

STAR scheme options granted during the year ending 31 March 2014 have been fair valued usmg a Black-

Scholes model The fair value of share options granted during the year, as estimated 2t the date of grant, was
835 Yen (2013 193 Yen) for options exercisable on the Tokyo exchange, and 8 09 USD (2013 2 28 USD) for

options exercisable on the New York exchange
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2014
4. Intelest receivable and similar income
2014 2013
€m €m
Inteiest recewvable from group undertakngs 01 13
Tnterest recervable from third party financial mstitutions o1 25
Foreign exchange gains on financing activities - 0¢
02 47
Group undertakings refer primanly to transactions wrth Sony Global Treasury Services ple
5. Interest payable and sinular chaiges
2014 2013
€m €m
Interest payable to gioup undertakings 194 157
Other inteiest payable 76 36
Foreign exchange losses on financing activities 0.1 -
271 193
Gioup undertakings refers prananly to transactions with Sony Global Treasury Senvices plc
6. Qther finance income
2014 2013
€m €m
Interest on pension scheme habslities (note 21) (294) 297
Expected return on assets mn the pension scheme {note 21) 316 311
22 14
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

7. Loss on ordinary activities befo1 e taxation

This 1s stated after charging/(crediting)-

Other operating 1ncome
Depreciation (note 10)
Amortisation of goodwall (note 9)
Impairment of goodwill (note 9)
Other operating lease rentals — plant and machinery
Other operating lease rentals — other
Restructuring expenses (note 16}

’ Foreign exchange loss
Loss on disposal of tangible assets (note 10)
Research and development expenditure
Services provided by the company's auditors

- fees payable for statutory audt

2014
€m

(811)
254
06
21
39
381
1325
23
16
93

17

2013
€m

(247
275
18
45
408
1045
99
07
161

16

€4 4m of research and development expenditure (2013 €13 2 nuthion) 15 200% funded by and recharged to

Sony global group entities other than SEU

8. Taxation on loss on ordinary activities

{(a)  Analysis of tax (credit)/charge i the year

Current taxation

UK corporation tax credit 23% (2013. 24%)
Adjustment m respect of previous year
Foreign tax

Cuirent tax on mcome for the year
Adjustment 1n respect of prior year

Total current tax (a1 edit)/charge

Deferred taxation
Onigination and reversal of timing differences

Total deferred tax

Tax charge/(credit) on loss on ordinary actvities

2014 2013
€m €m
57 (25 1)
308 an
i21 76

12 26

384 (20 0)

(13 4) @4

(13 4) (34)

250 (28 4)
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

8, Taxation on loss on exdinary activities (continued)

(b)  Factors affecting tax for the year

The tax assessed for the year 1s higher (2013, hugher) than the standard rate of corporation tax m the UK

The differences are explamned below

Loss on ordimai y activities before taxation
Loss on ordmary activities before tax multiphed by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 23% (2013 24%)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adjustments 1n respect of previous pentods
Impact of overseas taxes

Advanced Pricing Agreement adjustment (note A)
Deferred tax not recogmsed 1n year

Other

Current tax (credit)/charge for the year

Note A

2014 2013
€m €m
(304 9) (346 7)
(70 1) (833)
147 16
320 15
121 76
541 611
(1) (12 1)
o7 36
384 200

Thas 15 a transfer pricing adpstment being negotiated between the UK and Japanese tax authorties

Factors which may affect future charges

On 17 July 2013, Fmance Act 2013 received Royal Assent, thereby reducing the corporation tax 1ate fiom

23% to 21% from I Apnil 2014, and 20% from 1| April 2015
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

8. Taxation on loss on ordinary activities (continued)

(¢)  Deferred taxation asset

The following deferred tax asset has been recogmsed

At1l Apnl
Amounts credited to the profit and loss account

At 31 March

The deferred tax assets analysed by major component are as follows

Tax losses camed forward

Deferred tax excluding that relating to pension habihity (note 13)
Pension hability

Total deferred tax asset recognised

2014 2013

€m €m
266 182
134 g4
400 266
2014 2013

£m €m
40 0 266
400 266
400 266

As at 31 March 2014, there are potential deferred tax assets of €204 7 mithon (2013 €196 5m)}, which are not
bemg recogmsed due to insufficient certainty of recavery i line with UK GAAP principles This consists of
€174 3 milhon relating to losses (2013 €164 6m) and €30 4 milhon of other short term timing differences

(2013 €31 9m)
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2014
9, Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill
€m
Cost
Atl Apnl 2013 218
Additon 03
Disposal (22)
At 31 March 2014 199
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 April 2013 106
Charge for the year 06
Tpainment 21
Disposal (22)
At 31 March 2014 111
Net book value .
At31 March 2014 28
At 31 March 2013 112

Goodwill 18 bemg amortised on a straight line basis over an expected usefal Life of 10 years, which 15 the
penod over which the company expects to benefit from the additional stategic value of the activitres to which

the goodwill relates

The company 1ecognised an impawment charge of €2 1 mullion during the year to wnte down the goodwill in
Sony Europe (Belgium) NV to €1 0 nulhon The net realisable value 15 supported by a discounrted cashflow
analysis which applies a discount rate of 16% to projected cashilows for the penod from 2015 to 2017,
extrapolated usmg a growth rate of 1 5%.

During the year the company disposed of goodwnll wath zero net book value in Solus Electionics Ltd and Sony
Precision Technology Furope, following closwe of these businesses
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

10  Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures
Freehold Leasehold fittings
Land and Land and Plant and tools and
buildings buildings  machinery  equipment Total
€m €m €m €m €m
Cost
At 1 April 2013 802 114 136 1285 2337
Additions - 39 18 171 228
Disposals [(URY)] (06) - (359} (36 6)
Disposal of business 20 2) - {14 6) {10 1) (44 9)
Exchange difference - - 04 - 04
At 31 March 2014 599 147 12 996 1754
Accumulated depreciation
At1 Apnl 2013 24 6 107 118 80.2 1273
Charge for the year ¢ 01 22 195 254
Disposals - (0 6) - (34 0) {34 6)
Disposal of busmness (194) - (139) 9 9) {432)
Exchange difference - - 04 - 04
At31March 2014 88 102 U] 558 753
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 511 45 07 43 8 1001
At 31 March 2013 556 07 18 483 106 4

Historical cost of €36 6 mulhon (2013 €25 1 nuthon) of tangible assets with a net book value of €2 malhon
(2013 €1 8 nutlion) were wniten off or disposed of agamst proceeds of €0 4m (2013 1.1 sulhon) resulting m

a loss on disposal of €1 6 mullion (2013 €0 7 mullion)

24




Sony Europe Limited

Nates to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2014

11.  Investments

Cost
Atl Apnl 2013
Disposals dunng the year

At 31 March 2014

Shares in
subsidiay
undertalings
€m

207
on

206

The disposals durmng the year result from the closure of subsidiary companies HiF1 Comer Lid and Solus

Electromies Lid

The directors believe that the carrymg value of mvestments 1s supported either by their undeilying nel assets or

by discounted cashflow

The company has shares m the following compames

Subsidiary undertakings

Business

Sony Professional Solutions Middle East Dommant

(Jordan} L L CFZ
Sony Austna GmbH
Hawk-Eye (Holdmgs) Limited
Pulse Innovations Linnted
Sony (U K ) Pensron Trust Lumsted

Other mvestments

Fundacron para la Gestion
Medioambiental de Pilas

Fundacion Innovacion Espana

Foxconn Slovakia spelsi o

Asekols1 o

Screlec SA

Ecophihas Lda

ERP Poland Spzo o

Ecopar SA

Domnant
Tiading
Trading
Nog-trading

Trading

Trading
Trading
Trading
Trading
Trading
Trading
Trading

Proportion of

Country of nominal value of
registiation and ordimary shares and
operation voting nglits held
Tordan 100%
Austria 100%
England 100%
England 100%
England 100%
Spamn 14%
Spam 14%
Slovakia 10%
Czech Republic 9%
France 17%
Portugal 17%
Poland 25%
France 04%
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

12.  Stocks
Raw matenals and consummables

Work 1 piogiess
Fushed goods and goods for resale

The directors beheve that the carying value of stocks is not materially different from replacement cost

13.  Debtors

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by gioup undertakings

Corporation tax recervable

Intercompany receivable (corporation tax group relief)

Other debtors

Deferred 1ax asset {excluding that related to pension habulity} (note 8)
Prepayments and accrued income

VAT recetvable

2014 2013
€m €m
38 72
145 i11

254.7 2333

2730 2516

2014 2013
€m €m

3257 447 1

181.6 98 8
10 03
122 373

618 566
400 266
44 8 439
226 229
685 7 7335

Amounts owed by other Sony global group undertakmngs are unsecured, interest {ree and are predommantly on

60 day terms

14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Amounts owed fo group undertakings
Other cieditors

Other taxation and soctal security
Accruals and deferred income
Corporation tax payable

2014 2013
€m €m
525 1678
958 ¢ 1.401 7
1131 125 4
305 188
3728 3109
68 49
1,5337 20295

The 2013 amount owed to group undertakings included a secured long terin loan of €800 milhon This loan
has been 1encwed during 2014 and 15 now falling due after more than one year (see pote 15) The 1emamder of
amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, nterest free and are predorminantly on 60 day terms
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Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2014
15.  Creditors: amounts fallmg due after more than one year
2014 2013
€m €m
Amounts owed to group undertakings 8000 -
Accruals and deferred income 216 40
8216 49

16.

The amount owed to group undertakings 1s a secured long term loan, fiom SGTS, for 2 years from 27 March
2014, with an interest rate of 1 585%. In2013 an equis alent loan amount was reported as fallmg due wathin

one year (see note 14)

Piovisions for liabilities
Restructuring Warranty Royalty

Provision  Provision Prowision Qther Total
€m €m €m €m €m
At 1l April 2013 544 842 78 51 1515
Charge for the year 1325 609 - 113 2047
Utilised duning year (102 8) (53 2) - (90} (165 0)
Released during year - (18 0) (7 8) (35) (29 3)
At 31 March 2014 841 739 - 3¢9 1619

A provision of €84 Imillion (2013 €54 4 nullion) has been recogmised for the estimated lLialnlity ansing on the
restructuring of SEU Included in this amount (s 2 provision of €52 7million for outgomg employees affected
by the temunation of the Vato (PC) busmess, announced dunng the yeai, and a remawnmg provision of €22 7m
for outgoing employees as a resnlt of other restructuning plans

A provision of €73 Smullion (2013 €84 2 mullion) has been recogmsed for expected warranty claums on
products sold during the last three financial years It 15 expected that most of this expenditure will be incuired
m the next financial year, and all will be mcurred within three years of the balance sheet date The wamanty
provision 15 calculated with ieference to latest average repair costs, Iustonical fault rates by key product
category and actual product sales made Allowance 15 made for the time lag between SEU sale and the
purchase by the end customer, and where applicable a weighting 15 applied for the expected phasing of fault
dentification  The estimates used 1o the calculation are based on histoiical expenence and averages by
product groupmngs, and the actual cost and tinupg may vary as product failure patterns and repair costs evolve

The othe1 provisions held by the company at 31 March 2014 mnclude a pisvision of €2 Zmilhon (2013 €22
million) for the estimated liability relating to the Waste Electnical Equpment (WEEE) dwrective and a
provision for €1 7nnllion (2013 €2 9 mullion) recogmised in respect of the probable payment of costs to other
manufacturing companies for the value of preduct and matenials held by them 1elating to end of life (“EOL™)
television models The provision has been calculated based on the EOL on hand stock value as well as related
claims and expected futute claims from suppliers, and applymng a best estunate percentage claim risk The firll
value of the EOL. product may not be recharged to SEU, depending on the other company’s ability to utihise

the materials elsewhere
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17. Called up share capital

2014 2013
€m €m
Authorised
60,000,000 (2013 60,000,000) ordnary shares of €1 10 each
(2013 €1 10 each} 660 660
Issued and fally paid
51,451,201 (2013 51,451,201) ordmmary shares of €1 [0 each
(2013 €1 10 each) 566 566
18. Reconciliation of movements i reserves and shareholders” defieit
Total shareholders®
2014 deficit
Called up Share Piofit
share ptemuum  and loss
capital  account  account 2014 2013
€m €m €m €m €m
At 1 Apri 2013 566 1,5157 (2,6830) (1,1107) (691 9)
Loss for the finaccral year (329 9) (329.9) (3183)
Reserves acquired on reorgamsation
Actuarial loss on pension scheme {160} {16 O) (100 9)
Contribution from parent share-based mcentive
scheme (notes 1 and 3) 03 03 04
Currency translation gawmns on foreign currency !
net mvestments 09 09 - [
Net 1eduction to shareholders' funds - - (344 7) (344 7) (418 8) ‘
At 3) March 2014 566 1,5157  (3,0277) (1,4554) (1,1107)
Pension hability (note 21) 762
Profit and loss reserve excludmng pension
ltability

(2,9515)
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9.

20

11.

Lease obligations
Obligations under non-cancellable operating leases payable within the following 12 months 1elate to leases
exprrmg as follows

Land and buildings Other Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Within § year 08 11 28 33 36 44
Between 1 - § years 67 144 g3 102 150 246
After 5 years 1506 112 - - 15¢ 112
225 267 i1 135 336 402

Not mcluded 1n the above lease obligations at 31 March 2014 1s the lease obligation relating to an operating
business lease effective | February 2011 between Sony Deutschland GmbH and the company Undesr the terms
of the agreement, the company will make an aonual lease payment totatling 0 4% of prior calendar year net
sales for the nght to operate the German sales and marketing busmess pieviously conducted by Sony
Deutschland GmbH For the current year, the company has inciuded a leasmg expense of €2 8 muthon (2013
€3 3 mullion), which 1epresents twelve months (2013 twelve months) leasing obligation under the agreement

The lease, winlst renewable, has an wstial five year term

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2014 the company did not have any capital expenditure contracted for but not provided 1n the
financial statements (2013 ml)

Pension fund commitments

The company operaies the following voluntary pension schemes, namely the Sony United Kingdom: Einuted
Pension Scheme (formed from the merging of the Sony UK Pension and Life Assurance Scheme and the Sony
{Basingstoke) Pension Plan on 6 April 2001), the Sony Ireland Pension and Life Assurance Schemne, the Sony
UX Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (Supplemental), the Seny France Pension Scheme, the Sony Benelux
Pension Scheme, the Sony Dutch Pension Scheme. the Sony Swiss Pension Scheme and the Sony Norway
Pension Scheme The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the group i separate trusiee
admuustered funds The company also has responsibility for the Sony Genman Pension Scheme durmg the
term of the business lease agreement with Sony Dentschland GmbH

The Sony Umited Kimgdom Limited Pension Scheme and the Sony Ireland Pension and Eife Assurance
Schemes are each compnised of a defined benefit section, being funded final salary pension schemes closed to
new members, and a defined contribution section During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Sony United
Kingdom Limited Pension Scheme plan was closed to future accruals as ratified by the plan trustees

The Sony UK Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (Supplemental) 15 comprised of a defined benefit section
which 1s a funded final salary scheme and 1s closed to new members

The Sony Benelux Pension Scheme 1s comprised of a defined benefit section winch i1s a funded final salary
scheme and 1s open to new members The Sony France Pension scheme and Sony German Pension scheme are

nnfunded and are open to new members
All other plans are comprised of a defined benefit section wiuch 1s funded final salary schemes that are active
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21.

Pension fund commitments {continued}

During the year the company contnbuted €20 0 mullion (2013- €21 5 milion) to the defined benefit schemes
The contributions by the company during the year ending 31 March 2014 are expected to be €20 1 milhion

The defined contribution scheme’s pension costs are equal to the contributions paid by the company to the
fund managers and amounted to €6 ¢ mithon (2013 €10 6 mitlion) There were no outstanding or prepaid
contributions (2013 none} to the defined contrbution scheme at the balance sheet date

Also included 1n staff costs are penston costs of €1 1m relating to incomung expatriate employees’ membership
of schemes operated by other Sony global group companies

The disclosures required under Financial Reporting Standaid 17 Retirement Benefits’ have been calculated by
an mdependent actuary based on the most recent full actuanal valuation updated to 31 March 2014

The results of their calculations and the assumptions they have adopted are outhmed 1n this note

Principal actuarial assumptions

2014 2013

% pa % pa
Discount rate 20-44 1945
Salary growth 00 -45 15-45
Penston mcreases 00-30 00-33
Social secunty increases 00-35 15-33
Inflation 00-34 15-34
Expected rate of return on plan assets 30-55 35-56

Sony United Kingdom Limited Pension Scheme and Sony UK Pension and Life Assuwiance Scheme
(Supplemental) - post retiiement mortahty.

Base table SAPS Pensioners with Long Cohort improvements for the period from 2002
to 2006 and Medmum Cohort improvements for the penod from 2006 to
2010 Various “multiphers’ have been applied to different categoties and
sections of members, based on any analysis of members’ post codes

SAPS Pensioners Male 15 used for the Supplemental Scheme wath Long
Cohort improvements from 2002 to 2010 and a multiphter of ¢ 92 applied

Future 1mpiovements Core CMI (2009) projections wath a long-term rate of 1 5% per annum

Sony Ineland Pension and Life Assu1 ance Scheme - post 1efirement mortality

Basge Table 00 lives table with CSO unprovements with a 1 yea1 age rating and a
muluplier of 108% to the underlying mortality 1ates No forther allowance
for future improvements has been made

Sony Benelux Pension Scheme and Sony Dutch Pension Scheme - post retirement mortality
Base Table AG Prognosetafel 2010-2060 with H age correction tables
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21. Pension fund computments (continued)

Sony Swiss Pension Scheme - post retirement mortality
Base Table BVG 2000 plus a 5 0% adjustment to reflect future increase m longevity

Sony United Kingdom Limited Pension Schenie and Sony UK Pension and Life Assurance Scheme
{Supplemental) - commutation allowance

Allowance for 20% of members’ pension at retirement to be taken as cash

The overall expected return on agsets assumption as at 31 March 2014 has been determined with the amm of
reflecting the average rate of growth expected on the funds mmvested having regard to the weighted average of
the expected return from each of the main asset classes The expected retun for each asset class reflects a
combination of historical performance analysis and the forward looking views of the financral markets (as
suggested by the yields available) The company pension scheme does not hold any of the company’s own
financial mstruments or any property occupied by, or other assets vsed by the company

Actual 1etern on scheme assets 2014 2013
€m €m
Expected return on plan assets 316 311
Asset gam 19 323
Actval return on plan assets 33§ 63.4
Composition of the total fair value of scheme assets 2014 2613
€m €m
Equities 2599 2348
Bonds 3372 3199
Property 270 136
Other assets 511 44 7
Total 6752 613 ¢
Reconcibation to the balance sheet 2014 2013
€m €m
Total fair value of scheme assets 6752 6130
Present value of scheme liabilities (751 4) (694 8)
Deficit 1n the scheme {76 2) (81 8

Deferred tax on penston hability

Pension hability recognised 1n the balance sheet (76 2) (81 8)
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Pension fund commitments (continued)

Reconcihatton of Scheme asset and hability balance movemenis

Change in present value of Scheme liabilities

Defined benefit obligation at 1 Apnl

Defined benefit obhgation acquired

Employer service cost

Interest cost

Scheme participants' contnibutions

Curtailment gamn

Settlements

Actuanal loss

Benefifs paid from scheme assets

Adjustment for revision of foreign exchange impact
on prior year actuarial gam

Exchange differences on foreign plans

Defined benefit obligaton unfunded
Defined benefit obhigation funded

Defined benefit obligation at 31 Maich

Change in fair value of Scheme assets

Fair value of assets at 1 Apul
Acqusitions

Settlements

Expected retum on assets
Actuarial gan on assets

Employer contributions

Scheme participants' contributions

Benefits paid
Adjustment for revision of foreign exchange impact

on prior year actuanal gain
Exchange differences on foreign plans

Farr value of assets at 31 March

2014 2013
€m €m
694 8 5547
11 8 -
33 36
294 297
07 08
(04) 28
- (12)
193 1118
(182) (16 9%)
(116} 223
223 (72)
28.4 304
7230 664 4
7514 694 8
2014 2013
€m €m
6130 5518
159
- (12}
316 311
19 323
200 215
a7 08
(18.2) (16 9)
{10.3) -
211 {64)
6752 6130
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21.  Pension fund commutments (contmued)

The following amounts have been recogmsed m the performance statements for the year ending 31 Maich

2014, and comparatives shown for the year ending 31 March 2013

Operating profit — staff costs

Curtent service cost
Past service cost
Gain on curtailment

Total charged to operatng profit (staff costs)

Other finance mcome

Interest on pension scheme liabihtres
Ezpected return on assets 1 the pension scheme

Net credit to other finance income

2014 2013
€m €m
42 36
©09) -
04) (28)
29 08

2014 2013
€m €m

(29 4} (28N
316 311
22 14

The total charged to operating profit in the current year includes a curtailment gain of €0 4 mullion 1ecognised
1n the current year for the Sony France Pension Scheme These gams are the result of restructuring exercises

that took place during the yeal

The total charged to operating profit i the prior year includes a curtmlment gain of €2 8 milhon recogmsed for
the Belgmm, France and Netherlands defined benefit plans These gams weie the result of restructuning

exercises that took place during the prior year i these countries

Statement of total 1ecognised gains and losses (STRGL)

(Gain on asset
Experience gam arising on the scheme habilities

Losses on change of assumptions (financial and demographic)

Actuarial loss
Exchange (gains)/losses on foreign plans - currency translation

Total loss recognised m STRGL

Cumulatiy e actuanal loss recogrused through the STRGL

Cumnlative actuarial loss recogmsed through the STRGL since 31 March 2003

2014 2013
€m €m
19 (32 3)
(39 Y
232 113 8
17 4 794
(1 4) 215
160 1009

2014 2013
€m €m

205 4 189 4
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Pension fund commitments (continued)

History of amounts recognised for the current and pievious four accounting periods

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
€m €m €m €m €m
Piesent value scheme liabihties (751 4) (694 8) (554 7) (548 1) (440 0)
Fatr value of scheme assets 6752 6130 5518 5169 3522
Deficit in the scheme (76 2) {81 8) z29 (312) (87 8)
Expenience adjusiments arsing on
scheme assets (15 (323) 25) 30 (66 8)
scheme habilities (39 21 (1.1} (197 i1

Derivative financial instruments

SEU's functional currency 15 Euro, but 1t also transacts significant amounts of sales and purchases in other
currencies In order to reduce the resulting foreign exchange risk Sony Europe Limuted enters nto forward
exchange contracts solely with Sony Global Treasury Services ple

2014 2013
Group and company €m €m
Fair value of forward exchangé contiacts 04 08

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The company's ultimate paient undertaking and ultimate contrellmg party 15 Sony Corporation which 15
mcorporated 1n Japan The company's immediate parent undertalang 15 Sony Overseas Holdmg BV
mncorporated 1 the Netherlands, which s 1tself a wholly owned subsidiary of Seny Corporatton  The smallest
and largest group to consolidate the financial statements of SEU would be Sony Corporation

Consolidated financial statements for Sony Corporation are publicly obtainable from The Heights, Brooklands,
Weybridge, Surrey, KT13 0XW

Cash flow statements

The company has taken advantage of the dispensaton under FRS1 not to prepare 1ts own cash flow statement
as 11 15 a 100% owned subsidiary, and the Sony Corporation consohidated financial statements an wilich 1t 1s

consolidated are publicly available (note 23}

Related party transactions

In accordance with FRS8, the company 15 exempt from the requirement to disclose related party transactions
as they are all made within the gioup m which the company 1s a 100% owned subsidiary, and the consolidated
financial statements of the parent, Sony Corporation, are publicly available (note 23)
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Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2013
Directors’ report

The directors present thear annual report and the audited financial statements of the company for the year ended 31
March 2013

Principal activitles

Sony Enrope Limited (“SEU™) 1s the distnbutor in Europe of Sony branded p1oducts, which are principally electronic
goods for the domestic, leisme, busmess and professional markets. The company distributes Sony branded TV,
video, audio and computer systems for commercial and professional use, and media peripheral products and devices,
as well as semiconductor products, for use throughout Europe  The company also manufactures broadcast camera
eqmpment for domestic and export markets at its factliies m South Wales and car audio equipment and reparr

services atits facihities 1 Alsace, France.

SEU has branches in the followmng EU countries: Austria, Belgrum, Bulgaria, Czech Republic, Denmark, Fmnland,
France, Germany. Greece, Hungary, Ireland, Italy, Latvia, Netherlands, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia,

Slovenia, Spam and Sweden.

Results and dividends

The company's turnover for the financial year was €4,541 2 nullion (2012 €5,864 5 million) The company's loss for
the financial year was €318 3 million (2012 €873 2 nullion), which wall be deducted from reserves. The directors do

nof recommend the pavment of a dividend (2012° €ml)

Review of business

Dunng the year to 31 March 2013 SEU mstigated and implemented a sigmficant restructuring of 1ts operations, 1n
response to the economic ent ironment, to improve efficiency, customer focus and to reduce its fixed cost base This
actvity, called “Shaping Our Future” programme, 15 bemg executed and the cost 18 estunated at €100 million of

which €78 9 mallion has been utilised 1n the year (see note 16)

The year on year reduction m sales 1s prnmarily due to the contmued worldwide economic downturn and lack of
confidence 1n the Euro, which has caused deterioration in the consumen electronics market.

In relation to product category, sales decreased mainly 1n the consumer categories such as LCD television, Personal
Computer (PC). Compact digital camera and Camcorder, prumarily due to factors mentioned above.

The losses refened to above have principally arisen in the televiston busmess, in which umt sales have sigmficantly
decreased

Although 1t 15 worthy to note reducing mmover, operating profit %% 1s improving as focus moes to higher margin
product compensatmg for lower sales

Consumer categories

Witlin the Personal Computer (PC) product category the Emopean market has shrunk in volume terms, even though
Windows 8 launched in the last automn SEU umt sales decreased during the year due to the market decline whlst
HDD supply constramnts also eccurred following the floods in Thailand which further reduced sales

The compact digital camera and camcorder markets have continued to declme considerably in Europe which, coupled
wath the econome slowdown, resulted m difficult trading conditrons and a fall m sales. The sales m NEX scres and
Alpba mounted cameras grew because of the market prowth

The decrease m LCD television sales was driven by lower umit sales and price declmes. mamly resulting from market
contractions and from the new strategy focusing not on pursuing st sales but on improving profitability

Profitability was still negative but has significantly imnproved, primarily due to the new strategy m TV noted above
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Professional categories

Sales decreased mainly due to a decrease in component sales because the smali- and medinm-sized display businesses
wiere transferred to Japan Display Ine, (an independent ‘company m which Sony Corporation has a <10% interest)

The sales growth in the continung business 1s primarily due to the supply recovery following the natural disester in
the last year and the demand growth in the professional product and solutions business and the lithram ron battery for

mobile phones
Cperating profit in this category has decreased primanly due to the transfer of the small- and medium-sized display
businesses noted above

Future developments

Despite the continued difficult trading conditions expenienced dunng the year and high uncertainty over the speed,
tmming and extent of economic recovery, the directors believe SEU 18 well placed to rapidly take advantage of growth
opportumties as market conditions improve, and anticipate that the company's profitability will recover in the future

The umque breadth of the range of inncvative products and content avatlable within the Sonv brand, mehading those
offered by SEU's sister compames (including games. film and music), coupled with an ncreasingly networked and
conneoted customer offering, will be leveraged by SEU to drive future sales growth

A notable success for Professional Solutions Business was wmning the contiact to provide goal-hne technology 1n the
Barclays English Premier League. The contract commences with the 2013/14 season and 18 worth £8m over § years
SEU will also contimue to differentiate 1itself from its compettors through lughly effective advertismg and promotion
of the unique features of the Sony biand and product range as well as its lgh quahty pre and post sales service
support

Post balance sheet events

On 18" July 2013, SEU signed a treaty with a thurd party to enter into partnership with regard to the Alsace Plant
based 10 France From 1" September 2013, Sony will retamn 51% of the shareholding of a new subsidiary company
(having divested 49% to the 3™ Party) Currently, Alsace Plant provides service and repair solutions for electronics

products in a number of European markets

Strategy
SEU follows the strategic direction of Sony Corporation in striving to become the leadmng network entertainment and
business solutions company

A number of key strategic objectives are 1n place,

© Amaze consumers, business and p1ofessional customers with Seny’s outstanding range of inmovative products and
services, wting hardware, content and network services,

e Advertise and promote these products and services using the globally consistent “make believe” strapline. Focus
on providing entertamment expenences which are both umque and user friendly;

» Invest in best practice workforce support and training to maximise the alignment of employee activities towards
the busmess objectives,

& On-going cost containment and rattonahisation of operations to support profit margins; and

w Continued commitment to envirenmental and health and safety best practice
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The management of the business and the execution of the company's strategy are subject to a number of risks

Competition risk

The electronics market is subject to the continuing threats of new entrants and price erosion, as well as the ever
increasing sophistication of conmsumers SEU works to mutigate this risk through differentiating iself using
nformative advertising and promotion matersal io leverage the power of the Sony brand, highlighting the nanovative
networked featuies of Sony products and services, differentiatmg 1ts technologies and alsc through providing high
quality pre and post sales service support. SEU also undertakes regular market research and detailed analysis of

market actrvity

Employee risk
The attraction. retention and development of staff forms a key pillar i managing nisks assocsated w.ith staff turnover,

under-performance, capability and open vacancies SEU has ymplemented a mumber of schemes designed to attract
and retamn key members of staff, along witlt a comprehensive development programme that covers key business
activities such as employee-focused mitiatives.

One such employee-focused mitrative 1s called * Worksmart’, which is a culture change programme based on investing
10, the mdividual to build capacity and energy in order to create sustamable levels of high performance Other
examples mclude an annual employee survey distributed to all employees as well as a range of health and safety
polictes designed to improve the well-bemng and working em ironment of the SEU woikforce. Dunhg restructuning
achvihies, redundancies may be unavoirdable and retraming and outplacement support 1s provided to affected

employees
Pricerisk

Price risk 1s managed within a framework of contimuous monitoring of market conditions to enable a rapid response to
adverse developments, Costs are regulaily reviewed and efficiency programmes undertaken to support product

margims,
Liguidity nisk

The company’s current hquidity position has been supported through a letier of comfort provided by Sony Gilobal
Treasury Services plc {(another Sony Corporation group company) provading support to SEU in the settlement of its
lisbihties. The period of this support has been confirmed to run until 31 August 2014, at which time the position will

be re-assessed.

Credit risk

The company’s trade recesvables are largely covered by credit insurance policies taken out through third party
msurance providers Where unmsured risk 15 taken 1t 15 subject to a rigorous authorisatton process. Credit lunits are
regularly reviewed

Credit risk relating to cash and deposits with financial institutions 13 managed through Sony Global Treasury Services
plc

In July 2012, SEU began an accounts recervable assignment programme 1mn corjunction with Sony Corporation {Sony
Accounts Receivable Fund, ‘SARF*) This reduced year on year accounts receivable debtor balance and 1s expected to
contmue and mcrease m 2013/14.

Business confinuity

There 15 a risk of disruption to busmess activities from external physical events such as natural disasters, a major
eprdemic or loss or theft of sensitive information SEU has mmplemented and fully communicated a busmess
contnmty planmng framework to enable rapid recovery were such an event to occur Instructions outlining the steps
that should be follov.ed 1mmediately after a major 1mncident have been circulated to employees, and wformation

channels put in place

SEU has also established & pandemrc plannmng and response team, and has prepared contingency plans for business
recovery in the specific event of a mgjor pandemic




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2013
Directors’ report (continued)

Principal risks & nncertainties (continued)

Reporting

SEU maintains its system of risk management and internal controls m accordance with Sony Group’s mternal control
and governance framework. It 15 designed to 1dentify, evaluate and manage risks that may impede the achievement of
the Company’s busmess objectives as well to ensure the effectiveness of mternal control over financial reporting

As a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Corporation, SEU 15 required to adhere to the control framework laid out by
the Sarbanes Oxley Act, which requires SEU’s senlor management to sign a sub certification to support Sony
Corporation’s cerhfications accompanying the Sony Annual Report, that relate to the "far presentation" of the
financial statements, disclosure controls and procedures, and mtemal control over financial reporting

The main features of the nisk management processes and svstem of internal control operated by SEU, which have
been 1n place throughout the year under review and remain in place to date, are descnbed below

Key nisks 1dentified and mternal controls to mutigate those risks are registered 1n the Risk and Control Matrx, based
on a standardised methodology used at Group and regional level by SEU The Rusk and Control Matrix 1s reviewed
regularly by Internal Audit 1z Europe and at company level.

Financial risk management

SEU transacts m a number of foreign currencies, and 15 therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk Policies adopted
to reduce this risk are explained belov,

The company executes financial transactions such as fund raisiog, foreign exchange transactions, malang tme
deposits and intercompany cash settlement solely through Sony Global Treasury Services ple

The company enters mto forward exchange contracts solely with Sony Global Treasury Sences plc in order to
reduce the risk of exchange fluctuations on purchase and sale transacttons.

Foreign currency hedging 1s carried out for overseas branches and divistons, which matches off all currency assets
agamnst the habilsties where the net (positive or negative) value 15 smaller than €0 250 million equivalent Any over or
under exposures will be matched with loans or deposits with Sony Global Treasury Services ple.

Bonowmg agreements are geperally hmited to those undertaken with Seny Global Treasury Services ple. In the
event that agreements are entered mto with other parties, prior review 15 obtained from Sony Global Treasury

Services ple.
The company deposits excess cash with Sony Global Treasury Services ple wheie legally permitted
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Key performanee indicators (KPis)
The following KPIs are relevant in reviewing the performance of the company during the year ended 31 March 2013,

KFI Definition and method of calculation 2013 2012
Growth 10 sales (%) Year on vear sales growth expressed as a percentage (22 6%) (12 6%)
Operating margin 1s the ratio of operating loss on ordmnary
Operating margm (%) activities before interest to sales expiessed as a percentage (7 3%) (118%)
Liquidaty' Total cunent assets less stock expressed as a ratio of total
038 088
current liabalities

Supporting analysis

e The percentage decrease mn sales is primanily due to continued vorldwide economic downtusn. strong price
competition m the market, 1n particular for LCD televisions, and natural disasters resulting in disraptions to
shipment of goods

¢ The movement In operating margin versus prior year is primarily a mansfestation of the company’s strategic
approach to revitalise the electronics division by using higher margi, high end type specialitv products
especially in the TV category

e The low liquidity position for SEU 1s mitigated through a letter of comfort as explamed m the directors’
confirmation of the group as a gotng concern. Working capital improvements are also being derived fiom the
move to accounts recervable assignment with Sony Corporation (SARF).

Please also see the Employee Engagement note below for mnformation on relevant KPIs

Additional areas ander review
In addition to strong PL management, additional focus has been placed on:

Cashflow management Reducmg drastically AR DSO & closer emphasis on inventory management

e« Growmg sales by mcreasing market share i traditional categories such as TV, DI & VAIO, whulst
expanding 1n newer segments such as smartphone and tablets

«  Gaming greater efficiency in the sales and marketing orgamsation, by leveraging moie effectively the key
deliverables (shop fiont display & ranging)

Directors® confirmation of the company as a going concern

The company made a sigmficant loss m the financial year. However. the directors feel that the long-term financial
position. of SEU 1s satisfactory, as a letter of comfort has been provided by Sony Global Treasury Services plc,
providing support to SEU in the settlement of 1ts habihties The period of this support has been confirmed to run untl
31 Angust 2014, at which time the position will be re-assessed,

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements are given beluw

F Nishida (resigned 1 December 2012)

K Takeds

8 Foucher

P Navarrete Sunz (tesigned 22 May 2012)
G Pelliet (appointed 1 June 2012}

R Londema (appointed 1 June 2012)

M Tamagavsa (eppointed 1 July 2C12)

Differences between market and balance sheet value of land

In the opmion of the directors, the difference between the market value and the balance sheet value of land 1s not
material to these tinancial statements.
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Directors® indemnities

Dunng the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, the company has mamtained ligbility insurance
fo 1ts directors and officers through a third party inswier In addimion, as set out in the company’s Articles of
Assoctation, the company also provides indemnity for its directors, secretary and officers throngh a qualifyang thurd
party indemmty provision as defined mn the Compantes Act 2006.

Research and development

The company undertakes research 1n the semiconductor and professional broadcast industries and investigales new
mnovations and techniques for television product improvement and functionality increase m preparation for future
designs. Research and development expendituie totalled €16 1 million (2012 €15 2 mullion)

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

It 15 the company's policy 1 respect of all supplieis fo agree payment terms 1n advance of the supply of goods and
services. to ensuie that suppliers are aware of the payment terms and to adhere to those terms SEU 1s a signatory of
the Prompt Payment Code, further details of which can be found at » ww.promptpaymentcode.co uk.

Trade creditor days for the company for the year ended March 2013 were 58 days (2012 32 days), based on the 1atio
of company trade cieditors at the end of the year to the amounts invoiced durmg the year by trade creditors. The
majenty of trade creditors are other Sony group companies.

Employees

The company’s policy 18 to consult vath employees and their repiesentatives and to provide them with information
via the internal website and emaal regarding busmess performance and other matters affectng them. Ths policy 15
carried out through line management channels and throngh regular meetings with representatives of employees. The
company also encourages the involvement of employees 1n the performance of Sony by offering voluntary
participation m a Furopean employee share option schesne, winch offers subsidised shares m Sony Corporation to
employees,

The company gives full and fawr consideration to applications for employment made by disabled persons, having
regard to their particular aptitudes and abiliies Where people became disabled dunng the course of then
employment, every effort 15 made to retamn their serices and to provide retrauung 1f necessary  All employees are
elymble for consideration for appropnate trainiag, career development and promotional opportumties Disabled
persons are not treated differently 1 this respect

SEU has continucd to demonstrate ifs commitment to environmental and health and safety 1ssues through on-going
support to employees 1n areas such as workstation eigonomcs, display screen and dnver eye test compliance,
occupational road nisk dnives trammg and persenal safety adyice.

SEU mamtains a health, safety and enyironmental critical supplier questionnaire for the screening of new supphers
Moreover, SEU upheld its IS014001 certsfication {emvironmental management svstem} at its manufacturing
operations 1 Pencoed and Alsace as well as at its R&D facility m Stuttgart, ameng several activities actively
pursuing recycling for all waste streams and working towards reducing greenhouse gas emussions including the
application of 100% renewable electricity

Employee Engagement

The values of our company aie bualt on the foundation of the mnnovation, comumtment and loyalty of our workforce
Therefore as a Company, we are focussed on engaging 1ts people behind the vistons and values, creating a high
performance culinre that delivers best service to custorners and 1ewards success.

In order to aclieve this, the Company has added to the existing Global Employee Suncy (GES), which 1s driven by
Somy Corporation Within the Company, two further *“Puleg” surveys are conducted m addition to the GES which are
used to drive actions to enhance the performance both of management and our teams across Europe

The remunceration packages to attract and retain the highest calibre workforce are tied to a measured program of
performance review, company objecuves, and mdividual excellence This is combimed further with a package of
flexible benefits that can be tailored to suit individual employees’ preferences — pension, private healtheare, extra

annua] leave etc




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2013
Directors’ report (continued)

Charitable donations
Duning the year the company has made donations to chaniable organisations amounting to €0 2 mallion (2012: €03
muilion), split 10 % to sporting related charnities with 90%% to communsty based charities

Disclosure of mformation to auditors
Earh of the persons who are a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that.

s So far as the director is aware. there is no relevant audit mformation of which the company’s auditors are
unaware, and

s The director has taken all steps that he'she ought to have taken as a director m order to make himself/herself
aware of any 1elevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors aie aware of that information

This confirmation 15 given and should be nterpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006

Independent auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated themr willingness to continue in office and a resolution
concerning their reappomtment will be proposed at the annual general meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

P Crowhurst
Company Secretary
28 August 2013




Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2013
Statement of directors’ responsibilifies

The directors are responsible for preparmg the directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and regulattons

Company law reguires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law, the
directors have prepared the financial statements 1 accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accountmg Standards and apphcable law) Under company law, the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisficd that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the companv for that perrod,

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are requured to
s gelect smtable accountng policies and then apply them consistently,
¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

¢ statc whether apphcable UK Accounung Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explamed 1n the financial statements' and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis ualess 1t is inappropriate to presume that the company
will continue 11 business

The directors are responsible for Lkeepmg adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the

company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy af any tune the financial position of the company and

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply vith the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safuguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of

fraud and other irregularities

Legislation 1n the Umted Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemmation of financial statements may differ
from legislation 1n other junisdictions




Sony Europe Limited
Independent auditors’ report to the members of Sony Europe Limited

We have audited the financral statements of Sony Europe Limited for the year ended 31 March 2013 which compnse
the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of Total Recognised Gans and Losses, the Balance Sheet and the related
notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied mn thew preparation is applicable law and Umited
Kmgdom Accountmg Standards (Umted Kingdom Geneially Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully 1n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 8 the directors are responstble
for the preparation of the financial statements and for beng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
P1actices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, mcluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 and for no other pirpose We do not, m grving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to vhom this report 1s shown or
mto whose hands 1t may comie save whers expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit 1 olves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of. whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the compan) ’s circumstances
and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financal statements In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial mnformation 1 the directors’ repert and financial statements to 1dentify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements 1f we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies

we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

o mvea true and far view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of 1ts Joss for the year
theu ended,

«  have been properly prepared m accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

« have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006,

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimon the mformation given m the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s censistent vath the financial statements




Sony Europe Limited
Independent auditors’ report to the members of Sony Europe Limited

(continued)

IMatters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the followmg matters where the Companies Act 2006 requures us to report to
you if, m our opinjon:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not m agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
v certain disclosutes of directors’ 1emuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not 1ecerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Marew Artibvans
Maico Amufrano (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statntory Auditors
Usxbnidge
28 August 2013
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Sony Europe Limited

Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 March 2013

Turnover
Other operating mcome

Change in stocks of fimshed goods and work i progress
Raw matentals and consumables

Other external charges

Staff costs

Depreciation and other amounts

written off tangible and intangible fixed assets

Other operating charges

Loss on ordinary activities before interest
Interest receivable and sunilar income
Interest payable and similar charges

Other finance credit

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation on loss on ordinary activities

Loss for the financial year

All amounts related fo continmng operations

Notes

18

2013 2012
€m €m
45412 58645
247 359
4,565 9 5,900 4
(89 1) 205
324 130
(3,780 2) (5,366 6)
4319) (4343)
(29 3) (33.4)
(601 3) (798 6)
(333 5) (659 0)
47 57
(19.3) {354)
1.4 25
(346.7) (726 2)
284 (147 0)
{3183) (873 2)
=

There 1s no material difference between the loss on ordmary activities before taxation and loss for the financial year

stated above, and their historical cost equivalents.




Sony Europe Limited

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Year ended 31 March 2013

Notes
Loss for the finane1al year
Resen es acquired through mergers
Actuaral (loss)/gain on pension scheme 21
Currency translation gains on foreign currency net mvestments I8

Total recognised losses for the year

2013 2012
€m €m
(318 3} (8732)
- 39
{100 9) 11
- 738
(4192) (857.4)

12




Sony Europe Limited

" Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2013

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and i hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current (liabilities)/assets

‘Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provision for Labilities

Net liabilities excluding pension liabihty
Pension liability

Net liabilities in¢luding pension hability
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premium account

Profit and loss account

Total shareholders® deficit

Notes

10
11

12
13

14

15

16

21

17
18
18

18

2013 2012
€m €m
112 130
106 4 1178
20.7 206
1383 1514
2516 3452
7335 1428.7
327 48.6
1017.8 1,822.5
(2029.5) (1,682 6)
(1,011 7) 1399
(873 4) 20113
(4 0) (817.8)
(151 5) (162 5)
(1028 9) (689 0)
(81 8) (29)
(1,110.7) {6919
566 56.6
15157 1,5157
(2,683 0) (2,264 2)
(1.110 7) (691.9)

The financial statements of Sony Ewope Limited, registered number 02422874 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 28 August 2013 The notes on pages 14 to 36 form part of these financial statements

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

BrwR=T,

K Takeda
Director

13




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 31 March 2013
1, Accounting policies
Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared on the gomg concern basis, under the histonical cost convention
and 1n accordance with the Compames Act 2006, and applicable accounting standards m the United Kingdom
The prineipal accounting policies set out below have been apphed consistently throughout the year and

preceding year
Consolidation

The financial statements contain information about SEU as an individual company and do not comtamn
consolidated financial information as the parent of a group The Company 1s exempt under section 401 of the
Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consohdated financial statements as 1t and 1ts subsidiary
undertakings are mcluded by full consohdation n the consolidated financial statements of 1its parent, Sony
Corporation. The consohdated financial statements of Sony Corporation are publicly available.

Going concern

The company made a sigmficant loss doring the year ended 31 March 2013 However the directors belicve
that the long term financial position of SEU 1s satisfactory, as a letter of comfort has been provided by Sony
Global Treasury Services plc, providing support to Sony Europe Linnted 1n the settlement of 1ts Habilities. The
letter of comfort currently extends to 31 August 2014, at which time it will be re-assessed

Turnover

Turnover for the year represents the mvoiced value of goods sold and services supplied to third party and
inlercompany customers, exclusive of value added tax and net of trade discounts, sales incentives and
anticipated returns  Tumover from product sales 1s recognised upon delivery, which 1s considered to have
occurred when the customer has taken title to the product and the nsk and rewards of ownership have been
substantively transferred. Turnover from service contracts are recognised when the service 1s provided
Tumover on long term fixed price contracts are recogmsed on a percentage of completion basis

Other operating income

Other operatmg mcome relates primarily to itercompany service provision (information systems services and
product design) Also mcluded are commissions received for extended warranties, rebates received for the sale
of energy efficient products and also mtercompany commussion received on the generation of sales of
semiconductors and devices to manufacturing customers Income from services provided 1s recogmsed 1 lne
with the timing of the provision of the service Income from comnussions 15 recogmsed in relapon to the sales

generated for the penod

Business combinations and goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisthion of busmesses, representing any excess of the fair value of the consideration
given over the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, »s capitalised and written offon a
strarght Line basts over 1ts estunated uscful economuc hfe. In the year of acquisition a full year amortisation 1s
charged to the profit and loss account. Goodwall is reviewed for impaument at the end of the first full
financial year after acquisition  Subsequently, goodwill 18 reviewed for impairment mdicators by management
on an apnual basis during the fourth financial quarter, and between annual tests whenever an impament
indicator 15 noted. Provision 1s made for any impairment and the expense 1s recogmsed through the profit and

loss Goodwill 1s amortised over 5-20 years

Where the company has acquired the right to use the assets and employees through 2 lease agreement, the on-
going lease payments are recorded as an operating lease unless the lease 1s finance in nature

The estimated useful economic lives above represent the periods over which the directors believe that the
company will benefit from the use of the assct

14




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are stated at historrc purchase cost mcluding mncidental expenses, less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes the ongmal purchase price of the asset and the costs attrbutable to bringing the
asset to 1ts working condition for its mtended use Depreciation 1s chaiged on tangible assets, other than land
and construction 1 progress, over the periods set out below, calculated on a straight lme basis on cost to write
them off over their estimated useful economic Lives less residual value The cost of minor capital expenditure
(ndividual rtems under £500 excludmg monitors) is written off as 1t 15 incurred,

Freehold buildings 30 — 45 years

Short leasehold bulldmgs Depreciated over the hife of the lease
Plant and machinery 3 - 10 years

Fixtures, fitings tools and equipment 3 --10 years

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakmgs are shown at historic cost, less prowision for umparment Other
mvestments are shown at histonic cost adjusted for the impact of any profit or loss arsmg from the
performance of the investment for the ycar, fess provision for impairment Seruor management review
mvestments for imparrment indicators annually

Leased assets

Operating Jease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of each lease on a straight
line basis

Stock, woi k in progress and long term contracts

Stocls 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 1alue, and 1s valued using a moving weighted average
Cost includes all ettnbutable expenses of importation and delvery to the company's premises Work m
progress manufactured by the company mcludes labour and appropriate overhead costs Slow moving,
obsolete and defective stocks are devalued and provision 1s made usmg set rules based on foture sales forecast

mformation and management review

Long term contract balances are stated at cost less amounts taken to cost of sales, provisions for foreseeable
losses and progress payments recened on account Turmover 1s assessed 11 a manner appropnate to the stage
of completion of the long term contracts and attuibutable profit 15 taken at that time

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development 1s charged to the profit and loss account in the year i whuch 1t 15
mncurred

15




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statemelits (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax

Full provision for deferred taxation s made on all tming differences Deferred taxation 1s recogmsed 1n
respect of all tunung differences that have origmnated but not reversed at the balance sheet date, where
transactions or events that result 1n an obligation to pay more tax i the future, or a nght to pay less tax mn the
future, have occurred at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax asset 1s recognised only when, on the basis of all avalable evidence, 1t can be regarded as more
likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying

tmng differences can be deducted

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax 1ate that 15 expected to apply . the penods m which the timung
differences are expected to reverse based cn tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and hiabilities recognised have not been discounted

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the local currencies at the rates of exchange prevaiting at the
transaction dates, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated m foreign currencies are converted to Euros at
the relevant rates at the balance sheet date, with resulting gains and losses being charged to the profit and loss

account.

Profits and losses of SEU divisions who keep thewr books of accounts denominated 1n local cnrrencies other
than Euro are translated from the local currency mnto Furo at the average rates prevaling at month end
throughout the year. Assets and liabilities are translated 1nto Euro at the rates muling at the year end Due to the
local currency of some divisions and overseas branches of the company being the currencies other than Euro,
the closing rate method has been used to translate the results of these divisions Under this method. resulting

exchange differences are dealt within resenves

Foreign currency hedging 1s carned out by Seny Global Treasury Services ple on behalf of SEU., Natural
hedging 1s applied which matches off all currency assets aganst the habilities where the net (positive or
negative) value 1s smaller than €0 250 million equivalent Any over or under exposures will be matched with
loans or deposits with Sony Global Treasury Services ple  SEU enters into dervative contracts (forward
exchange contracts) solely with Seny Global Treasury Services ple m order to reduce foreign currency nisk
The denvatives relate pnmanly to sales and purchase transactions with other Sony companies, and are
accounted for on an accruals bams whereby the underlymg pavables and receivables associated with the
forward exchange contract are recorded at the forward rate, with any difference recorded m the profit and loss

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, 1t 1s probable
that a transfer of economic benefits wiil be required to settls the obligation, and a rchable estimate ran be

made of the amount of the obligation

16




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continned)
Year ended 31 March 2013

1. Accounting pelicies (continued)

Pensions

The company operates voluntary pension schemes, which have defined benefit and defined contnbution
sections The assets of these schemes are held in separate independently admimstered funds The pension cost
charge ielating to the defined contribution sections me disclosed m note 21 and represent contributions
payable by the group to the funds in respect of the accounting period.

Defined benefit pension sections assets are measured using current bid price.  The pension schemes hiabilities
are measured usmg the projected unit actuarial method and are discounted at the current rate of retum on a
high quality corporate bond of equivalent terms and currency to the liability

The increase n the present value of the habilities of the company’s defined benefit pension schemes expected
to arise fiom employee service in the year 1s charged to operating profit The expected return on the schemes'
assets and the mcrease during the year mn the present value of the schemes' liabilittes ansing from the passage
of time are included m other finance mcome Actuaual gains and losses and foreign exchange ansing on
tianslation of the non-Fwio schemes are recogmsed in the statement of total recognised gams and losses

Pension scheme surpluses, to the extent that they are consideied recoverable. or deficits are recogmised 1 full
and presented on the face of the balance sheet net of the related deferred 1ax.

Share based payments

Share options are granted directly from the ultimate parent undertaking (Sony Corporation) to selected key
emplovees of SEU for the purposes of meentivisatton and retention. These transactions are recorded as equity-
settled shaie based payments to employees and are measured at the farr value of the share options granted at
the date of the grant The farr value of the options granted 1s determuned uswmng a Black-Scholes pricing model
and 15 expensed on a straaght line basis over the vesting period subject to the company's estimation of the
proportion of the options that will eventually vest The mcrease m equity resultmg from the transaction 15
recorded as a contribution from the parent undertaking

17




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

2, Segmental information

Geographical analysis of turnover by destination:

UK and Ireland
Western Europe
Eastern Europe
Middle East
Africa

Other

Geographical analysis of tarnover by origin:

UK and Ireland
Western Europe
Eastern Furope

Geographical analysis of net liabilities by o1igin:

UK and Ireland
Western Europe
Eastern Europe

2013 2012
€m €m
599.8 8259
2,7109 3,5920
10935 1,289 1
294 718
76 96

100 0 761
4,541 2 58645
2013 2012
€m €m
1,252 3 1,674.8
2,9218 3,7242
367.1 4655
45412 5,864 5
2013 2012
€m €m
(1.051 8) (6189)
(75 Q) {93 5)
161 205
(691.9)

(1,110.7)

18




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

3 Staff costs

Directors
Aggregate cmoluments

Highest paid director
Agpregate emoluments

2013 2012

€m €m

2.8 28

2.8 28

0.7 i1
Y Y

No director 1s accrumg retirement benefits (2012 mi) under a defined benefit scheme No director (2012: ml)

13 1 a defined contribution scheme

Dunng the year no directors (2012' ml) exercised options in the ultimate parent company's shares

Average monthly number of persons employed by the company duning the year (including directors):

UK and Ireland
Western Forope
Eastern Europe

Sales
Marketing

Business Support

2013 2012
No. No.
1,350 1,368
2,876 3,271
367 423
4,593 5,062
2013 2012
No. No.
1,287 1,442
896 938
2410 2,682
4,593 5,062

6 (2012- 90) employees who were transacted through the SEU payroll are excluded from the above figure for
the year ended 31 March 2013 as tkey are fully recharged to other Sony entities and are not included in the

figures below for staff costs
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Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

3. Staff costs (continued)

2013 2012
€m €m

Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
Wages and salartes 3438 344 5
Social secunty costs 763 826
Other pension costs (note 21) 11.4 67
Equity-settled share based payments 0.4 05
4319 4343

Simnce 1 Apnl 2002, the 'Stock Acqusitton Rights' (STAR) scheme has been in operation STAR provides
selected key employees with the right to buy specified amounts of shaies m the ultimate parent undertaking
(Sony Corporationt) The right extends for 10 years from the date of grant and the shares vest over three years
vath approximately one thid vesting each year on the anniversary of the grant date There are no other vesting
conditions Options may be exercised at any pont after the vesting date as long as the market price exceeds the
gianted option price  Upon exercise the shares are purchased at the option grant price and automatically sold
the next day at market price No recharges for the costs of the scheme are made to SEU by Sony Cerporation

Since November 2007 a pioportion of options are granted using Ameiican Depositary Receipts, which enable
shares 1n Sony Corporation (listed on the Tokyo stock exchange) to be traded via the New York Stock

exchange.

On 4 December 2012, the company granted 9,200 options for the Tokyo exchange plan with an exercise price
of 932 Yen (€8 69 equivalent at grant date) No ophions have been exercised during the year for the Tokyo
exchange plan.

On 4 December 2012, the company granted 85,300 optionis for the New York exchange plan wath an exercise

prnice of 1123 USD (€8 62 equivalent at grant date), which mcluded 36,200 options granted to SEU
employees. No options have been exercised dunng the year for the New York exchange plan

STAR scheme options granted durning the year ending 31 March 2013 have been fair valued using a Black-
Scholes model The fair value of share options granted during the year, as estimated at the date of grant, was
193 Yen (2012 347 Yen) for options excrcisable on the Tokyo exchange, and 2 28 USD (2012 4 46 USD)
for options exercisable on the New York exchange

20




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013
4. Interest receivable and similar income
2013 2012
€m €m
Interest recervable from group undertalungs 13 4.4
Other interest receiv able from third party financial institutions 25 05
Foreign exchange gains on financing actrvities Ry 038
47 57
Group undertakings refer primarily to transactions with Sony Gilebal Treasury Services ple.
5. Interest payable and sumilar charges
2013 2012
€m €m
Interest payable to group undertakings 15.7 354
Other 1nterest payable 36 -
193 354
Group undertakimgs refers promanly to transactions with Sony Global Treasury Services ple
6. Other finance credit
2013 2012
€m €m
Interest on pension scheme habilities (note 21) 29 7) (29 6)
Expected return on assets iz the penston scheme (note 21) 31.1 321
14 25
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Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (coentinued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

7. Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

2013 2012
€m €m
Thus is stated after charging/(crediting):
Qther operating income 247 (359
Depreciation (nate 10) 275 304
Amortisation of goodwill {note 9) i8 30
Tmpawrment of long-hved assets (note 9) . 78
Other aperating lease rentals — plant and machinery 45 49
Other operating lease rentals — other 40.8 442
Foreign exchange loss 99 239
Loss on disposal of tangible assets (note 10) 0.7 93
Research and development expenditure 161 152
Seriices provided by the company's audstors
- fees payable for statutory audit 1.6 12

The research and development expenditure figure mncludes €13 2 million (2012 €12 6 million) of cost that 1
160% funded by and recharged to Sony global group entities other than SEU.

8. Taxation on loss on ordinary activities

{a)  Analysis of tax (credit)/charge in the year

2013 2012
€m €m

Current taxation
UK cerporation tax credit 24% (2012 26%) (29 1} (7.1)
Adjustment 1n respect of previous periods an 8.6
Foreign tax
Current tax on income fo1 the year 76 54
Adjustments in respect of prior pertods 2.6 37
Total current tax (eredit)/charge (20.0) 106
Deferred taxation
Ongination and reversal of timing differences (8.4} 1364
Total deferred tax 8.4) 136 4
Tax (credit) charge on less on ordmary activities (28.4} 147.0
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Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

8.

Taxation on Joss on ordinary activities (continued)

(b)  Factors affecting tax for the year
The tax assessed for the vear 15 hugher (2012- higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax m the UK.

The differences are explammed belov-

2013 2012
€m €m
Loss or ordinary activities before taxation (346.7) (726 2)
Loss on ordinary activities before tax multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 24% (2012 26%) (83 73) (188 8)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1.6 35
Adjustments 1n respect of previous periods 15 86
Impact of overseas taxes 76 (100)
Advanced Pricing Agreement adjusiment (note A) 61.1 1656
Deferred tax not 1ecognised 1n year (21 300
Other 3.6 17
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (20 0) 106

Note A
This 15 a transfer pricmg adjustment being negotiated between the UK and Japanese tax authortties

Factors which may affect future charges

The Directors have considered 1t prudent not to recognse a deferred tax asset for accummlated tax losses and
other tining differences at 31 March 2013 due fo the uncertainty over the recoverability of these losses 1n the
future.

The man tate of corporation tax was reduced from 26% to 24% from 1 April 2012 and to 23% from 1 April
2013, enacted under Finance Act 2012

Further changes to the UK Corporation tax rates were substantively enacted as past of the Finance Bill 2013 on
2 July 2013 These include reductions to the mamn rate to reduce the rate to 21% from 1 Aprif 2014 and to 20%
from 1 April 2015 As the changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date their effects are

not mncluded mm these financial statements
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Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013

8. Taxation on loss on ordinary activities (continued)

(¢) Deferred taxation asset ’

The follovang deferred tax asset has been recogmsed

At Apnl
Amounts credited/(charged) to the profit and loss account

At 31 March

The deferred tax assets analysed by major component are as follows

Tax losses camed forward

Deferred tax excludmg that 1elating to pension liability (note 13)
Pension habihty

Total deferred tax asset recognised

2013 2012
€m €m
182 154.6

8.4 (136 4)
266 182

2013 2012
€m €m
266 182
26.6 182

26.6

182

==

As at 31 March 2013, there are potential deferred tax assets of €196 5 mmllion (2012 €263.1m) relating to
losses and other short term timing differences which are not been recognised due to insufficient certainty of

recovery m line with UK GAAP pnnciples
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Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013
9. Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill
€m
Cost
At 1 Apral 2012 and 31
March 2013 218
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2012 8.8
Charge for the year 18
At 31 March 2013 106
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 112
j‘iw
At 31 Maich 2012 130
j————— =~ ]

Goodwil! 18 being amortised on a straight line basis over an expected useful Iife of 5-20 years, which s the
period over which the company expects to benefit from the additional strategic value of the activities to which
the goodwill relates.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013
10.  Tangible fixed assets
Land and Fixtures
buildings fittings
freehold &  Plant and tools and
leasehold machinery equipment Total
. €m €m €m €m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 926 178 1307 2411
Additions 03 10 167 180
Disposals 1.3 4.9 {18 9) 25 1)
Exchange difference - {0.3) - (0,3)
At 3] March 2013 916 136 128 5 2337
Accumuiated depreciation
At 1 April 2012 293 159 781 1233
Charge fo1 the year 69 1.0 196 215
Dasposals 09 4.9) (17 5) (233)
Exchange difference - ©2) - (0.2)
At 31 March 2013 35.3 118 802 1273
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 563 1.8 483 106 4
At 31 March 2012 63.3 19 526 1178

Histonical cost of €25 1 nulhion (2012: €36 5 nmllion) of tangible assets with a net book value of €1 8 mithon
(2012. €9 8 nullion) were wrttten off or disposed of against proceeds of €1 1 nullion (2012° mtl) resulting m a

loss on disposal of €0 7 mllion (2012 €9.8 nullion)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013
11. Investments

Cost

At 1 April 2012

Additions 1n year

At 31 March 2013

Shares in
subsidiary
undertakings
€m

206
01

207

EP e

The addition for the year 15 an increase 1n the carrying value of the mvestment held by the company 1n relation

to the European Recycling Piogramme (ERP Poland Sp z 0 ©)

The directors believe that the carmrying value of nvestments 13 supported by therr undeilying net assets

The company has shares 1n the following compames

Subsidiary undertakings

Sony Professional Solutions Middle East

(Jorden) LL CFZ
Sony Austria GmbH
Hav k-Eye (Holdings) Linuted
Pulse Innovations Limited
Sony (U K.} Pension Trust Limuted
Solus Electronics Limited
Hi F1 Cormer Limited

Other investments

Fundacion para ]la Gestion
Medioambiental de Pilas

Fundacion Innovacion Espana

Foxconn Slovalua spolsr o

Asekols r.o

sScrelec SA

Ecophihas Lda

ERP Poland Sp zo o

Business

Non-trading

Non-trading
Trading
Trading
Dommant
Tradmng
Tradmg

Trading

Trading
Trading
Trading
Trading
Tradng
Tradmng

Proportion of

Country of nommal value of

registration and ordinary shares and

operation voting rights held

Jordan 100%
Austria 100%
England 100%
England 100%
England 100%
England 100%
Ireland 76%
Spam 14%
Spain 14%
Slovalkaa 10%
Czech Republic 9%
France 17%
Portugal 17%
Poland 25%
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Year ended 31 March 2013

12.

13,

14.

Stocks
2013 2012
€m €m
Raw materals and consumables 72 117
Work 1n progress 11.1 258
Fmished goods and goods for resale 2333 307.7
2516 3452

The directors believe that the carryimng value of stocks 1s not matenally different from replacement cost

Debtors
2013 2012
€m €m
Trade debtors 4471 6212
Amounts owed by group undertalangs 98.3 5739
Corporation tax recervable 03 03
Inter-company recervable (vorporation tax group relief) 37.3 621
Other debtors 566 575
Deferred tax asset {excluding that related to pension liabilty ) (note 8) 266 182
Prepayments and acerued mcome 43,9 474
VAT receivable 229 45 1

7335 142875

The deferred tax asset excludes amounts refating to the pension hiability €nil (2012. €nil mallion) (note 8)
Amounts owed by other Sony global group undertalangs are unsecured and are predonunantly on 6 day
terms. Interest on amounts owed by Sony global group undertakangs ss charged based on rates provided by
Sony Global Treasury Services ple, which ranged from 1% - 5% durg the year

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012

€m €m

Trade creditors 1873 2157
Amounts owed to group undertakings 13822 §15.8
Other creditors 1254 022
Accruals and deferred income 3109 4148
Other taxation and social secunty creditors 18 8 324
Cotporaticn tax payable 49 17

20295 1,682.6

The amount ovved to group undertakings mcludes a secured long term loan of €800 rmlhion (2012 it —
included m Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year) from SGTS. for 2 vears from 27 March
2012, with an mterest rate of 1.92% The remainder of amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured and
repayable on demand, vith interest being incurred based on rates supplied by Sony Globat Treasmy Services
ple These rates ranged from 1% to 5% during the year (2012 1% to 5%)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013
{
15. Creditors: amounts falliug due after more than one year
2013 2012
€m €m
Accruals and deferred income 4.0 17.8
Amounts owed to group undertakings - 8000
4.0 817.8
The amount owed to group undertakings at 31 March 2012 is a secared long term loan, from SGTS, for 2 years
from 27 March 2012, with an wnterest rate of 1 92%. This loan is held within Creditors amounts falling due
vathin one year as at 31 March 2013
16.  Provisions for liabilities

Restructurmg  Warranty Royalty

Provision  Provision  Provision Other Tatal
€m €m €m €m €m
At Apnil 2012 320 101.1 = 28 86 1625
Charge for the year 104.5 56.7 285 116 2013
Utihised durmg year (78 9) (64 3) (39.8) {(127) (1957)
Released during year (3.2) ©2) (18) (2 6) (16 8)
Exchange difference - 01 01 02 02
At 31 March 2013 54 4 842 78 51 151.5
(=== s T T ———— ES - ——

A provision of €54 4 million (2012 €32 0 milhon) has been recogmsed for the estimated hability arising on
the restructuring of SEU The ncrease in the restructunng provision relates to the proviston for outgoing
employees affected by the Shapmg Our Future restructuring programme announced n the year.

A provision of €84 2 milhon (2012 €101 1 mullion) has been recogmsed for expected warranty claims on
products sold during the last three financal years It 1s expected that most of this expenditure will be mcurred
n the next financial year, and all will be mcurred within three years of the balance sheet date. The warranty
provision 15 caleulated with reference to latest average repar costs, hastorical fault rates by key product
category and actual product sales made. Allowance 1s made for the time lag between SEU sale and the
purchase by the end customer and where applicable a weighting 1s applied for the expected phasing of fault
identification. The estimates nsed m the caleulation are based on hustorical expertence and averages by
product groupings, and the actual cost and timing may vary as product failure patterns and repair costs evolve

A provision for €7.8 million (2012 €20 8 million) has been recognised mn respect of the probable payment of
costs to other compames n relation to royalty payments The provision has been calculated based on an
estimated umt hability which may vary to the aciual charge

The other provisions held by the company at 31 March 2013 mclude a provision of €2 2 million (2012 €3 0
mutlton) for the esimated hiability relating to the Waste Electrical Equipment (WEEE) dwrective, a provision of
€ml (2012: €1 0 mullion) for the estunated Liability for redemptions of Sony card reward poimnts and a provision
for €2 9 mitlion (2012 €4 6 millien) has been recognised 1n respect of the probable payment of costs to other
manufacturing companies for the value of product and materials held by them relating to end of life (“EOL”)
television models The provision has been calculated based on the EOL or hand stock value as well as related
claims and expected future claims from supphers, and applying a best estimate percentage claim nisk. The full
value of the EOL product may not be recharged to SEU, depending on the other company’s abibty 1o utilise

the matenals elsevhere
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Year ended 31 March 2013
17. Called up share capital
2013 2012
€m €m
Authorised
60,000,000 (2012. 60,000,000) ordinary shares of €1 10 each
(2012 €1.10 each) 660 660
Tssued and fully pad
51.451,201 (2012, 51,451,201} ordipary shares of €1.10 each
{2012: €1 10 each) 566 56.6
18. Reconaliztion of movements m shareholders’ deficit
Total shareholders®
2013 deficit
Called up Share Profit
share premium  and loss
capital  account  account 2013 2012
€m €m €m €m €m
At 1 Apnl 56.6 1,5157  (2,264.2) {6919) (1,0439)
Loss for the finanetal year (318 3) (3183) (873 2)
Issues of share capital - - 1,209.3
Redesommation of share capital - - 1.2
Reduction of share capital - - {16)
Reserves acquired on reorganisation - - (59 1}
Actuarial gamn on pension scheme {100 9) {100 9) 1.1
Contnbution from parent share-based mcentive
scheme (notes 1 and 3) 04 04 05
Reversal of prior year acquisttion and shaie
1ssuance charged to foreign currency
translation reserve (note a) - - 768
Currency translation losses on foreign curiency
net 1y estments - - (30)
Net reduction to sharcholders' fonds (418 8) (418 8) 3520
At 31 March 56.6  1,5157 (2.6830) (L,1107) (6919
Pension Liabality (note 21) 318
Profit and loss reseive excluding pension
hability (2,601 2)
=eraa—r:
Notea

In 2011 cross border mergers and share 1ssue were meorrectly
The entry has been corrected 1n 20312,

charged to foreign currency translaiion reserve
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19.

20.

21

Lease obligatons

Obligations under non-cancellable operating leases payable within the following 12 months relate to leases
expinng as follows:

Land and buildings Other Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Within 1 year 11 25 33 2.7 44 52
Between 1 - 5 vears 144 152 10.2 8.4 24.6 236
After 5 years 112 68 - - 112 6.3
2617 245 13.5 111 402 35.6

Not mcluded 1 the sbove lease obligattons at 31 March 2013 15 the lease obhigation relating to an operating
business lease effective 1 February 2011 between Sony Deutschland GmbH and the company. Under the terms
of the agreement, the company will make an annual lease payment totalling 0 4% of prior calendar year net
sales for the nght to operate the German sales and marketing busmess previously conducted by Sony
Deutschland GmbH. For the current year, the company has meluded a leasing expense of €3.1 million (2012:
€3.1 million). which represents twelve months (2012 twelve months) leasing obligation under the agreement
The lease, whilst renewable, has an inihal five yea: term

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2013 the company did not have any capstal expenditure contracted for but not provided i the
financial statements (2012 ml)

Pension fund commitmen(s

The company operates the following voluntary pension schemes, namely the Sony Umited Kingdom Linuted
Pension Scheme (formed from the merging of the Sony UK. Penston and Lafe Assurance Scheme and the Sony
(Basmgstoke) Pension Plan on 6 Apiil 2001). the Sony Ireland Pension and Life Assurance Scheme, the Sony
UK Pensten and Life Assurance Scheme (Supplemental), the Sony France Pension Scheme. the Sony Benelux
Pension Scheme, the Sony Dutch Pension Scheme. the Sony Swiss Peasion Scheme, and the Sony Norway
Pension Scheme The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the group in sepaiale trustee
admimstered funds, The company also has responsibility for the Sony German Pension Scheme dunng the
term of the business lease agreement with Sony Deutschland GmbH.

The Sony United Kingdom Linuted Pension Scheme and the Sopy Ireland Pension apd Lifg Assurumce
Schemes are each compnsed of a defined benefit sectton, being funded final salary pension schemcs closed 10
new members. and a defined contribution section. During the year ended 31 Mairch 2011, the United Kingdom
Limited Pension Scheme plan was closed to future accruals as ratified by the plan trustees

The Sony UK. Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (Supplemental) 13 comprised of a defined benefit section
which 1s a funded final salary scheme and 1s clused to new members

The Sony Benehix Pension Scheme 1s compnsed of a defined benefit section which 15 a funded final salary
scheme and 1s open to new members The Sony France Pension scheme and Sony German Penston scheme are
unfunded and are open fo new members.

All other plans are comprised of a defined benefit section which 1 funded final salary schemes that are active
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2%

Pension fund commitments (continued)

During the year the company contributed €21 5 mullion {2012, €20 7 mill1on) to the defined benefit sections of
the schemes, The contributions by the company during the yeal ending 31 March 2014 are expected to be
€20,7 millon

The defined contribution section's pension costs are equal to the contributions paid by the company to the fund
managers and amounted to €10.6 mllion (2012 €3 5 molhon). There were nc outstanding or prepaid
contnbutions to the defined contribution section at the balance sheet date.

The disclosures required under Financial Reporting Standard 17 'Retirement Benefits' have been calculated by
an independent actuary based on the most recent full actuanal valuation updated to 31 March 2013,

The results of thewr calculations and the assumptions they have adopted are outlined mn this note

Principal actuarial assumptions

2013 2012

% pa % pa
Discount rate 1545 23-58
Salary growth 15-45 25-45
Pension mcreases 0G-~33 0.1-33
Social security increases 1.5-33 15-32
Inflation 15-34 18-33
Expected rate of return on plan assets 35-56 36-60

Sony United Kimgdom Limited Pension Scheme and Sony UK Pension and Life Assurance Scheme
(Supplemental) - post retirement mortahty:

Base table. SAPS Pensioners with Long Cohort improvements for the period from 2002
to 2006 and Medium Colhort mmprovements for the period fiom 2006 to
2010. Vanious “multiphiers” have been applied to different categories and
sections of members, based on any analysis of members® post codes

SAPS Pensioners Male 1s used for the Supplemental Scheme with Long
Cohort improvements from 2002 to 2010 and a multipher of 0,92 applied

Future mmprovements Core CMI (2009) projections with a long-term rate of 1 5% per anmum

Sony Ireland Pension and Life Assurance Scheme = post retirement mortality

Base Table 00 lives table with CSO improvements with a 1 year age rating and a
multipher of 108% to the underlymg mortality rates No further allowance
for future improvements has been made

Sony Benelux Pension Scheme and Sony Duteh Pension Sclieme - post retirement meortality

Base Table AG Prognosetafel 2010-2060 with H age correction tables
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21. Pension fund commitments (continued)

Sony Swiss Pension Scheme - post retirement mortality

Base Table BVG 2000 pius a 5 0% adjustment to reflect future mcrease n longevity

Sony United Kingdom Limited Pension Scheme and Seny UK Pension and Life Assurance Sclhieme

(Supplemental) - commntation allowance

Allowance for 20% of members' pension at retirement to be taken as cash

The overall expected return on assets assumption as at 31 March 2013 has been determined with the aim of
reflecting the average rate of growth expected on the funds mvested having regard to the weighted average of
the expected retumn from each of the main asset classes The expected return for each asset class reflects a
combination of lustorical performance analysis and the forward looking views of the financial markets (as
suggested by the yelds available) The company pension scheme does not hold any of the company’s own
financial instruments, or any property occupied by, o1 other assets used by the company

Actual return on scheme assets

Expected return vn plan assets
Agget gam

Actual return on plan assets

Compaosition of the total faih value of scheme assets

Equities
Bonds
Property
Other assets

Total

Reconciliation to the balance sheet

Total far value of scheme assets
Present value of scheme habalities

Deficit in the scheme
Deferred tax on pension hiabihty

Pension hability recognised n the balance sheet

2013 2012
€m €m
311 321
323 25
634 34.6
2013 2012
€m €m
2348 265.1
319.9 2222
136 123
44 7 522
613 0 5518
2013 2012
€m €m
6130 5518
(694 8) (554 7)
(81.8) (2]
(818 29

=g

O T
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21. Pension fund commitments (¢continued)

Reconciliation of Scheme asset and liability balance movements

Change in present value of Scheme liabilities

Defined benefit ocbligation at 1 Apnl

Defined benefit obligation acquired

Employer service cost

Interest cost

Scheme parhcipants' contributions

Curtailment gam

Settlements

Actuanal loss

Benefits paid from scheme assets

Adjustment for revision of foreign exchange mmpact
on prior year actuartal gain

Exchange differences on foreign plans

Defined benefit obhigaton unfinded
Defined benefit obhgation funded

Defined benefit obligation at 31 March

Change mn fair value of Scheme assets

Fair value of assets at 1 Apnii
Settlements

Expected return on assets

Actuanal gamn on assets

Employer contributions

Scheme participants' contributions
Benefits pard

Exchange differences on foreign plans

Faur value of assets at 31 March

2013 2012
€m €m
5547 548 1
- 6.9
36 35
297 296
0.8 08
(28) (03)
(1.2) -
1118 63
(16 9) (16 3)
223 .
(72) (23.9)
304 231
664.4 5316
694 8 554 7
2013 2012
€m €m
5518 5168
(1.2) -
311 321
323 25
215 207
08 0.3
(16.9) (163)
64 (4.8)
613.0 551.8
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21. Pension fund commitments (continued)

The following amounts hay e been recogmsed 1 the performance statemnents for the vear ending 31 March

2013, and comparatives shown for the year ending 31 March 2012,

Operating profit — staff costs

Current service cost
Gam on curtailment

Total charged to operating profit (staff costs)

Othe: finance income

Interest on pension scheme habihtics
Expected return on asseis mn the pension s¢heme

Net credit to other finance mcome

2013 2012
€m €m
3.6 35
28 (0 3}
08 32
2013 2012
€m €m
{297 (29 6)
311 32.1
14 25

Total charged to operating profit i the current year includes. a curtailment gain of €2 8 mullion recogmsed m
the current year for the Belgium, France and Netherlands defined benefit plans. These gains are the esolt of

restructuring exercises that took place during the yea i these countiies

The total charged to operating profit in the prio1 year includes a curtailment gam of €0 3 milhion recogmised for
the UK defined benefit plan. The gam is the result of the plan amendment to discontmue future aceruals

Statement of total recognised gains and losses (STRGL)

Gaih on asset
Experience gain arising on the scheme habihties
Losses on change of assumptions (financial and demographic)

Agctuanal loss
Exchange differences on foreign plans - cuniency translation

Total loss:(gamn) recogmsed in STRGL

Cumulative actuarial loss recognised through the STRGL

Cumulative actuanal loss recogmsed through the STRGL since 31 March 2003

2013 2012
€m €m
(G321 (25)

(21) (L1
1138 73
794 37
215 (4 8)
100 9 (11
2013 2012
€m €m
1864 88.5
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21. Pension fund commitments (continued)
History of amounts recogmsed for the current and previous four accounting periods

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

€m €m €m €m €m
Present value scheme liabilities (694 8} (554 7) (548 1) (440 0) 3079
Fair value of scheme assets 6130 551.8 5169 3522 2545
Deficit 1n the scheme (81 8) 29 (312) (87 8) (G34H

Expenence adjustments arising on

scheme assets (323) (25) 30 (66 8) 630
scheme habilities (21) (11) (197 1.1 04

22. Derivative financial insiruments

SEU's functional currency is Euro, but 1t also transacts significant amounts of (mainly mtercompany) sales and
purchases m other currencies In order to reduce the resulting foreign exchange risk Sony Europe Limited
enters into forward exchange contracts solely with Sony Global Treasury Services plc

2013 2012
Group and company €m €m
Fair value of forward exchange contracts 08 41

1

23.  Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The company's ultunate parent undertaking and ulturate controlling party is Sony Corporation which 15
incorporated m Japan The company's immediate parent undertaking is Sony Overseas Holdmg BV,
mcorporated m the Netherlands, which 1s 1tself a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Corporatton  The smallest
and largest group to consolidate the financial statements of SEU would be Sony Corporation

Consolrdated finaucial statements for Sony Corporation are publicly obtainable from The Heights, Brooklands,
Weybridge, Surrey, KT13 0XW.

24. Cash flow statements

The company has taken advantage of the dispensation under FRS1 not fo prepare 1ts own cash flow statement
as 1t is a 100% ovmed subsidiary, and the Sony Corporation consohidated financial statements 1 which 1t 1s

consolidated are publicly avaitable

25. Related party transactions

In accordance with FRSS. the company 15 exempt from the requirement to disclose related party transactions
as they are all made within the group m which the company 1s a 100% owned subsidiary, and the consolidated
financial statements of the parent, Sony Corporatton, aie publicly a1 ailable

26. Post balance sheet events

On 18" July 2013, SEU signed a treaty with a third party to enter mto partnership vath regard to the Alsace
Plant based n France From 1% September 2013. Sony will retain 51% of the shareholding of a new subsidiary
company (having divested 45% to the 3% Party) Currently, Alsace Plant provides service and repau solutions
for electronics products in a number of European markets
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Sony Europe Limited
Year ended 31 March 2012
Directors’ report

The directors present therr annual report and the audited financial statements of the company for the yea1 ended 31
March 2012

Principal activities

Sony Europe Limited (SEU) 1s the distributor in Europe of Sony branded products, which are principally electromic
goods for the domestic, leisure, busmess and professional markets The company distnibites Sony branded TV,
video, audio and computer systems fo1 commeicial and professional use, and media peripheral products and devices,
as well as senuconductor products, foy use throughout Europe  The company also manufactures broadcast camera
equipment for domestic and export maikets at its facihities m South Wales andcar audio equipment and repar services
at 1ts facilities in Alsace, France

The reporting currency of the company changed from Sterling to Euro effective from | Apiil 2011 as the majonty of
turmover and expenses are now earned/ meuired 1 Ewo member countries All balance <heet and profit and loss
compaiatives have been tanslated mto Euro using an exchange rate of £1/€31 17123 at the date of this change

Overseas branches

During the year to 31 March 2012, the company established a number of additional branches throughout Europe
which completed the 1eorganisation of Sony’s operations 1t Europe

Results and dividends

The company's turnover for the financsal year was €5,864 5 million (2011 €6,710 6 mlhon) The company's loss for
the financial year was €873 2 miflion (2011 €4970 mithon), which wall be deducted from reserves The directors do
not recommend the payment of a dividend (2011 i)

On 28 December 2011, the directors resolved to 1ssue 1 ordinary share with a nonunal vaiue of €1 10 per share,
resulting tn an mcrease 1n the share prermum account of € 1 2 billion

Review of business

Durmg the year to 31 March 2012SEU has stabilised from the impact from the significant restructunng of its
operations m response to the econonuc enviionment 1n order {0 mprove efficiency, cusiomer focus and to reduce s
fixed cost base, which was mitiated during the year to 31 March 2012 At the same time, the cost reducuon from the
restructuring activities, as part of our “Shaping Our Futuie” programme, 15 p1Ogressing as expected, and an estimated
liability of €100 nuilion has been announced as a subsequent event as 1eported on April 19" 2012 as part of a Pan-

European restructuring exeicise

The presentation reporimg currency of the company changed fiom GBP to Euio, effective from 1 Apnl 2011 All
balance sheet and profit and loss comparatives have been translated m Ewo usmng an exchange rate of Euro
£1/€1 17123

The year on year reduction m sales was primarly due to the continued worldwide economic downturn and lack of
confidence m the Eurc which has cause deterioration m the consumer electromcs market, along with the Japanese
earthquake and subsequent tsunarm which caused shipments to Eurcpe to cease over a period Additionally the floods
in Thatland caused disruptions of goods shipment and a backlog to the market

In relation 1o product category, sales decreased m all categories prunanly due to above mentioned factors, other than
the Reader category

The losses referred to above have principally ansen m the consumer categories, with the majority bemng noted in the
television business which hascontinued 10 suffer from pricing pressures m market

Consumer categories

Within the Personal Computer (PC) product category the Europcan market grew 1n volume terms, although price
compentron mtensified SEU umit sales decieased dunng the year, due to HDD supply constramt from the floods in
Thailand There was however, growih n demand for SEU's configuie to order proposition, which allows customers to
custonuse several aspects of thew PC purchase
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Consumer Categoies(continued)

The compact digital camera and camcorder markets saw a lull in replacement demand 1n Europe which, coupled with
the econonuc slowdown and natura} disasters mentioned above, resulted w difficult trading conditions and a fall in
sales The mtroduction of the new NEX series and Alfa mounted cameras were promusmg, gaming high share in a
growing segment of the market

The decrease m LCD television sales reflects lower unn sales and price declines, mamly 1esulting frommarket
contractions and from the new stategy focusing not on pursuing umt sales but on improvmng profitability

Profitability detertoration was primarily due to a decrease 1n gross profit from the lowersales noted above, and
deterioration 1n the cost of sales ratio resulting from a higher cost base due to demand constramts caused by natural

disasters

Professional categories

Sales decreased mamly due to a deciease 1 component sales, primarly due to the umpact of the Earthquake on
battertesand storage media, with margin deterioration compounded by higher cost base due to the demand constraimnts
caused by natural disasters m Thailand Other than tins impact, the professional product and solutions busmness
emoyed strong sales i the customer solution build category while also contmuing to grow 1ts digital cinema business

Operating profit, m this category was recorded despite gross profit decrease fiom suppressed sales, thiough a decrease
n selhng, general and administratve expenses Although gross piofit decreased contiol of sellmg, general and

administrative expenses resulted in an operating profit
Future developments

Despite the contnued difficult trading conditions experienced dunng the yeas and high uncertainty over the speed,
uming and extent of economis 1ecovery the directors believe SEU 1s well placed to rapidly take advantage of growth
opportunities as market condilions improve, and anticipate that the company’s profitability will recover 1n the future

The umque breadth of the 1ange of mnovative products and content available within the Sony brand, including those
offered by SEU's sister companies (including games, film and music), coupled with an mcreasmgly networked and
connected custome: offering, will be leveiaged by SEU to drive futuie sales growth

SEU will also continue to differentiate itself from 1ts compeiitois through highly effective adverusing and p:omotion
of the umque features of the Sony biand and pioduct 1ange as well as its lugh quality pre and post sales service

support

Stiategy

SEU follows the strategic direction of Sony Corporation 1n striving to become the leading network entertainment and
business solutions company

A number of key strategic objectives aie 1n place

s Amaze consumers, business and professional customers with Sony's outstanding range of mnovative products and
services, untfing hardware, content and network services

+ Advertise and promote these products and seivices using the globally consistent “make believe” strapline Focus
on providing entertainment experiences which ate both unique and user finendly

s Invest m best practice workforce support and training to maximuse the alignment of employee activihes towards
the business objectives,

» Ongomng cost contamnment and rationahisation of opeiations to support profit margins, and

¢ Continued comnuiment to environmental and health and safety best practice

(%]
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Pimeipal risks and uncertamties

The management of the business and the execution of the company’s strategy are subject to a number of risks

Competiion 1isk

The electromcs matket 15 subject 10 the continuing threats of new entrants and price eioston, as well as the ever
increasing sophistication of consumers SEU works to mutigate this nsk through differenuating itself using
informative advertising and promotion material to leverage the power of the Sony biand, highhight the mnovative
networked features of Sony pioducts and services, diffelentiate 1ts technologies and also thiough providing lugh
quality pie and post sales seivice support SEU also undertakes regular market research and detailed analysis of

market activity

Employ ee 11sk

The attraction, retention and development of staff forms a key pillar m managmg risks associated with staff turnover,
under-perfoimance, capability and open vacancies SEU has implemented 2 number of schemes designed to attract
and retain key members of staff, along with a comprehensive development pregramme that covers key busmess
actities as employee-focused imtiatives

One such employee-focused imtative 1s called *Worksmait’, which 1s a cultule change progiamme based on mvesting
in the individual to build capacity and energy i order to create sustainable levels of high performance Other
examples mnclude an annual employee survey distubuted to all employees as well as a 1ange of health and safety
policies designed to improve the well-being and woiking environment of the SEU workforce Dunng restiuctuning
activiies, redundancies may be unavoirdable and retiammg and outplacement support 1s provided to affected

employees
Price 11sh

Price risk 1s managed within a fiamework of continucus monito1ng of market conditions to enable a rapid response to
adverse developments Costs are regularly reviewed and efficiency progiammes undertaken to support product

margins

Ligquediy 115k

The company's curient hquidity position has been supported thiough a letter of comfoit piovided by Sony Glabal
Tieasury Services plc {another Sony Corporation group company) providing suppoit to SEU m the settlement of 1ts
habihities The period of this support has been confirmed to run unti! 30September 2013, at which tune the position

will be re-assessed

Credu risk

The company's trade receivables are largely coveied by credit insurance policies taken out through third party
insurance providers Where ummnsured 11sk 1s taken 1t 15 subject to a ngorous authorisation process Credit Iimuts are

regularly reviewed

Ciedit r1sk relating to cash and deposits with financial mstitutions 15 managed through Sony Global Tieastuy Services
ple

Bustness continuil)

There 15 a nisk of disruption to business achivities from extemal physical events such as natural disasters, a major
epidernic or loss or theft of sensiive mformation SEU has implemented and fully commumecated a business
continuity planming framework to enable rapid recovery were such an event 1o occur Instructions outhiming the sieps
that should be followed immediately after a major mcident have been circulated to employees, and mformation

channels put 1n place

SEU has also established a pandemuc planning and response team and has piepared contingency plans for busiess
1ecovery m the specific event of a major pandemic
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Directors’ report
Principal risks & uncertainties (continued)

Reporting

Sony Europe maintamns s system of 115k management and inteinal controls in accordance with Sony Gioup’s mternal
control and govemance framework It 1s designed to identify, evaluate and manage rsks that may impede the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives as well to ensuie the effectiveness of internal controlover financial

1eporting
As a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Corporation, SEU 1s required to adhere to the control framework laid out by
the Sarbanes Oxley act, which tequires Sony Europe’s sentor management to sign a sub certification to support Sony

Corporation’s certifications accompanying the Sony Annual Report, that relate to the "far presentation” of
thefinancial statements, disclosure controls and procedures, and internal control over financial reporting

The maim featuies of the risk management piocesses and system of mtemal control operated by Sony Emope which
have been 1 place throughout the year under 1eview and remain 1n place to date, are described below

Key 115ks 1dentified and internal conticls to mitigate those risks are segistered m the Rusk and Control Matrix, based
on a standardised methodology used at Gioup and 1egional level by Sony Eutope to identnfy The Risk and Control
Matrix are reviewed regularly by Internal Audit in Euiope and at company level

Financial risk management

SEU transacts tn a numbes of foreign currencies, and 15 therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk  Policies adopted
to reduce this risk are explaimed below

The company executes financial transzctions such as fund raismg, foreign exchange transactions, makimg tme
deposits and mieicompany cash settlement solely thiough Sony Global Tieasury Services ple

The company enters into forward exchange contracts solely with Sony Global Treasury Services ple in order to
reduce the <k of exchange fluctuations on purchase and sale transactions

Natural foreign currency hedging 1s carmed out for overseas branches and divisions, which matchey off all currency
assets against the lrabilities where the net (positive or negative) value 15 smaller than €0 250 million equivalent. Any
over o1 under exposutes will be matched with loans or deposits with Sony Global Tieasury Services ple

Borrowing agreements are generally limited to those undertaken with Sony Global Treasury Services ple  In the
event thai agreements are entered mto wath other paities, piiol review 1s obtamed fiom Sony Global Treasury

Services ple

The company deposils excess cash with Sony Global Treasury Services Plc where legally permitted

Key performance indrcators (KPls)
The following KPIs are relevant m reviewing the performance of the company during the year ended 31 March 2011

KPI Definition and metheod of calculation 2012 2011
Giowth n sales (%) Yeai on year sales growth expressed as a percentage {12 6%) 25 6%
Operating margin 15 the ratio of operatmg loss on ordinary
0, 0, 0O,
Operating margin (%) activities before interest to sales expressed as a peicentage (118%) (7 1%)
Ligudity Total current assels less stock expressed as a ratio of tofal 0 8% 067

curtenl habilities

Suppor ting analysis
¢ Thepercentage decrease m sales 15 primarily due to continued worldwide econcimic downturn, stiong price
compeniion 1 the market mn pariicular for LCD televisions and natwal disasters resulting disruptions to

shipment of goods
« The movement 1n operaing margin versus prior year 1s primarily a reflection of the decrease mn sales

e The low hquidity position for SEU 1s nutigated through a letter of comfort as explamed in the directors
canfinnation of the group as a going concern
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Direcfors’ confirmation of the company as a going concein

The company made a sigmificant loss 1n the financial year However, the directors feel that the long-term financial
position of SEU 1s satisfactory, as a leiter of comfort has been provided by Sony Global Treasury Services plc,
providing support to SEU n the settlement of 1ts liabilities  The period of this suppert has been confirmed to run unt1
30 September 2013, at which time the position will be re-assessed

Directo1s
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the {inancial stalements ae given below

F Nishida

K Takeda

S Foucher

P Navaiette (appotnted 1 May 2011, resigned 22 May 2012)
G Pelliet (resigned 1 May 2011, appowited | June 2012)

R Londema (appomted [ June 2012)

M Tamagawa (appointed 1 July 2012}
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Differences between market and balance sheet value of land

In the opmon of the directors, the difference between the market value and the balance sheet value of land is not
sigmficant

Ditectors’ indemmities

The company maintains hability msurance for its directors and officers through a third party insurer In addiion, as
set out 1n the company’s Articles of Association, the company also provides indemnity fos its dwrectors, secretary and
officers through a qualifying third party indemmty piovision as defined i the Companies Act 2006

Research and development

The company undertakes research in the sermconductor and professional broadcast industries and mvestigates new
mnovations and techmques for television product improvement and functionality mcrease m preparation fou future
designs Research and development expenditure totalled €15 2 million (2011 €14 6 milhon)

Post balance sheet events

On 12 April 2012, Sony Corporation moved to strengthen 1ts core busmess and shaft resouices to growth aieas by
announcing a comprehensive global restructurng to further enhance operational efficiencies As a result of this SEU
will be 1mpacted by a ieductton of 1ts headcount, and a provision of €92 9 nullion has been 1ecogrised for this

estimated liability

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

It 1 the company* policy 1n respect of all suppliers to agree payment terms n advance of the supply of goods and
services, to ensure that supplers are awaie of the payment terms and to adhere to those terms SEU 1 a signatory of
the Prompt Payment Code, further details of which can be found at www promptpaynientcode co uk

Trade credttor days for the company for the year ended March 2012were32 days (2011 35 days), based on the ratio
of company trade cieditors at the end of the year to the amounts mvoiced during the year by trade creditors The
majority of trade c1editors are other Sony gioup companies

Employees

The company's policy 15 to consult with employees and their 1epiesentatives and to provide them with information
via the 1nternal website and email regarding business performance and other matters affecting them This policy 15
carried out through hine management channels and through regular meetings with representatives of employees The
company also encourages the mvolvement of employees m the performance of Sony by offering voluntary
partcipation m a European employee share option scheme, which offers subsidised shares m Sony Corporation to
employees

As part of the European ieorganisation discussed in the review of business, the company 1s committed to the
standardisation and hanmomusation of employee programmies, tools, policies and processes throughout Europe

The company gives full and fair consideration to apphcations for employment made by disabled persons. having
regard to therr particular aptriudes and abiliies Where people became disabled durmg the course of therr
employment, every effort 15 made to retan then services and to provide retraming 1f necessary  All employees are
eligible for consideration for appropriate trammg, career development and promotional opportumities Disabled
persons are not treated differenily i this respect

SEU has continued to demonstrate 1ts commiutment to environmental and health and safety 1ssues through ongoing
support to employees m areas such as woikstation eigonomucs, display screen and driver eye test compliance,
occupational road nisk drivey traming and personal safety advice

SEU mamntams a health safety and environmental cnitical supplier questionnaire for the screemng of new suppliers,
mamtamed 1ts 1SO14001 (environmental management system) accreditatron, actively pursues recyclhng for all waste
streams and works towards reducimg CO2

6
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Charitable donations

Durmg the year the company has made donations to chanitable organisations amounting to €0 3 mllion (2011 €01
rmllion), split 24% to spoiting related charities with 76% to community based charities

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who aie a duector at the daie of approval of this report confiims that

« So fal as the diector 1s aware, there is no relevant audit mformation of which the cempany’s auditors are
unawaie, and

o The director has taken ail steps that he/she ought to have taken as a duector in o1der to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are awaie of that information

This confiimation 15 given and should be mterpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006

Independent auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopets LLP, have indicated therr willingness to confinue m office and a resolution
concernmg then reappomtment will be proposed at the annual general meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

PO

P it -

e

P Crowhurst
Company Seciretary

28 September 2012
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The directors are responstble for preparmg the directors’ repert and the financial statements n accordance with
applicable law and regulations \

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that faw, the
directors have prepared the financial statements m accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law, the diectors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are 1equired to
e select suitable accounting policies and thes apply them consistently,
¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

s siate whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the gomg concein basis unless 11 15 mappropriate (o presume that the company
wiil contimue 1 business

The directors ate responsible for keeping adequate accounting 1ecords that ate sufficient to show and explam the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguardmg the assets of the company and hence fo1 taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregulanties

Legislation m the Umited Kmgdom goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legaslation in other jurisdictions




Independent auditors’ report to the members of

Sony Europe Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Sony Europe Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 which comprise
the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet, the Stalement of Total Recogmsed Gams and Losses and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied mn their preparation 1s applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As explamed moie fully i the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 8 the directors are responsible for

the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responstbifity 1s {0 audit and express an opution on the financial statements 11 accordance with applicable law and
International Standards ot Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing

Practices Boaid's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This 1eport, ncluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsiility for any other purpose or to any other peison to whom this report 15 shown or
inte whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wriling

Scepe of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that (he financial staterents aie fiee from matenal nusstatement. whether caused by fiand o1
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies ate appioptiate to the company’s ciucumstlances
and have been consistenily applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we 1ead all the financial
and non-financial mformation n the annual report to 1denufy matenal 1nconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the

mnpheations for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opmion the financial statements

» giveatiue and fair view of the state of the company s affans as at 31 March 2012 and of 1ts loss for the year
then ended,

«  have been properly prepared m accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

and

s have been prepared in accoidance wath the iequirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinton on other mattex piescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinlon the information given in the Diectors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we ar¢ 1equired to 1eport by exception
We have nothing to report it respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o report to

you 1f, in our opiton

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audst have not been recerved
from branches not visited by us, or

e the financial statements are not 1 agreement with the accounting records and returns, or




Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Sony Europe Limited (continued)

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made. o1

+  we have not received all the mformation and expianations we require for our audy

m e F\M'\ \,—'rg\w
Marco Amitrano (Semoir Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Uxbnidge
28 September 2012
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Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 March 2012

Tuinover
Other operating mcome

Change 1n stocks of finished goods and work 1n progress
Raw materials and consumables

Other external charges

Staff costs

Depieciation and other amounts

written off tangible and mtangible fixed assets

Other operating charges

Loss on ordinary activities befo1e inter est
Interest recervable and similai 1ncome
Interest payable and stmilar charges

Other finance crednt

Loss on ordinary activifies before taxation

Taxatron on loss on ordmary activities

Loss for the financial yeal

All amounts 1elated to continumg operations

Notes

N h A

Restated
2012 2011
€m €m
58645 6,710 6
359 42 4
5,900 4 6,753 0
205 1110
130 (19 5)
(5,366 6) (6,329 9)
(434 3) {191 7)
(33 4) (17 4)
(798 6) (785 0)
(699 0) {479 5)
57 84
(35 4) (334)
25 07
(726 2) (503 8)
(1470) 68
(873 2) {497 0)

There 1s no matenal difference between the Toss on ordmary activities before taxation and loss for the financial year

stated above, and their lustorical cost equivalents

Restatement of P1ior Year Financial Results

The presentational reporting currency of SEU changed 1 April 2011 from Sterling to Euro Consequently, all assets
and habihittes of the company are now recoided mn Euio 1 the financial statements Prior year balance sheet and profit
and loss comparative amounts have been translated at £1/€1 17123, the prevailmg exchange rate at 1 Apnl 2011
Foreign currency tiansactions are translated into the local currencies at the iates of exchange prevailmg at the

transaction dates
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Year ended 31 March 2012

Loss for the financial year

Reserves acquired thiough mergers

Actuartalgam on pension scheme

Movement en deferred tax 1esulling from actuanal gain
Currency translation gains on foreign currency netinvestments

Total 1ecogmised losses for the year

Notes

Restated

(note 1)

2012 2011

€m €m
(873 ) (497 0)

390 1039

11 347

- 83
738 16 2
(8574) (3339




Sony Europe Limited

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2012

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and 1n hand

Cieditors: amounts falling due within one yeal
Net current assets / hahlities

Total assets less cwi rent liabilities

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one yea
Provision for liabilities

Net liabilities excluding pension habibty
Peusion hability

Net habilities including pension liabihty
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premmun account

Piofit and loss account

Shaieholders® deficit

Restatement of P1ror Year Financial Results

Notes

10
12

13
14

22

18
19
19

Restated
2012 2011
€m €m
130 24 |
1178 1117
206 1559
151 4 2917
3452 3413
1,428 7 3,0212
48 6 603
1,822 5 34230
{1,682 6) (4,572 6)
1399 (1,149 6}
2913 (857 9)
(817 8) (13 8)
(162 5) (1473)
(689 0) (1,019 0)
29 (24 9
(691 9 (1,043 9)
566 603
1,515 7 3083
(2,264 2} (14125
(691 9) (1,043 %)

The mesentational reporting currency of’ SEU changed 1 April 2011 from Sterhing to Ewo Consequently, all assets
and liabilities of the company are now recorded m Euto m the financral statements Prior year balance sheet and profil
and loss compaiative amounts have been translated at £1/€1 17123, the prevailing exchange rate at 1 Apnl 2011
Foreign currency hanmsactions aie tianslated into the local cuirencies at the rates of exchange prevailing at the

transaction dates

The financial statements of Sony Europe Limited, registered number 02422874 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 27thSeptember 2012 The notes on pages 14 to 38 form part of these financial statements

Signed on behalf of the Boaid of Directois

By H=—T J \(Cfv

K Takeda J Schintiz
Diiector
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Acquisitions of trade and assets from other group entities for far value consideration are accounted for using
acguisition accouniing principles

Intra-group cross border mergers are accounted fo1 using merger accounting principles prospectively fTom the
date on which the company takes control of the underlying trade and assets The difference between the value
of the net identifiable assets acquired and the previous cost of mvestment in the subsidiary undertaking 1s
taken 1o reserves in the company’s financial statements. The legacy entities then cease to exist by law

Where the company has acquired the 11ght to use the assets and employees thiough a lease agieement, the
ongong lease payments ate recorded as an operating lease unless the lease 1s finance n nature

Goodwill anising on the acqusition of businesses, representmg any excess of the fair value of the consideration
given ove: the far value of the idennfiable assets and habihties acquired, 1s capitalised and written off on a
stiaight line basis over 1ts esumated useful econonuc hife In the year of acquisition a full year amortisation 13
charged to the profit and loss account Goodwil] 15 reviewed for mmpanment at the end of the fust full
financial year afte1 acquisition  Subsequently, goodwill 15 reviewed for impairment mndicators by management
on an annual basis dunng the fourth financial quarter, and between annual tests whenever an impairment
indicator 15 noted Provision 15 made for any impanment and the expense 1s recogmsed through the profit and
loss Goodwill 1s amortised over 5-20 years

The estimated useful economic lives above represent the peniods over which the directors believe that the
group will benefit from the use of the asset

Tangible assets and dep: eciation

Tangible assets are stated at historre puichase cost wcluding mcrdental expenses, less accumulated
depreciation Cost mcludes the o1igmal purchase price of the asset and the costs athibutable to bringing the
asset to 1ts working condition for its intended use Depreciation 15 charged on tangible assets, other than land
and construction m progiess, over the pertods set out below, calculated on 2 straight Ime basis on cost to write
them off over their estimated useful economic lives less 1esidual value The cost of munor capital expendituie
(individual stems under £500 excluding momtors) 15 written off as 1t 1s meurred

Freehotd buildings 30 — 45 years

Short leasehold buildings Depreciated over the life of the lease
Plant and machimnery 3— 10 years

Fixtures, fittings tools and equipment 3 — 10 years

Internally generated soflware development costs that are directly atinbutable to bringing computer systems
into working condition for use within the busmness are caprtalised as tangible fixed assets and depreciated over

theur usefitl lives of 3 — 5 years

Investments

Investments are shown ai historic cost, less provision for imparment  Senior management review investments
for impanment mdicators annually

Leased assets

Operatmg lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of each lease on a straight
line basis
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

1 Accounting policies (continued}
Stock, work m progress and long term conti acts

Stock s stated at the lower of cost and net 1eahisable value, and 15 valued usmg a moving weighted average,
Cost mncludes ail attnbutable expenses of mmportation and dehivery to the company's prenuses Waoik 1n
progress manufactwed by the company mcludes labour and appiopriate oveshead costs Slow moving,
obsolete and defective stocks are devalued and provision 15 made using set rules based on future sales forecast

mformation and management review

Long teim contiact balances are stated at cost less amounts taken to cost of sales, provisions for foreseeable
losses and progress payments 1eceived on account  Turnover 1s assessed m a manner appiopriate to the stage
of completion of the long term contiacts and atiributable profit 1s taken at that ime

Research and development
Expenditure on 1eseaich and development 1s charged to the profit and loss account in the year i which 1t 1s
mcurred

Deferred tax

Full provision fo1 defened taxation 1s made on all unung diffetences Defened taxation 15 recogmsed in
1espect of all trmng differences (hat have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date, wheie
tiansactrons o1 events that result m an obligation to pay more 1ax 1n the futme, or a nght to pay less tax m the
futwe, have occurred at the balance sheet date,

Deferied tax asset 15 recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, 1t can be regarded as more
Itkely than not that there will be sumable taxable profits fiom which the future reversal of the underiymng

tumng differences can be deducted

Deferied tax 15 measued at the average taa 1ate that 1s expected to apply m the periods m which the timing
differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that ave been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and habilities recognised have not been discounted

Foi eign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated mto the local cunencies at the 1ates of exchange pievailing at the
transaction dates Monetary assets and habihties denommated m foreign cunencies are cenvelted to Euros at
the relevant rates at the balance sheet date, with resulting gamms and losses being charged to the profit and loss

account

Profits and losses of SEU divisions who keep their books of accounts denommated n local currencies othe
than Ewo,are translated from the local currency mto Ewmoat the average iates prevailing at month end
throughout the year Assets and habilities are tianslated into Emo at the rates ruling at the year end Due to the
local currency of some divisions and oveiseas branches of the company bemg the cunencies other than Euro,
the closing rate method has been used 10 uanslate the results of these divisions Under this method, tesulting

exchange diffeiences are dealt with in 1eserves

Foreign cuntency hedging 1s carried out by Sony Global Tieasury Services ple on behalf of SEU  Natu:al
hedging is apphed which matches off all currency assets agamst the hiabihiies where the net (positive ot
negative) value 15 smaller than €0 250 million equivalent Any over or under exposures will be matched with
loans or deposits with Sony Global Tieasury Services ple  SEU enters into denvative contracts (forward
exchange contiacts) solely with Sony Global Tieasury Services ple in o1der to reduce foreign currency risk
The derivatives 1elate primanily to sales and puichase transactions with other Sony compames and are
accounied for on an accruals basis whereby the underlying payables and receivables associated with the
forwaid exchange contact are recorded at the forward rate, with any difference recorded 10 the profit and loss

16
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

Piovisions are recogmised when the company has a present obligation as a 1esult of a past event, 1t 15 p1obable
that a uansfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the oblhigation, and a relable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation

Pensions

The company operates voluntary pension schemes, which have defined benefit and defined contribution
sections The assets of these schemes are held in separate independently admumstered funds  The pension cost
charge relating to the defined conribution sections are disclosed n note 22and represent contributions payable
by the gioup to the funds m respect of the accounting pertod

Defined benefit pension sections assets are measured using current bid price  The pension schemes habilities
are measured using the projected unit actuarial method and are discounted at the current rate of 1eturn on a
lugh quahty corporate bond of equivalent terms and currency to the liability

The meirease in the present value of the liabihities of the company's defined benefit pension schemes expected
to anise from employee service m the year 15 chaiged to operating profit  The expected return on the schemes'
assets and the wcrease dunng the year in the present value of the schemes' liabilities ansing from the passage
of time are included n other finance income Actuarial gans and losses and foreign exchange arising on
translation of the non-Euro schemes are recogmised 1 the statement of total recognised gams and losses

Penston scheme surpluses, to the extent that they are considered recoverable, o1 deficits are 1ecognised in full
and presented on the face of the balance sheet net of the related deferred tax

Shaie based payments

Share options are granted directly from the ultimate parent undertaking (Sony Corporation) to selected key
employees of SEU for the purposes of incentivisation and retention These transactions are recorded as equity-
settled share based payments to employees and are measwed at the fan value of the share options granted at
the date of the grant The fair value of the options granted 1s determined using a Black-Scholes pncmng model
and 1s expensed on a straight lme basis over the vesting period subject to the company’s estrmation of the
proportion of the options thal will eventually vest The increase m equity resulting from the tiansaction is
1ecorded as a contribution from the parent undertaking
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

Turnover

Geogi aphical analysis by destination:

Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
UK and Ireland 8259 1,508 6
Western Europe 3,592 0 38573
Eastern Europe 1,289 | 783 1
Middle East 718 68 4
Aftica 96 248
Othal 76 1 468 4
5,864 5 6,710 6
Tumover oniginates principally from the UK and Europe, and relates to electrontc product sales
Staff costs
Restated
(note 1)
2012 201
€m €m
Direciors
Aggregate emoluments 28 18
28 18
Highest paid director
Aggiegate emoluments 11 09
11 ag

No director 15 accrumg retirement benefits (2011 mil) under a defined benefit scheme Nodwector (2011 nil) 15

in a defined contiibution scheme

During the year mil(2011 ml) directors exercised options 1 the ultumate parent company's shares

A proportion of the emoluments of some of the directors aie rechaiged out of SEU to other Sony legal enuties

The above figures represent the gross emoluments
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

3,

Staff costs (continued)

Average monthly number of persons empioyed by the company during the year (intluding direclors)

2012 2011
UK and [reland 1,368 1,365
Contmmental Europe 3,694 705
Others - 61
5,062 2,131

90(2011 8%employees who were transacted through the SEU payioll are excluded from the above figume for
the year ended 31 March 2012 as they aie fully recharged to other Sony entities and are not included m the

figures below foa staff costs

Restated
{note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m

Staff costs {mcluding dinectors® remuneiation)
Wages and salanes 344 5 168 2
Social security costs 826 177
Other pension costs (note 22} 67 54
Equity-settled share based payments 05 04
4343 1917

Since 1 Apul 2002, the 'Stock Acquisition Rights' (STAR) scheme has been i operation  STAR provides
selected key employees with the right to buy specified amounts of shaies n the ultimate parent undeitakmg
(Sony Corporation) The right extends for 10 years from the date of giant, and the shaies vest over hiee yeais
wath appioximately one thud vesting each year on the anmversary of the giant date There are no other vestmg
conditions Options may be exercised at any point after the vesting date as long as the maiket piice exceeds the
granted option price  Upon exercise the shares are purchased at the option grant puice and automatically sold
the next day at maiket price  No rechaiges for the costs of the sclieme are made to SEU by Sony Corpotation

Since November 2007 a proportion of options aie granted using Ameiican Depositary Receipts, which enable
shares 1 Sony Corpomation (listed on the Tokyo stock exchange) to be traded via the New York Stock

exchange

On 22November 2011 the company granted 16,000 options for the Tokyo exchange plan with an exercise
price of 1,523Yen (€14 71 equivalent at grant date) No opttons have been exeicised durmg the year for the
Tokyo exchange plan

On 22Novembe:r 2011, the company granted 93,000 options for the New York exchange plan with an exercise
price of 1944 USD (€14 40 equvalent at grant date), which mcluded 40,200 options gianted to SEU
employees No options have been exercised durmg the year for the New York exchange plan

STAR scheme options granted durmng the year endimg 31 March 2012have been farr valued using a Black-
Scholes model The famr value of share options granted durng the vear, as esumated at the date of grant,
was347 Yen (2011 1,004¥en) for options eaeicisable on the Tokyo exchange. and 4 46 USD (2011 1264
USD) for options exercisable on the New York exchange




P

Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

4 Intet est receivable and stmlar income

Interest recervable from gioup undestakings
Othet mietest recervable from thnd paity financial mstritutions
Foreign exchange gains on financing activities

Group undertakings refer pnmanly to t1ansactions with Sony Global Treasury Services ple

5. Interest payable and similar charges

Interest payable to group undertakings

Group undertakings refers primanly to transactions with Sony Global Treasury Services ple

6 Other finance c1edit

Interest on pension scheme Liabilities (note 22)
Expected return on assets in the pension scheme {(note 22)

Restated

(note 1)

2012 2011
€m €m
44 74
05 Do
08 01
57 84
Restated

(note 1)

2012 2011
€m €m
354 334
354 334
Restated

{note 1)

2012 2011
€m €m
(29 6) (29 8)
321 303
25 07
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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7

Loss on ordimary activities hefore taxation

2012
€m
This 15 stated after charging/(crediting)
Other operating income (359)
304

Depreciation (note 10)
Amoitisation of goodwill (note 9) 30

Impairment of long-lived assets (note 9) 78
QOther operatmg lease rentals 461
Foreign exchange loss 239
Loss on disposal of tangible assets (note 10) 98
Research and development expenditure 152
Services provided by the company's auditor

12

- fees payable for statutory aud:t

Restated
(note 1)
2011

€m

(424
i38
36
164
it o

52
146

15

The research and development expenditure figuwre ncludes €12 6nullion(2011 €10 2 mllion)of cost that 1s

100% funded by and rechaiged to Sony global group entihies other than SEU

Taxation on Ioss on o1dinary activities

(a)  Analysis of tax credit in the year

Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€ €m
Curient taxation
UK corporation 1ax credit 26% (2011 28%) an (21 6)
Adjustment 1n respect of previous periods 86 2569
Foreign tax
Current tax on mcome for the peirod 54 (31
Adjustments in respect of prior penods 37 -
Total current tax charge 10 6 12
Deferred taxation
Ongination and 1eversal of tmung differences 1364 159
Adjustment to prior year pertods - {(239)
Total deferred tax 136 4 (8G)
Tax credit on loss on ordinary activities 1470 (6 8)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

8. Taxation on loss on v1dinary activities {continued)

(b) Factois affecting tax for the year
The tax assessed for the pertod 15 higher(2011 higher)than the standard rate of corporalion tax in the UK

The differences are explamed below

Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (726 2) (503 8)
Loss on oidmary activities before tax multiphed by standard rate of
corporation tax m the UK of 26% (2011 28%) (188 8) (141 0)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 35 52
Depreciation for the year in excess of capital allowances - 36
Other short term timing differences - 04
Adjustments to tax n respect of prior years 86 259
Other tinmng differences - (10 6)
Pension contributions made 1n excess of profit and loss charge for
period - {82)
Impact of oveiseas taxes (10 0) 31
Remeasurement of defened tax-chatge 1n UK tax rate - 122
Advanced Pricing Agreement adjustment {note A} 1656 116 8
Deferied tax not recogmsed in year 300 -
Other 17 -
Current tax charge for the period 10.6 12
Note A

This 15 a transfer pricing adjustment bemg negotiated between the UK and Japanese lax authonties

Factors whieh may affect future charges

The Directors’ have considered 1t prudent not to recogmse a deferred tax asset for accumulated tax losses and
other iming differences at 31 Maich 2012 due to the uncertamty over the recoverability of these losses n the
futwe

On 26 March 2012 a resolution passed by Parhiament reduced the matn corporation tax from 26% to 24%
effective 1 Apnl 2012 This change was announced in the March 2012 Budget Statement together with the
intention to reduce the main rate of corporation tax 22%

Legmlation to reduce the mam rate of corporation tax fiom 24% 1o 23% effective from 1 Apnil 2013 1
meluded m the Fmance Act 2012 The rate of reduction fiom 24% 10 22% had nof been substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and theiefore 1s not included 1n these financial statements

[ ]
L8]




l’-\

Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

8.

Taxation on loss on ordinary activities (contmued)

©) Deferred taxation asset

The following deferred tax asset has been 1ecognised
At 1 Apnl (Restated notel)

Amounts (charged)/ credited to the profit and loss account
Amounts chargedto the statement of total 1ecogmsed gams and losses

At 31 Maich

The deferred tax assets analysed by major component aie as follows

Capital allowances
Tax losses carried forward
Other timing

Deferred tax excluding that relating to pension hiabihity (note 14)
Pension habihty

Total deferred tax asset recognised

Restated

{note 1}

2012 2011
€m €m
154 6 1549
(136 4) 80
- (83)
182 154 6
Restated

(note 1)

2012 2011
€m €m

- 314
82 [154
- 16
i82 148 4
- 62
1832 154 6

As at 31 March 2012, there are potcnt:é] deferred tax assets of €263 1 million relating to losses and other shori
term uming differences which are not been recognised due to insufficient certamty of recovery 1o line with UK

GAAP principles

The proposed reductions of the man rate of the corporation tax by 1% per year to 22% by 1 Apnl 2014 are

expected 1o be enacted separately each year
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9 Intangible hixed assets
Goodwill
Cm
Cost
At1 Apnil 2011 {Restated
notel) 302
Disposal 04)
Impairment (78)
Exchange difference arnsing
due to change of
presenialion curiency (0 2)
At 31 Maich 2012 21 8
Accumulated amor fisation
At1 Apnl 201 1(Restated
notel) 61
Chaige for the year 30
Disposal (¢4
Exchange diffeience anismg
due to change of
preseniation cutiency 01
At 31 March 2012 88
Net book value
At 31 Maich 2012 130
Al 31 March 2011 Restated
(note 1) 24 ¢

Goodwill 1s being amornsed on a straight line basis over an expected useful fe of 5-20 years, winch is the
petiod over which the company expects 1o benefit from the addstional strategic valuc of the activities to which
the goodwill relates

The company tecogmised an imparment chaige of €7 § million duting the year to wnite down the goodwill n
Sony Europe (Belgium) NV to €5 2 nullhion

During the vear the company chsposed of goodwill held by Seny Central and Southeast Emope Kfi acquned
as a part of the Euiopean reorganmsation as the compames weic non-trading
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

10,  Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures
Land and fittings
bwldmgs Plantand tools and
freehold machmery equpment Other Total
€ € € € €
Cost
At 1 Apul 2011 Restated (notel) 8§94 211 1240 08 23513
Acquistlions on 1eorgamsation 25 03 26 06 62
Additions 50 i0 219 - 27 ¢
Transfers 42 - (42) - -
[isposals {75) 57 (23 3) - (36 5)
Exchange difference arising due 1o {10) 0¢ 85 (0 2) 82
change 1 presentational and local
currency
At 31 Maich 2012 226 1738 129 § 12 241 1
Accumulated depieciation
At 1 Apnil 2011 Restated (note 1) 341 199 695 01 123 6
Cha:ge for the year 26 12 264 02 304
Transfers - - - - -
Disposals (65) 57 (14 5} - (26 T)
Exchange difference arising due to ((OR))] 05 (3 6) - 40
change 1 presentational and local
' curtency
At 31 March 2012 293 159 778 03 12313
Net book value
A1 31 March 2012 633 19 517 09 1178
AL31 March 2011 Restated (note 1) 553 12 545 07 i1t 7

Internally generated software costs that have not yet been completed and are directly attribulable to bringing
computer systems to woiking condition for then mtended use within the company ate included within the
other category The value of completed nternally generated softwaie along with the related accumulated
depreciation 15 shown within fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment

Historical cost of €36 Snmullion(2011 €60 mullion)of tangible assets with a net book value of €9 8§
miHion(2011 €5 2 mithon)weie written off o1 disposed of agamst proceeds of € m[{2011, ml) resulting n a
loss on disposal of €9 8nullion(2011 €5 2 jmulhon)
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11

Acquisitions

On 30 June 2011, SEU acquired an additional 12% of the share capital of Solus Electronics Linated and has
been capitalined as an investment SEU now owns 100%of the sharc capital of Solus Electionics Limited

European 1eo1ganisation activity

Duiing the year ended 31 March 2012, the companyentered a senes of cross-boider mergeis to acquue the
ongoing trade of the Furopean subsidiaries' sales businesses which are now carmed through branches of SEU
European reel gamisation activity — share pur chase agreements

As pait of the reorganisation, the company entered 1nto a shaie purchase agreement with 1its pment company,
Sony Europe Holding B V (SEHBV) to acquire the shates of the iemaming European operating company that
had previcusly been held by SEHBYV for total consideration equal to the book value of the mvesiments held by

SEHBV
o 23Apni 2011, the company acquued full owneiship of Sony HunganaKft for consideration totallmg €93
nullion wath the 1ssuance of 53 shares m SEU

The company also completed the following cross border mergers with certain of its newly acquired
subsidiaties

Me1ger date Investment Value of Ditfer ence

value  net assets taken to

€m €m reserves

€m

Sony ltalia SpA 1Apnl 2011 414 78 316
Sony Portugal Lda 1Apnt 2011 14 4 04 14 ¢
Sony Poland Spzoo lApnt 2011 13 107 (9 4)
Sony France SA lApnil2011 247 21 4 313
Seny HunganaKkit 15December 2011 93 (8 3) 176
Total 911 320 591

The completion of these meigei~of Sony ltaita Spa, Sony Portegal I.da, Sony Poland Sp z 0 0, Sony Fiance
SA and Sony HunganaK ft tesulted 1n an increase to the company s net asseis of€32 ¢ rmilon a debat to profit
and loss reserve of €59 1mmi)ion and a cortesponding deciease in the imvestment in these entities from €91 1
nmuilhon to ml
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12 Investments

Cost

At 1 Apnil 2011 (Restated note 1)
Additrons in year

Subsidianes merged into SEU

Ihsposal
Exchange dilfeience arising due to change 1o

piresentation currency

At 3] March2012

Shares 1n
subsidiary
undertakings
€m

1559
98
@1 1)
(522)
(18)

200

The directors beheve that the cartying value of investments 15 supported by then underlying net aseets

Re-o1g | Limited was dissolved on 3 May 2011 resulung m a disposal of mvestment of €52 2milhon,for no

gain or Joss

The company has shares m the {following companies

Subsidia1y under takings Business
Sony Professionai Sojutions Middle Non-trading
East (fotdan) L 1. C FZ
Sony Austria GmblI Non-tiading
Hawk-Eye (Holdimgs) Linuted Trading
Pulse Innovauons Limiied Tiading
Sony (U K ) Pension Trust Limited Ttading
Solus Electronics Limited Tiading
Hi F1 Corner Limited Trading
Othel investments
Fundacionpasa la Trading
GestonMedwambiental de Pilas
FundacioninnovacionEspana Trading
Foxconn Slovakia spols1 o Tiading
Asckols1 0 Trading
Screlec SA Tiading
Ecopluhaslda Tiading
ERP Poland Spzoo Trading

Propor tion of

Country cf nomimal value of

registy ation and ordinary shaies and

oper ation voting tights held

Joidan 100%
Austua 100%
England 100%
England 50%
England 100%
England 100%
Ireland 76%
Spam 14%
Spam 14%
Slovakia 10%
Czech Republic 9%
Fiance 17%
Porlugal 17%
Poland 25%
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13 Stocks

Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
Raw matetrals aird consumables 117 282
Work i progress 258 136
Fimshed goods and goods for resale 3077 2095
3452 3413

14 Debtoss
Restated
(note 1}
2012 2011
€m €m
Trade debtors 6212 598 ]
Amounts owed by gioup undeitakings 5739 2,0197
Corpoiation tax recervable 03 03
Inter-company recervable (corporation tax group rehief) 621 790
Other debtors 575 606
Deferred lax asset (excluding that 1elated to pension hability} (note 8) 182 148 4
Piepayments and accrued mcome 474 30¢
VAT receivable 48 1 842

14287 30212

Prepayments and acciued mcome mcludes €16 Omillion{(2011 €18 8 muthon) falling due after moie than one
yem The deferied tax asset excludes amounts relating to the pensron hability €mi (2011 €6 2mullion) (note
8) Amounts owed by other Sony global gioup undettakings are unsecured and aie predonunantly on 60 day
terms  Interest on anounts owed by Sony global group undertalongs 1s charged based on 1ates provided by
Sony Global Treasury Seivices ple, which ranged from 1% - 5% during the yea
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15 Creditoa s: amounts fallmg due within one year

Restated

(note 1)

2012 2011

€m €m

Trade crediiors 2157 101 6

Amounts owed to group undertakings B158 13,6619

Other taxation and socizl security 324 74 0
Corpotation tax payable 17 -

Other creditors 2022 4329

Accruals and defetred mcome 414 § 3022

1,682 6 45726

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand, with mterest being ncurred
based on 1ates supplied by Sony Global Treasury Services ple These 1ates 1anged fiom 1% 1o 5% duning the

yeat

16 Crediters amounts failimg due after more than one yeal

Restated

(note 1)

2012 2011

Cm €m

Accruals and defenned income 178 138
Amounts owed to gioup undes takings 800 0 -

8178 138

On 28 March 2012, the company secured fiom SGT'S a long term loan for 2 years, with an mterest 1ate of 1 92%

17. P1ovistons for liabilties

End of Lafe  Wairanty Royalty

Piovision  provision  Provision Othet Total
Cm €m €m €m Cm
At | Apnril 2011 (Restatednote 1} 95 1012 220 14 6 1473
Acquisition on rec1ganisalion - 227 - 252 479
Chaige for the year 48 774 it i 622 1755
Utlised duimg yeat (8 3) (83 6) (220 (66 1) (180 0)
Released dunmng yeai (14) (16 4} (103 - (28D
Exchange difference ansing due to - (02) - o1 {01)
change of presentation currency
At 31 March 2012 46 1011 208 360 1625

29
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18

17 P1ovisions for abilities (continued)

A provision for €4 6rmlhon (2011 €9 S nulhion) has been recogmsed m respect of the probable payment of
costs 10 other manufactuimg compames for the value of product and materials held by them relaung to end of
life (*EOL") television models The piovision has been calculated based on the EQL on hand stock value as
well as related claims and expected futwe claims from supphess, and applying a best estimale peicentage
claim misk The full value of the EOL product may not be iecharged to SEU, depending on the other
company’s ability to utilise the material< elsewhere

A provision of €101 inullion (2011 €iQ1 2 nuilion) has been recognised for enpected wanamy claims on
products sold durmg the last three financial years It 1s expected that most of this expenditure will be mcurred
in the next financial year, and all will be imcuried within three years of the balance sheet date  The warranty
provision 15 calculated with 1eference to latest average repair costs, historical fault rates by key product
category and actual pioduct sales made Allowance 15 made for the ume lag between SEU s<ale and the
purchase by the end custome, and where applicable a weighting 1s apphed for the expected phasing of fault
identification  The estimates used m the calculation are based on Instorical expenience and averages by
product groupings, and the actual cost and timing may vary as product farlwe patterns and repau costs cvolve

A provision for €20 8nulhon (2011 €22 0 nullion) has been iecogmsed n 1espect of the probable payment of
costs to othel compames 1n 1elation to 10yalty payments The provision has been calculated based on an
estunated umt liability which may vary to the actual charge

The other provisions held by the company at 31 Maich 2012 include a provision ot €3 0 nuilion (2011 €3 8
million) for the estimated hability relating 1o the Waste Electrical Equipment (WEEE) dnective, a provision of

€] 0 nullion (2011 €1 4 nmlhon) for the estimated hability for redemptions of Sony card 1ewaid poimnts and a
provision of €32 0 ymllion (2011, €9 4 nuthion) for the estimated hability arising on the restructuimg of SEU

Called up share capital

Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
Authoiised
60,000,000 (2011 60,000,000} crdinary shares of €1 10 each (2011
, £1 00 each) 660 600
Issued and fully paid
51,451,201 (2011 51,451,141) cndinary shates of €1 10 each (2011
, £1 00 each) 566 603

In accordance with the share-purchase agreements discussed m note 11, the company had one shaie 155ue
before 1edenormmation of the curtency of the shaies fiom Sterhing w Euto, followed by two shaie 1ssues during
the year to 31 March 2012 SEHBV

e 24 Apul 2011, the dnectors resolved 10 15sue 53 ordinary shares with a nominal value of £1 per shate
paying £149,395 per share (€175,923 equivalent at share issue date), resulung m an mciease in share
premium of £7 9mulbion (€9 3m equivalent at share 1ssue date)

s 27 September 2011, the directois resolved to 1edenominate 51.451,194 shares fiom a nomunal value of £]
per share (o €1 13159422 pet share The total numbe: of shates n issue 51.45]) 194 1edenominated
resultmg mn an aggregate nominal value of 1ssue share capual of €58 2nulhon

s 27 Sepiember 2011, the directors resolved to ssue a notice of reduction m capial following
redenommation, ths 1esulied 1n the 1eduction of the aggiegate nommal vaelue fiom €58 2mllion to
€56 4mmllion, a reduction i the <hare capital of €1 6mithon

30
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18  Calted up share capital  (continued)

e 11 Ociober 2011, the directors resalved 1o 1ssue 6 ordinary shares with a nomunai value of €1 10 per
shaie

e 28 December 2011, the directors 1esolved to 1ssue | ordinary shate with a nommal value of €1 10 pei
share, 1csulmg 1n an sncrease m the share premium account of€1 2billion

19 Reconcihation of movements in shareholdes s* deficit

Total shayeholders’

2012 deficit
Called up Share P ofit Restated
share premium  and loss {(note 1)
capital  accounl  account 2012 2011
€m €m €m €m Cm
At 1 Apul (Restated note 1) 603 3083 (14125 (1,0439) (871 0)
Loss for the financial year (873 2) (873 2) (497 0)
Issues of shaic capitai{notes 11 and 18) 1,208 3 1,209 3 2006
Redenomunation of share capital (note 18) 2n 33 12 -
Reduction of share capital {note 18) (16) (1 6} ‘-
Reserves acquired on reoiganisation (note 11} (59 1 (53¢ I 1039
Actuanal gamen pension scheme 11 1.1 34 7
Mavement on deferied tax - (8 3)
Contbution from parent share-based incentive
scheme (notes 1 and 3) 05 05 04
Reversal of priow year acquisition and share
1ssuance charged to foreign cuniency
translation reserve {(note a) 768 768 -
Currency tianslation losses on foieign currency
net investments (52) 22 30 (16 2)
Net reduction to shaieholders' funds (37 11,2074 (8517} 3520 (1729
At 31 March 56 6 1,5157 (2,264 2} (6919) (1,0439)
Pension hability 26
Profit and loss reserve excludmng pension
liabilaity (2,261 3}

Noic a

I the prior year cross boider meigers and shaie 1ssue were incortectly chaiged to {oreign currency tianslatron
teserve The entry has been corrected m the cunent year

1l
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20,

2L

22

Lease obligations
Obhgations under non-cancellable operating leases payable within the followmg 12 months relate to teases
expnmng as follows

Land and buildmgs Othe: Total

Restated Restated Restated

(note 1) (note 1) (note 1)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Within | year 2319 89 141 g1 150 170
Between | - 3 years 634 339 150 86 78 4 425
After 5 years 332 801 - - 332 801
1205 122 9 261 167 146 6 139 6

Not meluded i the above lease obliganions at 31 March 2012 15 the lease obligation relatmg te an epelaling
business lease effective 1 Tebrualy 2011 between Sony Deutschland GmbH and the company Under the terms
of the agireement, the company will make an annual tease payment totalling 0 4% of priot calendar year net
sales for the nght to operate the Geiman sales and markeung business previously conducied by Sony
Deutschland GmbH For the cuneni year, the company has wcluded a leasing eapense of€3 | milhon
2011 €0 6ruthon), which repiesents twelve months (2011 two months) leasing obligation under the
agreement The lease, whilst tenewable has an ttial five year term

Capital commitments

At 31 Maich 2012 (201! nil) the company did not have any capial expenditure contracied for bul not
provided m the accounts

Pension fund comnutments

The company operates the following voluntary pension schemes, namely the Sony Umited Kingdom Linuted
Pension Scheme (formed fiom the mergmg of the Sony UK Pension and Life Assuiance Scheme and the Sony
(Basmgstoke) Pension Plan on 6 Aptil 2001), the Sony heland Pension and Life Assurance Scheme, the Sony
UK Penston and 1.ife Assurance Scheme (Supplemental) Additionally, as part of the European 1eorganisation
discussed in the directors report, the company purchased the following pension plans operated by entities that
weie migrated duning the year, namely the Sony France Pension Scheme and duning the year ended 31 March
2011 the Sony Benelux Pension Scheme, the Sony Dutch Pension Scheme, the Sony Swiss Pension Scheme,
and the Sony Norway Pension Scheme  The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the gioup
1 separate trusiee admimistered funds The company also assumed 1esponsibility for the Sony German Pension
Scheme durmg the term of the busimess lease agreement with Sony Deutschland GmbH

The Sony Untted Kingdom Lmuted Penwion Scheme and the Sony lieland Pension and Life Asswance
Schemes ate each compiised of a defined benefit section, being funded final <alaiy pension schemes closed 10
new members, and a defined contribution section During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Untied Kingdom
Linnted Pension Scheme pian was closed to futme accruals as raufied by the plan trustees

The Sony UK Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (Supplemental) 1s compnsed of a defined benefit section
whch 1s a funded final salary scheme and 1s closed to new members

The Sony Benelux Pension Scheme 1s comprised of a defined benefit section which 1s a funded final salary
schemie and 15 open to new members The Sony France Pension scheme and Sony German Pension scheme are
unfunded and a1& open to new members

All other plans are compiised of a defined benefit section winch 1« tunded final «alary schemes that are actnve

()
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22,

Pension fund commitments (continued)

During the year the company contributed €20 7 million {201 1 €23 3million) 10 the defined benefit secttons of
the schemes The contributtons by the company during the yeai ending 31 Maich 2013 aie expected o be
€20 7million

The defined contiibution section's pension costs are equal to the contitbutions pard by the company fo the fund
managers and amounted to €3 5 mullion (2001 €82 nulhon) There were no outstanding or prepaid
contributions 1o the defined contribution section at the balance sheet date

The disclosures required under Financial Reporting Standard 17 'Refrement Benefits' have been calculaled by
an independent actuay based on he most 1ecent full actvarial valuation updated to 31 March 2012

The results of their calculations and the assumptions they have adopted are outlimed m this note

Principal actuaral assumptions

2012 2011

% pa % pa
Dhscountiate 23-58 306-55
Salary growth 25-45 15-40
Pension mcleases 01-33 00-38
Social security mcreases 15-32 00-38
Inflation 18-33 15-35
Expected rate of retun on plan assets 36-60 40-69

Sony United Kingdom Limited Pension Scheme and Seny UX Pension and Life Assurance Scheme
(Supplemental) - post t etirement moa tahty

Base table SAPS Pensioners with Long Cohort impiovements for the period fiom 2002
to 2006 and Medium Cohort nmprovements for the perod from 2006 to
2010 Vanous ‘multiphiers” have been applied to different categoires and
sections of iembers, based on any analysis of members® post codes

S APS Pensioners Male 1s used foi the Supplemental Scheme with Long
Cohort improvements from 2002 to 2010 and a multipher of 0 92 apphed

Fulure rmprovements Core CM] (2009) projections with a long-term 1ate of | 5% per annum
Sony Ireland Pension and Life Assurance Scheme - post tetirement moi tahty

Base Table 00 Lives table with CSO improvements with a 1 year age rating and a
multipher of 108% to the undeilying mortality rates  No further allowance
for future improvements has been nade

Sony Benelux Pension Scheme and Sony Dutch Penston Schene - post1¢tu ement mo tahty

Base Table AG Prognosetafel 2010-2060 wath H age correction tables
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Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

22,

Pension fund commitments (contnued)

Sony Swiss Pension Scheme - post retirement mortality

_y — -

Base Table BVG 2000 plus a 5 0% adjustment to reflect tuture increase m longevity

Sony United Kingdom Limited Pension Scheme and Sony UK Pension and Life Assurance Scheme

(Supplemental) - commutation allowance

Allowance for 20% of members' pension at retirement

to be taken as cash

The overall expected 1eturn on assets assumption as at 31 March 2012 has been deternuned with the aim of
reflecting the aveiage 1ate of growth expected on the funds mvested having 1egaid to the weighted average of
the expected 1eturn fiom each of the main asset classes  The expected ieturn for each asset class reflects a
combination of historical performance analysis and the forward looking views of the financial matkets (as
suggested by the yields available} The company pension scheme does not hold any of the company’s own

financial nstrunients, o1 any propeity occupied by, o1 othes assets used by the company

Actual seturn on scheme assets Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
Expected return on plan assets 12 1 303
Asset paim/{loss
gam/{loss) 25 (3 0)
Actual retumn on plan asscts
P 346 2.3
Composition of the total fan value of scheme assets
Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
Equities 2651 3006
Bonds 2222 196 3
Property 123 157
Other assets 522 43
Total 5518 5169

u




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

22,  Pension fund comumitments (continued)

Reconuhiation to the balance shect

Total fair value of scheme assets
Present value of scheme habilities

Deficit in the scheme
Defered tax on pension liaihity

Pension liabihity recogmsed in the balance sheet

Reconciliation of Scheme asset and Hablity balance movements

Change m pi esent value of Scheme habilities

Defined benefit obhgauon at 1 Apul
Defined benefit obligation acquued
Employer service cost

Interest cost

Scheme paiticipants’ contubutions
Curtailment gam

Actuarial loss/ (gamn)

Benefits paid fiom scheme assets
Exchange diffetences on foreign plans

Defined benefit obhigation unfunded
Defined benefit obhigation funded

Defined benefit obhgation at 31 Maich

Restated
(note [)
2012 2011
€m €m
5518 5169
(554 7) (348 1)
29 (31 2}
- 63
29 (24 9)
Restated
(note 1)
2012 201%
€m €m
S48 1 440 ¢
69 1367
35 82
206 296
08 26
{(03) (11 3
a3 (37 5}
{16 3) (16 5)
(239 4 0)
231 140
5316 534§
5547 5481




Sony Eurepe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Yecar ended 31 March 2012

22,  Pension fund commitnents {continued)

Change in fair value of Scheme assets

Restated

(note 1)

2012 2011

€m €m

Fair value of assets at | Aptil 5168 3522
Fair value of assets acquited - 132 4
Expected 1eturn on assets 321 303
Actuarial gain/(loss) on assets 25 (30
Employer contributions 207 2313
Scheme participants’ conttibutions 08 26
Benefits paid {16 3) (16 5)
Exchange differences on foreign plans (4 8) {4 5)
Fau value of assets at 31 March 5518 5168

The following amounts have been recopnused in the perfotmance statements for the year ending 31 Maich

2012, and compaiatives shown for the year ending 31 Maich 2011

Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
Operating prolit — staf{f costs
Curnient se1vice cost 35 82
Gam on cuitalment 03) (11 0)
Total chaiged to operaung profit (stall costs} 32 28
Restated
{note 1)
2012 2011
€m €m
Othar finance mcome
Intetest on pension scheme liabilies (29 6} (29 6)
Expected return on assets i the pension scheme 21 303
Net credit to giher {inance mcome 25 07

Tolai chaiged to ope1ating profit in the cunent vear includes 4 curtailment gamof €0 3 nullien recognised m
the current yea for the UK defined benefit plan The gam 15 the sesult of the curent year plan amendment Lo

discontinue futuie accruals




Sony Europe Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2012

22 Pension fund commitments (continued)

Staterment of total 1ccognised gams and losses (STRGL)

Restated
(note 1)
2012 2011
€m €
{Gam)/loss on assel (23) 30
Experience gamn arising on the scheme habilites an (197
Losses/{gams) on change of assumptions {financial and demographic) 73 (18 6)
Actuanal los</(gain) 37 (353
Exchange differences on fo1eign plans - curiency tianslation 4 8) 04
Total /gain recognised in STRGL (an (347
Cumulaitve actuayial loss recognised thiough the STRGL
Restated
(note 1}
2012 2011
Cm €m
Cumulative actuarial loss recognised through the STRGL smce 31 March 2003 885 896
History of amounts 1 ecognmsed for the cunrent and previous four aceounting periods
Restated Restated Restated Restated
(note 1) {note 1) {note 1) (note 1)
2011 2011 2010 2009 2008
€m Cm €m Cm Cm
Present value scheme liabilities {5547) (548 1) (440 0) (307 9) (320 8)
Fau value of scheme assets 5518 516 9 3522 2545 2788
Deficit 1 the scheme (29 (312) (87 8) (33 4) (42 0)
Experience adjusiments aising on
scheme assetls (25) 10 (66 8) 630 237
«cheme habilities (11 (197) 11 04 81

37




Sony Europe Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2012

23.

24

26

27

28.

Detivative fmancal mstruments

SEU's functional currency 1s Euro, but it also transacts signsficant amounts of (inainly intercompany) saies and
purchases in other cunencies In order to reduce the resulting foreign exchange nsk Sony Ewope Limited
enieis ito forwaird exchange contiacts solely with Sony Global Treasury Services ple

Restated

{note 1)
2011 2011
Group and company Em €m
41 31

Fair value of forwaird exchange contracts

Ultimate patent undei taking and contiolling paity

The company's ultimate parent undertaking and ultimate controlhing party 15 Sony Corporation which 15
incorporated 1 Japan The company's mmmediate parent undertaking 1+ Sony Overseas Holding BV,
incorporated in the Netherlands, which 1s 1iself a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Corporaton  The smaltest
and largest group to consohdate the financial statementsot SEU would be Sony Corporation

Consohdated financial statements, for Sony Corporation are pubhicly obtamable from The Heiglus, Biookiands,
Weybndge, Suriey KT13 0XW

Cash flow statements

The company has taken advantage cf the dispensation under FRST not to prepare us own cash flow statement
as 1t 1s 2 100% owned subsicdhary, and the Sony Corporation consolidated financial statements in which 1t 18
consohdated are publicly avaliable

Relaled party ti ansactions
In accordance with FRSE, the company 1s exempl from the requirement to disclose 1elated party transactions

as they are all made within the group m which the company 15 a 100% owned subsichary, and the consoitdated
financial statements of the parent, Sony Corpomation, are publicly available

Consolhidated fimanaial statements

The company has elected 1o take the exemption available under secuon 401 of Companmes Act 2006 and has
not ssued gioup financial statements As stated 1 note 24, the company 1s a 100% owner subsidiary. and the
consohidated financial statements of the parent, Sony Corporation,1-7-1, Konan, Mimato-ku, Tokyo 1egistered
m lapan, are publicly available

Post balance sheet evenls

On 12 Apni 2012, Sony Carporation moved (o strengthened 1« core business and shifl resowices (o growih
areas by announcing a compiehensive globat 1estructuring to further enhance operational etficiencies As a
result of this SEU will be impacted by a 1eduction of s headcount, and a provision of €92 9 mmillion has been
recogmsed for tus estimated liability

18
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Directors” report

Management hereby submuts its report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014, Sony
Supply Cham Solutions (Europe) B V , including 1ts branch office at Nitra (Slovakia), concluded
with an operational loss before tax amounting to € 2 9 million As m previous years the Company
1s primarily financed with equity As per 31 March 2014 the Company has short term borrowings
amounting to € 5.0 million with Sony Treasury. No changes are anticipated 1n the financing
structure during the fiscal year 2014. X

Sony Supply Chain Solution (Europe) B V.’s turnover improved by approximately 5% versus the
previous fiscal year as a result of sales by its customers This year the volume shipped also
increased compared to the previous fiscal year, helped by the launch of the PS4 However, the
logastics costs also increased, as due to a bigger volume shipped, resulting in the above mentioned

loss.
This year no investments were made by Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V.

During the year the board of Supervisory Directors changed. Mr T Miyake and Mr K Takeda
resigned per 1 March 2014, As per that same date Mr A Kobayashi and Mr S Kawasaki were

appownted as the new Supervisory Directors.

With regards to gender diversity i the board of directors, Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe)
BV does not meet these standards per 31 March 2014 and there 1s no specific policy 1n place to
actively strive for the gender diversity as mentioned 1n this provision 1n the law. When filhng
vacant board positions, the main consideration is and has been to select candidates on their
suitability taking into account all aspects of the specific role, including relevant expernience. No
candidates have been excluded based on gender

Headcount will decrease by some 5 FTE durnng the FY14 A nigorous cost reduction programime
will be conducted 1n order to bring the costs 1n line with revenues.

For the comng fiscal year, starting 1 April 2014, no significant increase of revenues 15 expected
and further substantial cost reductions are targeted.

GD de Witt
Managing Director

4 July 2014
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Balance sheet as at March 31, 2014

(before proposed profit appropriation)

Assets Ref March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
€000 € 000
Fuaed assets
Tangible fixed assets 51 31 109
Financial fixed assets 0 2
Intangble fixed assets 52 986 1,380
1,017 1,491
Current assets
Recervables from group companies 27,768 26,522
Taxes and soctal secunty contnbutions 2,096 2,777
Prepayments and other receivables 698 774
30,562 30,073
Cash at bank and 1n hand 3,071 1,630
34,650 33,194
Sony Supply Chain Solunons (Eurape) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 6
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Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

Ref March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

€000 € 000
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 61 7,760 7,760
Accumulated other comprehensive income 62 (2,633) (2.540)
Retamned earnmngs 63 5,766 7,213
Current year’s result (2,168) (1,802)
8,725 10,631
Provisions
Penstons 7.1 918 028
Jubilee 7.2 35 40
Restructuring 73 700 0
1,653 968
Current liabilities
Bankoverdraft intercompany 4,978 7,353
Trade creditors 3,572 2,188
Payables to group companies 167 423
Social security contributions 73 146
Other habilities and accruals 8 15,482 11,485
24272 21,595
34,650 33,194
Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 7

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Accountants N.V
For Identification

pwc purposes only




Profit and loss account for the year ended March 31,2014

Ref 2013 /2014 2012 /2013
€000 € 000
Turnover 10 86,034 81,854
Operating expenses 11 (88,755) 83,962
Operating Profit 2,721) (2,108)
Net financial expense 13 180 288
Result hefore taxation (2,901) (2,396)
Tax on result 14 733 595
Net result (2,168) (1,801)
Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 8
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Notes to the balance sheet and profit and loss account
1 General

1.1 Activities
The activities of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V. (S8CS-E B.V.) performed at
Dongenseweg 200 in Tilburg, The Netherlands, consist of beng the logistical interface between
the Sony production facilities and the sales companies and business groups SSCS-E BV, 15
charging the busmess for logistics services rendered. Almost all logistics services are rendered to

Sony companies
The related cost base 1s invoiced by CEPL (3™ party logistics provider).

The activities of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V performed in Nitra, Slovakia, also
consist of logistics activities These activities are performed by a branch office

1 2 Group structure
Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe} B V , with 1ts statutory seat in Utrecht, the Netherlands,
belongs to the Sony Group and 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Overseas Holdng BV,
Badhoevedorp, the Netherlands The ultimate parent company of the Sony Group is Sony
Corporation, Tokyo, Japan, The financial statements of Sony Supply Chain Solutions
(Europe) B V. are mncluded in the consolidated financial statements of Sony Corporation

As the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent company, Sony Corporation, are
publicly available, advantage has been taken from the exemption in Dutch Accounting Standards
Board Guideline 360 for preparing and presenting a cash flow statement Sony Supply Chan
Solutions (Europe} B.V 1s also part of the fiscal umty Sony Overseas Holdmg BV

1 3 Accounting policies
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the statatory provisions of Part 9, Book
2, of the Netherlands Civil Code and the firm pronouncements 1n the Guidelines for Annual
Reporting 1n the Netherlands as 1ssued by the Dutch Accounting Standards Board

2 Accounting policies for the balance sheet (principles of valuation of assets and
liabilities)

2 I General
Assets and liabilities are stated at the amounts at which they were acquired or incurred, unless
indicated otherwise. The balance sheet and profit and loss account include references 1o the notes
Compared with the previous year, there have been no changes in the accounting policies apphed.

2 2 Foreign currencies
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions conducted in the year under review which are
denomunated in foreign currencies are recognised at the rates of settlement. The resulting exchange
differences are credited or charged to the profit and loss account

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 9
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2 3 Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation provided on the straight line method at
rates to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows

Equpment 3 - 5 years

2 4 Financial fixed assets
Derivative financial instruments not quoted in an active market and not designated as hedging
instruments are stated at cost after initial recognition at fair value. Changes in the value of these
denvative instruments are recognized directly in the income statement

2.5 Imangible fixed assets
Software licenses acquired are capitalized at acquisition cost and amortized over their esumated
future useful lives 1n 3-5 years. Costs associated with maintaining computer sofiware and research
expenditure are recognised in the income statement.

2 6 Impairment
At each balance sheet date, the Company tests whether there are any indications of assets being
subject to impairment If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount of the asset 15
determined If this proves to be impossible, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs is 1dentified. An asset 1s subject to impairment if its carrying amount
exceeds 1ts recoverable amount, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Fair value less costs to sell is determined based on the active market

price

2.7 Debtors
Debtors are stated at face value less any required provisions for bad debts. Debtors are of a short

term nature unless stated otherwise

2 8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash represents cash in hand, bank balances and deposits with a maturity of less than 12 months.
Current account overdrafts at banks are included under bank overdrafts under the heading current
liabilihies

2 9 Provisions
Provistons are formed for legally enforceable or constructive obligations existing on the balance
sheet date, the settlement of which 15 likely to require an outflow of resources whose extent can be

rehiably estimated.

Provisions are measured on the basis of the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the
obligations as at the balance sheet date. Provisions are stated at the discounted value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligations.
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Pension provision
The company has a defined benefit scheme 1n place This provides defined pension benefits to staff
upon reaching retirement age, the amount of which depends on age, salary and years of service
The pension provision carried on the balance sheet is the present value of pension benefit
obligations under the defined benefit scheme net of the fair value of plan assets The required
pension provision 1s measured annually by independent actuaries

The present value of the obligation 1s computed by discounting eshmated future cash flows, using
interest rates applying to high quality corporate bonds with a term roughly consistent with the term
of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes 1n actuanal assumptions exceeding 10% of the
higher of pension benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets at the opening of the financial
year are credited or charged to the profit and loss account over the expected average future years of
service of the employees concerned

Unrecogmized past service costs are taken directly to the profit and loss account unless the changes
1n the pension scheme depend on the employees remaming 1 service for a specific period (the
qualifying period). In that case, the past service costs are recogmzed on a straight-line basis over
the qualifying period Actuanal gains and losses and past service costs are recogmzed as
components of other comprehensive income included 1n equity.

2 10 Deferred rax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of auming differences between valuation
of the assets and liabilities according to fiscal provisions on the one hand and the valuation
principles as used 1n these financial statements on the other Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
calculated based on the ruling tax rates as at year-end or future applicable rates, insofar as aheady
decreed by law Deferred taxes are valued at nominal value

2 11 Operational lease
Lease contracts for which a large part of the nsk and rewards incidental to ownership of the assets
does not lie with the company, are recognized on a straight-hne basis 1n the profit and loss account
over the term of the contract, taking 1nto account reimbursement recerved from the lessor

2 12 Current liabilines
Current liabilities are stated at face value Current habilities are of a short term nature unless stated

otherwise.
3 Accounting policies for the profit and loss account

3 1 General
Profit 1s determined as the balance of the realizable value of the services rendered and the costs and

other charges for the year. Profits on transactions are recognized in the year in which they are
realized, losses are taken as soon as they are foreseeable,
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3.2 Turnover
Turnover couststs of the proceeds of services rendered during the year in connection with the

inventory handling and admimstration for group companies, after deducting tumover tax.

33 Costs
Costs are based on the historical cost convention and allocated to the financial year to which they

relate

3 4 Personnel remuneration
Salaries, wages and social security costs are charged to the profit and loss account when due, and

m accordance with employment contracts and obligations

3 5 Fmancial income and expense
Exchange differences arising upon the settlement of monetary items are recognized 1n the income
statement 1n the period that they arise

3 6 Tax on profit(loss) on ordinary activities
Corporate mcome tax 1s calculated on the profit/(loss) before taxation mn the profit and loss
account, taking into account any tax-exempt iteras and non-deductible expenses. using current tax
rates Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V. 15 part of fiscal umty Sony Overseas Holding
B.V. Receivables or habilities related to corporate income taxes are included in the intercompany

account with Sony Overseas Helding B.V.

4 Financial instruments and risk management
4.1 Currency risk

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V has limited corrency risks on current positions with
trading partners. The currency risks are reduced by using derivatives closed with Sony Treasury.
The Company has entered 1into two foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar and Japanese Yen). The
values as per March 31, 2014 (EUR 1,000, credit, included under other hiabilities and accruals) and
as per March 31, 2013 (EUR 2,000 ,debit, included under financial fixed assets) represent
revaluation against month end rates versus contract rates.

4.2 Credit risk

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Evrope) BV does not have any significant concentrations of credit

nsk
Almost all services are rendered 10 Sony companies.
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Notes to the balance sheet

i

5 Fixed assets

5 I Tangible fixed assets

Movements in tangible fixed assets can be broken down as follows.

Equipment Assets under Total
construction
€ 000 € 000 € 000
Balance as at April 1, 2013
Cost 1,309 0 1,309
Accumulated depreciation (1,200) 0 (1.200)
109 0 109
Movements
Acquired 0 0 0
Disposed (28) 0 (28)
Depreciated (50) 0 (50)
Acc Depreciahon disposed 0 0 0
(78) 0 (78)
Balance as at March 31, 2014
Cost 1,281 0 1,281
Accurmnlated depreciation (1,250) 0 (1,250)
31 0 31
\
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TN

5.2 Intangible fixed assers

Movements 1n mtangible fixed assets can be broken down as follows

Software
€000
Balance as at April 1, 2013
Cost 2,528
Accumulated amortization (1,148)
1.380
Movements
Acquired 15
Amortization (409}
(394)
Balance as at March 31, 2014
Cost 2,543
Accumnilated amortization (1,557)
986

6 Shareholders’ equity

6 1 Share capiral
The authornised share capital of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V 15 € 9,075,604 and
consists of 20,000 shares of € 453 78 each. of which 17,100 shares have been 1ssued and fully

pad
6 2 Accumulated other comprehensive income

2013/ 2014
€ 000

Balance beginning financial year (2,540)
Movement relating to pension obhgations (93)

Balance ending financial year (2,633)

Sony Supply Chain Selutions (Eurgpe) B.V , Tilburg, The Netherlands 14

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Accountants NV,
For identificaton

pwc purposes only




6.3 Retamed carnings

2013 /2014 2012 /2013
€ 000 € 000
Balance beginning financial year 7,213 7,334
Profit appropriation prior year (1,802) 233
Movement relating to pension obligations 355 (354)
Balance ending financial year 5,766 7,213
7 Provisions
7.1 Pensian provision
Movements 1n the pension provision for defined benefit schemes are as follows:
2013 /2014 2012 /2013
€000 € 000
Balance beginning financizl year (928) (521)
Attributed pension costs for defined benefit schemes (428) (349)
Pension contributions paid 240 198
Actuarial gains/ (losses) 17 (417)
Amortization of prior service cost 8) 18
Impact of New Plan Amendments 5 0
Amortization of actuanal gains / (losses) 184 169
Balance ending financial year (918) (928)
The net pension obligation as at March 31, 2014 can be analysed as follows:
March 31, March 31,
2014 2013
€ 000 € 000
Fair value of penston benefit obligation (8,833) (8,154)
Farr value of plan assets 7.915 7.226
(918) (928)
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
] Accountants NV
For identification

PW purposes only




The movement in the pension obligations can be analysed as follows

2013 /2014 2012 /2013
€000 € 000

Balance beginning financial year 8,154 7,219
Service costs 178 62
Interest costs 285 281
Employee contributions 54 59
Actuarial (gains) / losses 174 540
Benefits paid (7 7
Plan Amendment (5) 0
Balance ending financial year 8,833 8,154
The movement 1n the fair value of the plan assets can be analysed as follows

2013 /2014 2012 /2013

€ 000 € 000

Balance beginning financial year 7,226 6,697
Actual return on plan assets 402 278
Employer contributions 240 199
Employee contributions 54 59
Benefits paid (M (7}
Settlements 0 0
Balance ending financial year 7915 7,226
Plan assets break down by category.

2013 /2014 2012 /2013

% %

Other 100 100
The main actuarial assumptions are as follows-

2013/2014 2012 /2013

% %
Discount rate 3.40 3.50
Expected return on plan assets 340 350
Expected salary increases 200 200
Expected indexation of pensions 200 200
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7 2 Jubilee provision
2013 2014

€000

Balance beginning financial year (40)
Movement 2013-2014 5

Balance ending financial year 335

The jubilee provision relates to the jubitee obligation for staff of Sony Supply Chain Solutions
{Europe) BV The obligation 1s valued based on actuanal calculations

7 3 Restructuring
2013/ 2014
€ 000
Balance beginning financial year 0
Additions 2013-2014 700
Balance ending financial year 700

The restructuring provision 1s intended to cover costs directly to restructuring in progress. The
restructuring provision is formed at the moment a detailed plan to recrganise 1s formalised and
communtcated to those affected

8 Other liabilities and accruals

201372014 2012 /2013

€ 000 € 000

Accmal warehousing 7,800 4.556
Accrual freight 3,004 2,158
Accrual Import Duties 4,016 4,334
Other liabilities and accruals 662 437
15,482 11,485

9 Off-balance sheet items

9.! Bank credit facilities
The company has bank credit facilities totaling € 11,000,000 with its bankers
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9 2 Guarantees
The company has, through 1ts bankers, given the followng guarantees which are included within

bank credit facilities

- aguarantee of € 4,126,890 to the Dutch State for payment of import duties and VAT
- a guarantee of € 5,500,000 to Slovakian customs for payment of import duties and VAT

9 3 Capiral and lease commitments
The company has contractual obligations which have not been included in the balance sheet as per

31 March 2014, These items concerns.

< | year |l — 5 vear > 5 years Total

€ 000 € 000 € 000 € 000

Lease contracts cars 78 128 0 206
78 128 0 206

9 4 Corporate Tax
The company (Tilburg entity) forms an income 1ax group with Sony Overseas Holding BV,
Under the standard conditions, the members of the tax group are jointly and severally liable for any
taxes payable by the Group.
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Notes to the profit and loss account

10 Turnover

EU
Other EU
Other

2013 /2014 2012 /2013
€ 000 € 000
80,186 75,150
1,396

5,848 5,308
86,034 81,854

Most Furopean Sony entities are now branches under the umbrella of legal entity Sony Europe Ltd.

11 Operating expenses

2013 /2014 2012 /2013
€ 000 €000
Wages and salanes 2,475 2,029
Social charges 217 220
Pension expenses 111 428 349
Rent 1.300 1,937
Net depreciation of fixed assets 482 482
Freight expenses 39,654 33,339
Storage related expenses 43,529 43,592
Other operating expenses 669 2,014
88,755 £3,962
111 Pension expenses
Pension expenses can be analysed as follows:
2013 /2014 2012 /2013
€000 € 000
Service costs 178 62
Interest costs 285 281
Expected retum on plan assets (211) (155)
Recognised actuanal gains / (losses) attnbuted 184 169
Recognised past service costs (8) )]
428 349
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12 Andit fees

Audit of financial statements

13 Net financial income and expense

Interest income from group companies
Interest and simular income

Interest expenses to group companies
Interest and simular expenses
Exchange rate differences

14 Tax on result

The income tax expense can be broken down as follows-

Result before taxahion
Income tax expense

Effective tax rate
Applicable tax rate

2013 / 2014 2012 /2013
€ 000 € 000

36 42

36 42

2013 / 2014 2012 / 2013
€ 000 € 000

37 43

13 10

(213) (314)

(9 (13)

(8) (14)

(180) (288)

2013 / 2014 2012 /2013
€ 000 €000
(2,901) (2,397)
(733) 595

25.3% 24 8%
22.0% 22.0%

The effective tax rate is different from the applicable tax rate due to deferred income tax asset for the

Slovakian branch

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe)} B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands

pwe

20

PricewaterhouseCoopers
@] Accountants NV

For identification
purpaoses only




15 Information on personnel and remuneration

151 Average number of employees
During the year the average number of employees was
-Tuburg site. 26 (previous year. 28)
-Nitra site: 1 (previous year. 1)

15.2  Remuneration of Managing and Supervisory Boards
In accordance with the provisions of Article 383 of the Dutch Civil Code the remuneration of the

Directors has not been disclosed The Supervisory Directors did not recerve any remuneration

dunng the year ended March 31, 2014 (2012/2013 ml)

Tilburg, 4 July 2014

GD de Wit
Managing Director

T. Miyake
Supervisory Director
(resigned | March 2014)

A. Kobayashi
Supervisory Director
(appointed 1 March 2014)

S.G Paparell
Dhirector

K. Takeda
Supervisory Director
{resipned 1 March 2014}

S Kawasaki
Supervisory Director
(appointed 1 March 2014)
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Other information
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Independent auditors' report

The report of the independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N V., is included on
the next page.

Statutory appropriation of results

According to Article 12 of the articles of association, the result for the year is at the disposal of the
General Meeting of Shareholders

Proposed result appropriation

In the forthcoming General Meeting of Shareholders 1t will be proposed to debut the loss for the
year, amounting to € 2,167,921 to the retained eamings

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 23

PrncewaterhouseCoopers
Accountants NV

For identafication

ch purposes only




s

pwe

Independent auditor’s report

To: the general meeting of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2013/2014 of Sony Supply Chamn Solations
(Europe) B.V,, Tilburg, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2014, the profit and loss
account for the year then ended and the notes, compnsing a summary of accounting poheies and other
explanatory informaton.

Board of directors’ responsibility

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements and for the preparation of the directors’ report, both in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of
the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the board of directors 1s responsible for such internal control as it
determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing
This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, mcluding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the company's 1nternal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the board of directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Ref.: e0330246
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N V., Flight Forum 840, 5657 DV Findhoven, P.O. Box 6365,
5600 HJ Eindhoven, The Netherlands
T: +31 (0} 88 792 00 40, F +31(0) 88 792 94 13, www pwc nl

‘PwG' 18 the brand under which PncewaterhouseCoopers Accountants NV [Chamber of Commercs 34180288%), PricewatsrhousnCoopers Belaslingadwiasurs N V
{Chambar of Commercs 34180264), PricewaiarhouseCoopers Advisary NV (Chamber of Commearca 34180287), PricawaterhouseCoopers Compllanca Servicas BV
(Chambar of Commarce 51414406}, PricewaterhouseCoopers Fensions, Actuana! & Insuranca Sarvices BY (Chamber of Commerce 54226358),

P Coopers B V (Chamber of Commarce 34186289) and other companies operate and provide services. These services are gavemed by Genaral Terms
and Condibons { a!gemone voorwsarden'), which Include provisions regarding our fability Purchases by these companios ara govemed by General Terms and Conditlons
of Purchase (‘aigemena Inkoopvoorwaanden ) At www pwe.nl mere detalled lnfomaton on thase companies Is available, including these General Terms and Conditions
and the Gensral Terma and Conditions of Purchase, whilch have also been filed at the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerca,




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair iew of the financial position of Sony
Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V. as at 31 March 2014, and of its result for the year ther ended in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2 393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we
have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors’ report, to the extent
we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the
information as required under Section 2: 392 sub 1 at b-h has been annexed. Further we report that
the directors’ report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial statements as required
by Section 2: 391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code

Eindhoven, 4 July 2014
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N V.

/A
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Directors Report

Management hereby submuts 1ts report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 Sony
Supply Chain Solutions (Europe} BV, including 1ts branch office at Nitra (Slovakia), concluded
with an operational loss before tax amounting to € 2 4 million As in previous years the Company
is primarily financed with equity As per 31 March 2013 the Company has short term borrowings
amounting to € 7.4 muilion with Sony Treasury No changes are anticipated 1n the financing

structure during the fiscal year 2013
The Company has imited currency risks on current positions with trading partners The currency

risks are reduced by using derivatives As in previous years, the Company has entered into two
foreign exchange contracts (US Dollars and Japanese Yen)

Sony Supply Chain Solution (Europe) BV’s turnover deteriorated by approximately 21% versus
the previous fiscal year as a result of disappointing sales by its customers Although operating
expenses also reduced significantly, this reduction was not sufficient to prevent a negative resuit

This year no sigmficant investments were made by Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV

As per 1 June 2012 Mr S Paparelli was appointed as Director and Mr T Miyake as Supervisory
Director of the Company

With regards to gender diversity in the board of directors, Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe)
B V. does not meet these standards per 31 March 2013 and there 1s no specific policy in place to
actively stnve for the gender diversity as mentioned 1n this provision 1n the law. When filling
vacant board positions, the main consideration 1s and has been to select candidates on their
suitability taking into account all aspects of the specific role, including relevant experience No
candidates have been excluded based on gender

Considering the very recent introduction of this statutory provision, the company will evaluate the
newly introduced standards over the coming year with the aim to decide if and how selection
cntenia should be amended

Headcount will not change significantly during this fiscal year

For the coming fiscal year, starting 1 April 2013, no significant increase of revenues 1s expected
and further substantial cost reductions are targeted

GD de Wiatt

Managing Director

18 September 2013

Sony Supply Chain Solution (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netlterlunds 4
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Balance sheet as at March 31, 2013

(before proposed profit appropriation)

Assets Ref March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
€000 € 000
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 51 109 201
Financial fixed assets 2 0
Intangible fixed assets 52 1,380 1,704
1,491 1,905

Current assets
Recetvables fiom group companies 26,522 30,068
Taxes and social security contributions 2,777 2,442
Prepayments and other receivables 774 971

30,073 33,481
Cash at bank and i hand 1,630 3,594

33,194 38,980
Souy Supply Chan Solutions (Europe) B.V., Trlburg, The Netherlands
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Shareholders’ equity and habilities

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital

Accumulated other comprehenstve mcome

Retamned earnings
Current year’s result

Provisions
Pensions
Jubilee

Current liabilities
Bankoverdraft mtercompany
Trade creditors

Payables to group companies
Social secutity contributions
Other liabilities and accruals

Ref March 31, 2013 March 31,2012
€ 000 € 000

61 7,760 7,760
62 (2 540) (2,638)
63 7,213 7,334
(1,802) 233

10,631 12,690
71 928 521
72 40 42

968 563
7,353 10,602
2,188 4,415
423 778
146 52
11,485 9,880

21,595 25,727

33,194 33,980

Sony Supply Cham Solutions (Europe) B. V., Tilburg, The Netherlani
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Profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2013

Ref 2012 /2013 2011/2012
€ 000 €000

Turnover 9 81,854 104,353
Operating expenses 10 (83,962) (103,721)
Operating Profit (2,108) 632
Net financial income / (expense) 12 288 335
Result before taxation (2,397) 297
Tax on result 13 595 (64)
Net result ( 1,802) 233
Sony Supply Chaue Solutions (Europe) B. V., Titburg, The Netherlands 8
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Notes to the balance sheet and profit and loss account
1 General

1 I Acrivities
The activaties of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V. (SSCS-E B V } performed at
Dongenseweg 200 1n Tilburg, The Netherlands, consist of being the logistical interface between
the Sony production facilities and the sales companies and business groups SSCS-E BV 1s
charging the business for logistics services rendered Almost all logistics services are rendered to

Sony companies
The related cost base is invoiced by CEPL (3" party logistics provider)

The activities of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B 'V performed 1n Nitra, Slovakia, also
consist of logistics activities. These activities are performed by a branch office

1 2 Group structure
Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V , with 1its statutory seat 1n Utrecht, the Netherlands,
belongs to the Sony Group and 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Overseas Holding BV,
Badhoevedorp, the Nethertands The ultimate parent company of the Sony Group 1s Sony
Corporation, Tokyo, Japan The financial statements of Sony Supply Chain Solutions
(Europe) B V. are included in the consolidated financial statements of Sony Corporation

As the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent company, Sony Corporation, are
publicly available, advantage has been taken from the exemption in Dutch Accounting Standards
Board Guideline 360 for preparing and presenting a cash flow statement Sony Supply Chain
Solutions (Europe) B V 15 also part of the fiscal unity Sony Overseas Holding B V.

1 3 Accounting policies
The financial statements weie prepared 1n accordance with the statutory provisions of Part 9, Book
2, of the Netherlands Civil Code and the firm pronouncements 1n the Guidelines for Annual
Reporting 1n the Netherlands as issued by the Dutch Accounting Standards Board

2 Accounting policies for the balance sheet (principles of valuation of assets and
liabilities)

2 I General
Assets and habilities are stated at the amounts at which they were acquired or incurred, unless
indicated otherwise The balance sheet and profit and loss account include references to the notes
Compared with the previous year, there have been no changes 1n the accounting policies applied

2 2 Foreign currencies
Monetary assets and hiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date Transactions conducted 1n the year under review which are
denominated 1n foreign currencies are recognised at the rates of settlement The resulting exchange
differences are credited or charged to the profit and loss account

Souny Supply Cleam Soiutrons (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netlierlainds 9
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2 3 Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation provided on the straight line method at
rates to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Equipment 3 -5 years

2 4 Frnancial fixed assets
Dertvative financial instruments not quoted in an active market and not designated as hedging
instruments are stated at cost after imitial recognition at fair value Changes in the value of these
derivative instruments are recognized directly in the income statement

2 5 Intangible fixed assets
Software licenses acquired are capitalized at acquisition cost and amortized over their estimated
future useful lives 1n 3-5 years Costs associated with maintaining computer software and research
expenditure are recognised 1n the income statement

2 6 Impairment
At each balance sheet date, the Company tests whether there are any indications of assets being
subject to impairment If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s
determined If this proves to be impossible, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs 1s 1dentified An asset 1s subject to impairment 1f 1ts carrying amount
exceeds 1ts recoverable amount, the recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use Fair value less costs to sell 1s determined based on the active market
price.

2 7 Debtoir s
Debtors are stated at face value less any required provisions for bad debts Debtors are of a short
term nature unless stated otherwise

2 8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash represents cash 1n hand, bank balances and deposits with a maturnity of less than 12 months
Current account overdrafts at banks are included under bank overdrafts under the heading current
habilities

2 9 Provisions
Provisions are formed for legally enforceable or constructive obligations existing on the balance
sheet date, the settlement of which 1s hikely to require an outflow of resources whose extent can be
reliably estimated

Provisions are measured on the basis of the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the
obligations as at the balance sheet date. Provisions are stated at the discounted value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligations

Sony Supply Chain Solntions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlunids 10
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Pension provision
The company has a defined benefit scheme in place This provides defined pension benefits to staff
upon reaching retirement age, the amount of which depends on age, salary and years of service.
The pension provision carried on the balance sheet 1s the present value of pension benefit
obligations under the defined benefit scheme net of the fair value of plan assets The required
pension prevision is measured annually by independent actuaries

The present value of the obligation 1s computed by discounting estimated future cash flows, using
interest rates applying to high quality corporate bonds wilh a term roughly consistent with the term
of the related pension obligation

Actuanal gains and losses arising from changes 1n actuanal assumptions exceeding 10% of the
higher of pension benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets at the opening of the financial
year are credited or charged to the profit and loss account over the expected average future years of
service of the employees concerned,

Unrecognized past service costs are taken directly to the profit and loss account unless the changes
in the pension scheme depend on the employees remaining 1n service for a specific period (the
qualifying period) In that case, the past service costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over
the qualifying period. Actuanial gains and losses and past service costs are recognized as
components of other comprehensive income included 1n equity

2 10 Deferred tax assets and habilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized 1n respect of timing differences between valuation
of the assets and liabilities according to fiscal provisions on the one hand and the valuation
principles as used 1n these financial statements on the other Deferred tax assets and habilities are
calculated based on the ruling tax rates as at year-end or future applicable rates, insofar as already
decreed by law. Deferred taxes are valued at nominal value

2 11 Operational lease
Lease contracts for which a large part of the nisk and rewaids incidental to ownership of the assets
does not lic with the company, are recognized on a straight-line basis 1n the profit and loss account
over the term of the contract, taking into account reimbursement received from the lessor

2 12 Current habilities
Current liabilities are stated at face value Current habilities are of a short term nature unless stated

otherwise
3 Accounting policies for the profit and loss account

3 1 General
Profit 1s determined as the balance of the reahizable value of the services rendered and the costs and
other charges for the year Profits on transactions are recogmzed n the year in which they are
realized, losses are taken as soon as they are foreseeable.

Sony Supply Chant Solutions (Europe) B V., Tilburg, The Netherlunds 11
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3 2 Turnover
Turnover consists of the proceeds of services rendered during the year in connection with the

mventory handling and administration for group companies, after deducting turnover tax

3 3 Costs
Costs are based on the historical cost convention and allocated to the financial year to which they

relate,

3 4 Personnel remuneration
Salaries, wages and social security costs are charged to the profit and loss account when due, and

in accordance with employment contracts and obligations

3 5 Financial income and expense
Exchange differences arising upon the settlement of monetary 1items are recognized n the income

statement in the period that they arise

3 6 Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
Corporate mncome tax is calculated on the profit/(loss) before taxation in the profit and loss
account, taking into account any tax-exempt items and non-deductible expenses, using current tax
rates Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV is part of fiscal unity Sony Overseas Holding
B.V Recervables or liabilities related to corporate income taxes are included in the intercompany
account with Sony Overseas Holding B.V

4 Financial instruments and risk management
4 1 Currency risk

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V has limited currency risks on current positions with
trading partners The currency risks are reduced by using derivatives closed with Sony Treasury
The Company has entered 1nto two foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar and Japanese Yen) The
values as per March 31, 2013 (EUR 2 000 ,debit, included under financial fixed assets) and as per
March 31, 2012 (EUR 12.000 ,credit, included under other habilities) represent revaluation against
month end rates versus contract rates

4 2 Credit risk

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V does not have any significant concentrations of credit

risk
Almost all services are rendered to Sony companies

Sony Supply Cham Solutions (Eurape) B.V , Tilburg, The Netherlunds 12
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Notes to the balance sheet

5 Fixed assets

5 1 Tangible fixed assets

Movements in tangible fixed assets can be broken down as follows:

Equipment Assets under Total
construction
€000 €000 €000
Balance as at April 1, 2012
Cost 1,321 5 1,326
Accumulated depreciation (1,125) - (1,125)
196 5 201
Movements
Acquired - - -
Dhisposed (12) (5) (17
Depreciated (84) - (84)
Acc depreciation disposed 9 - 9
(87) ) (92)
Balance as at March 31, 2013
Cost 1,309 - 1,309
Accumulated depreciation (1,200) - (1,200)
109 - 109

Sony Supply Chan Solustons (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands
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5 2 Intangible fixed assets

Movements in intangible fixed assets can be broken down as follows

Software
€000
Balance as at April 1, 2012
Cost 2,453
Accumulated amortization (749)
1 704
Movements
Acquired 75
Amortization (399)
{324)
Balance as at March 31, 2013
Cost 2,528
Accumulated amortization (1,148)
1,380

6 Shareholders’ equity

6 1 Share capital

The authorised share capital of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V 15 € 9,075,604 and
consists of 20,000 shares of € 453 78 each, of which 17,100 shares have been 1ssued and fully

pard

6 2 Accumulated other comprehensive income

Balance beginning financial year
Movement relating to pension obligations

Balance ending financial year

2012/2013
€000

(2,638)
98

{(2,540)

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV,

Tilburg, The Netherlunds
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6 3 Retamned earnings

2012 /2013 2011/2012
€000 € 000
Balance beginning financial year 7,334 7,685
Profit appropiiation prior year 233 (351)
Movement relating to pension obhigations (354) 0
Balance ending financial year 7,213 7,334
7 Provisions
7 1 Pension provision
Movements in the pension provision for defined benefit schemes are as follows
2012 /2013 2001 /2012
€000 € 000
Balance beginning financial year (521) (1,934)
Attnbuted pension costs for defined benefit schemes (349) (379)
Pension contributions paid 198 1,055
Actuarial gains / (losses) (Hn 437
Curtailment 0 127
Amortization of prior service cost ® (8
Amortizatien of actuarial gains / (losses) 169 181
Balance ending financial year (928) (521)
The net pension obligation as at March 31, 2013 can be analysed as follows
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
€ 000 €000
Fair value of pension benefit obligation (8,154) (7,218)
Fair value of plan assets 7,226 6,697
(928) (521)
15
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The movement in the pension obligations can be analysed as follows

2012/2013 2011/2012
€000 € 000
Balance beginning financial year 7,219 12,492
Service costs 62 111
Interest costs 281 237
Employee contributions 59 59
Actuarial (gans) / losses 540 2,193
Benefits paid (N (7)
Settlements 0 (7,866)
Balance ending financial year 8,154 7,219
The movement 1n the fair value of the plan assets can be analysed as follows
2012 /2013 2011/2012
€000 €000
Balance beginning financial year 6,697 10,558
Actual return on plan assets 278 2768
Employer contnbutions 199 1,055
Employee contributions 59 62
Benefits pad (7 (7
Settlements 0 {(7738)
Balance ending financial year 7,226 6,698
Plan assets break down by category
2012 /2013 2011/2012
% %
Other 100 100
The main actuarial assumptions are as follows
2012 /2013 2011/2012
% %
Discount rate 350 390
Expected return on plan assets 350 350
Expected salary increases 200 200
Expected indexation of pensions 200 200
Sony Supply Charn Solutions (Europe) B.V , Tilburg, The Netherlands 16
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7 2 Jubilee provision

2012/2013

£ 000

Balance beginning financial year (42)
Movement 2012-2013 2
Balance ending financial year (40)

The jubilee provision relates to the jubilee obligation for staff of Sony Supply Chain Sotutions
{Europe) BV The obligation 1s valued based on actuarial calculations

8 Off-balance sheet items

& 1 Bank credit facilities
The company has bank credit facilities totaling € 11,000,000 with 1ts bankers

8 2 Guarantees
The company has, through its bankers, given the following guarantees which are included within

bank credit facilities

- aguarantee of € 3,126,890 to the Dutch State for payment of import duties and VAT
- a guarantee of € 5,500,000 to Slovakian customs for payment of import duties and VAT

8 3 Capital and lease commitments
The company has contractual obligations which have not been included in the balance sheet as per

31 March 2013 These 1tems concerns

<1 year 1 — 5 year > 5 years Total

€ 000 € 000 € 000 €000

Lease contracts cars 54 70 - 124
54 70 - 124

8 4 Corporate Tax
The company (Tilburg entity) forms an income tax group with Sony Overseas Holding BV
Under the standard conditions, the members of the tax group are jointly and severally liable for any

taxes payable by the Group

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Enrope) B V., Tilburg, The Neflterlunds 17
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Notes to the profit and loss account

9 Turnover

United Kingdom
Other EU
Other

2012 /2013 201172012
€ 000 €000
75,150 97,801
1,396 1,190

5,308 5,362
81,854 104,353

Most European Sony entities are now branches under the umbrella of legal entity Sony Europe Lid.

10 Operating expenses

2012 /2013 2011/2012
€ 000 €000
Wages and salaries 2,029 3,140
Social charges 220 253
Pension expenses 101 349 380
Rent 1,937 1,876
Net depreciation of fixed assets 482 517
Freight expenses 33,339 50,976
Storage related expenses 43 592 46,207
Other operating expenses 2014 372
83,962 103,721
101 Pension expenses
Pension expenses can be analysed as follows

2012 /2013 2011/2012
€ 000 € 000
Service costs 62 11
Interest costs 281 237
Expected return on pian assets (155) (i41)
Recognised actuanal gaiss / (losses) attributed 169 181
Recognised past service costs (8) (8)
349 380

Sony Supply Chamn Sofutions (Europe} B V., Tburg, The Netherfands 18
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11 Audit fees

2012 /2013 2011 /2012
€000 €000
Audit of financial statements 42 47
42 47
12 Financial income and expense
2012 /2013 2011/2012
€ 000 €000
Interest income from group companies 43 64
Interest and stmilar income 10 61
Interest ¢xpenses to group companies (314 (503)
Interest and similar expenses a3 0
Exchange rate differences (14) 43
(288) (333)
13 Tax
The income tax expense can be broken down as follows
2012 /2013 2011 /2012
€ 000 € 000
Result before taxation (2,397 297
Income tax expense 595 {64)
Effective tax rate 24 8% 21 5%
Apphcable tax rate 220% 25 0%

The effective tax rate 1s different from the applicable tax rate due to deferred income tax asset for the
Slovakian branch

Soity Supply Chain Solutions (Eurape} BV, Tilburg, The Netherlands 19
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14 Information on personnel and remuneration

141  Average number of employees
During the year the average number of employees was
-Tilburg site 28 (previous year* 31)
-Nitra site* 1 (previous year 1)

142 Remuneration of Managing and Supervisory Boards
In accordance with the provistons of Article 383 of the Dutch Civil Code the remuneration of the
Managing Director has not been disclosed The Supervisory Directors did not receive any
remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2013 (2011/2012 n1l)

Tiburg, 18 September 2013

GD de Witt
Managing Director

Y Ezure
Supervisory Director
(resigned 1 June 2012)

T Miyake
Supervisory Director
(appointed 1 June 2012)

S G. Paparelli
Director
(appointed 1 June 2012)

K Takeda
Supervisory Director

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Curope) B V| Tilburg, The Netherlands 20

4 vt oL T A DAL Y
Fia \Gerchesion pwposes wy

=
pwc




Other information
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Auditors' Report

The report of the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N V , 1s included on the next
page

Statutory appropriation of results

According to Article 12 of the articles of association, the result for the year 1s at the disposal of the
General Meeting of Shareholders

Proposed result appropriation

In the forthcoming General Meeting of Shareholders 1t will be proposed to debit the loss for the
year, amounting to € 1,801,763 to the retained earnings

(L8
3%

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands
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Independent auditor's report

To- the general meeting of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2012/2013 of Sony Supply Chamn Solutions
(Europe) B.V , Tilburg, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2013, the profit and loss
account for the year then ended and the notes, comprising a summary of accounting policies and other
explanatory information

Board of directors’ responsibility

The board of directors 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements and for the preparation of the directors’ report, both in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of
the Dutch Civil Code Furthermore, the board of directors 1s responsible for such internal control as 1t
determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit 1n accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing This
requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtamn
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
1n the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 1n order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the board of directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opmnion

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N 'V, Flight Forum 840, 5657 DV Eindhoven, P O Box 6365,
5600 HJ Eindhoven, The Netherlands
T +31(0) 88 792 00 40, F +31 (0) 88 792 94 13, wunw pwe nl

PwC' is the brand under which PricewaterhouseCaopers Accountards NV (Chamber of Commerte 34180285) PricewalarhauseCoopers Belashingadyiseurs NV
{Chamber of Commerca 34180284), PncewalerhouseCoopers Adwsory NV (Chamber of Commerce 34180287) PricewaterhouseCoopers Comphance Services B V
{Chamber of Commerce 51414406), PrcawalerhouseCeopers Pensions Acluarial & Insurance Services BV (Chamber of Commerta 54226368)
PricewaterhouseCoopers 8 V (Chamber of Commerce 34180285) and other companias operate and provida serices These services are governed by General Terms
and Condilions {algemens voarwaarden ), which include provisions regarding our habttity Purchases by ihese companies are govemed by General Terms and Conditians
of Purchase ('algemene inkoopvoorwaarden ) At www pwe nl more datalled information an thesa companies 1s available including these General Terms and Conditions
and ihe General Terms and Canditiens of Purchase whuich have also been filed al the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce




Opwnion

In our opinton, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Sony
Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V as at 31 March 2013, and of its result for the year then ended in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2 393 sub 5 at e and { of the Dutch Civil Code, we
have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors’ report, to the extent
we can assess, has been prepared 1n accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of thas Code, and whether the
information as required under Section 2 392 sub 1 at b-h has been annexed. Further we report that
the directors’ report, to the extent we can assess, 1s consistent with the financial statements as required
by Section 2. 391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civit Code

Eindhoven, 18 September 2013
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants NV

Ornginal has been signed by
drs AHM van Bree RA

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV , 18 September 2013, TvB/eo302561/LK/ab
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Directors’ report
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Directors Report

Management hereby submits its report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012,

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV, including its branch office Nitra (Slovakia) concluded
the year with a sound operational profit amounting to € 0.3 million. As in previous years the
Company is mainly financed with equity. As per 31 March 2012 the Company has short term
borrowings in amount of € 10.6 million with Sony Treasury. No changes are to be expected in the
financing structure with 2012.

The Company has limited currency risks on current positions with trading partners. The currency
risks are reduced by using derivatives. As in previous years, the Company has entered into two
foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar and Japanese Yen).

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV’s turnover deteriorated by some 20%, as a result of
disappoixilting sales by its customers.

This year no substantial investments were made by Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV.

In line with corporate strategy the logistics operation was outsourced to a French Jogistics provider
named CEPL effective 1 April 2011. As per that date, 273 staff were transferred to CEPL. A small

team of 29 employees remained on the Sony payroll.

With regards to the contractual structure, Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) has continued to
be the interface to the sales compames and business groups. For this reason Sony Supply Chain
Solutions (Europe) will continue charging the business for logistics services rendered. The related
dost base will be invoiced to Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) by CEPL.

For the coming fiscal year, starting on | April 2012, no sigmficant increase of revenues is expected
and further cost reductions must be achieved. Part of these cost reductions will be realised by a
higher level of efficiency to be achieved by CEPL. For this reason CEPL has started to implement
a new Warehouse Management System.

It is not expected that headcount will change during this fiscal year.

Management therefore expects that a breakeven result will be achieved for FY12.

As per26kprit28$2Mr. J-L.D. Duquesne resigned as Director of the Company.
29 FEBRUARY 10

Tilburg, 12 Junv%z

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 4
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Balance sheet as at March 31, 2012

(before propesed profit appropriation)

Assets Ref March 31, 2012 March 31,2011
€ 000 €000
Fixed assels
Tangible fixed assets 5.1 201 1,419
Financial fixed assets 0 7
Intangible fixed assets 52 1,704 1,771
1,905 3,197

Current assets
Receivables from groupcompanies 30,068 27,332
Taxes and social security contributions 2,442 2,204
Prepayments and other receivables 971 1,302

33,481 31,338
Cash at bank and i hand 3,594 6,096

40,631

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 6
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Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained carnings

Current year’s result

Provisions
Pensions,
Jubilee

Current labilities
Bankoverdraft intercompany
Trade creditors

Payables to group companies
Social security contributions
Other Liabilities and accruals

Ref March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
€000 €000
6.1 7,760 7,760
6.2 (2.638) (3,376)
6.3 7,334 7,685
233 (351)
12,690 11,718
7.1 521 1,934
7.2 42 196
563 2,130
10,602 7,057
4,415 5,073
778 1,196
52 361
9,880 13,096
25,727 26,783
38,980 40,631

9
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Profit and loss account for the year ended March 31, 2012

Ref 2011 /2012 2010 /2011
€ 000 €000

Turnover 9 104,353 131,156
Operating expenses 10 (103,721) (131,399
Operating Profit 632 (238)
Net financial ncome / (expense) 12 335 208
Result before taxation 297 (446)
Tax on result 13 (64) 95
Net result 233 351

/fy-f Lot
éw(jw \JL
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Notes to the balance sheet and profit and loss account
1 General

1 1 Activities
The activities of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V (SSCS-E B.V.) performed at
Dongenseweg 200 in Tilburg, The Netherlands, consist of being the logistical interface between
the Sony production facilities and the sales companies and business groups. SSCS-E BV is
charging the business for logistics services rendered. Almost all logistics services are rendered to

Sony companies.
The related cost base is invoiced by CEPL (3" party logistics provider).

The activities of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V. performed in Nitra, Slovakia, also
consist of logistics activities. These activities are performed by a branch office.

1.2 Group structure
Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., with 1ts statutory seat in Utrecht, the Netherlands,
belongs to the Sony Group and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sony Overseas Holding B.V.,
Badhoevedorp, the Netherlands. The ultimate parent company of the Sony Group is Sony
Corporation, Tokyo, Japan. The financial statements of Sony Supply Chain Solutions
(Burope) B.V. are included in the consolidated financial statements of Sony Corporation.

As the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate parent company, Sony Corporation, are
publicly available, advantage has been taken from the exemption in Dutch Accounting Standards
Board Guideline 360 for preparing and presenting a cash flow statement. Sony Supply Chain
Solutions (Europe) B.V. is also part of the fiscal unity Sony Overseas Holding B.V.

1 3 Accounting policies
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the statutory provisions of Part 9, Book
2, of the Netherlands Civil Code and the firm pronouncements in the Guidelines for Annual
Reporting in the Netherlands as issued by the Dutch Accounting Standards Board.

2 Accounting policies for the balance sheet (principles of valuation of assets and
Habilities)

2.1 General
Assets and liabilities are stated at the amounts at which they were acquired or incurred, unless
indicated otherwise. The balance sheet and profit and loss account include references to the notes.
Compared with the previous year, there have been no changes in the accounting policies apphed.
Expect for the reclassification of the assets under construction from tangible fixed assets to
intangible fixed assets, the accounting policies applied are consistent with those applied for the
prior year. For comparability purposes, the comparative figures have been reclassified consistently.

2 2 Foreign currencies
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions conducted in the year under review which are

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 9
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denominated in foreign currencies are recognised at the rates of settlement, The resulting exchange
differences are credited or charged to the profit and loss account.

2.3 Tangible fixed assets
Tangijble fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation provided on the straight line method at
rates to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Equipment 3 -5 years

2.4 Financial fixed assets
Derivative financial instruments not quoted in an active market and not designated as hedging
instruments are stated at cost after initial recognition at fair vaiue. Changes in the value of these
derivative instruments are recognized directly in the income statement.

|

2 5 Computer software
Software licenses acquired are capitalized at acquisition cost and amortized over their estimated
future useful lives in 3-5 years. Costs associated with maintaining computer software and research
expenditure are recogmsed in the income statement.

2 6 Impairment
At each balance sheet date, the Company tests whether there are any indications of assets being
subject to impairment. If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined If this proves to be impossible, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs is identified. An asset is subject to impairment if its carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount; the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use, Fair value less costs to sell is determined based on the active market

price.

2.7 Debtors
Debtors are stated at face value less any required provisions for bad debts Debtors are of a short

term nature uniess stated otherwise.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash represents cash in hand, bank balances and deposits with a maturity of less than 12 months.
Current account overdrafts at banks are included under bank overdrafts under the heading current
liabilities.

2 9 Provisions
Provisions are formed for legally enforceable or constructive obligations existing on the balance
sheet date, the settlement of which is likely to require an outflow of resources whose extent can be

reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured on the basis of the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the
obligations as at the balance sheet date. Provisions are stated at the discounted value of the

Sony Supply Chain Selutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 10




expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligations.

Pension provision
The company has a defined benefit scheme in place. This provides defined pension benefits to staff
upon reaching retirement age, the amount of which depends on age, salary and years of service.
The pension provision carried on the balance sheet is the present value of pension benefit
obligations under the defined benefit scheme net of the fair value of plan assets. The required
pension provision is measured annually by independent actuaries.

The present value of the obligation is computed by discounting estimated future cash flows, using
interest rates applying to high quality corporate bonds with a term roughly consistent with the term
of the related pension cbligation.

Actuariai gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions exceeding 10% of the
higher of pension benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets at the opening of the financial
year are credited or charged to the profit and loss account over the expected average future years of
service of the employees concerned.

Unrecognized past service costs are taken directly to the profit and loss account unless the changes
in the pension scheme depend on the employees remaining in service for a specific period (the
qualifying period). In that case, the past service costs are recognized on a straight-line basis over
the qualifying period. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs are recognized as
components of other comprehensive income included in equity.

2.10 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of timing differences between valuation
of the assets and liabilities according to fiscal provisions on the one hand and the valuation
principles as used in these financial statements on the other. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
calculated based on the ruling tax rates as at year-end or future applicable rates, insofar as already
decreed by law. Deferred taxes are valued at nominal value.

2.11 Operational lease
Lease contracts for which a large part of the risk and rewards incidental to ownership of the assets
does not lie with the company, are recognized on a straight-line basis in the profit and loss account
over the term of the contract, taking into account reimbursement received from the lessor.

2 12 Current liabilities
Current liabilities are stated at face value. Current liabilities are of a short term nature unless stated

otherwise.
3 Accounting policies for the profit and loss account
3.1 General
Profit is determined as the balance of the realizable vatue of the services rendered and the costs and

other charges for the year Profits on transactions are recognized in the year in which they are
realized; losses are taken as soon as they are foresecable.

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands n




3.2 Turnover
Tumover consists of the proceeds of services rendered during the year in connection with the
inventory handling and administration for group companies, after deducting turnover tax. Turnover
on rendering of services is recognized based on services rendered until the balance sheet date.

3.3 Costs
Costs are based on the historical cost convention and allocated to the financial year to which they

relate.

3.4 Personnel remuneration
Salaries, wages and social security costs are charged to the profit and loss account when due, and

in accordance with employment contracts and obligations.

315 Financial income and expense
Exchange differences arising upon the settlement of monetary items are recognized in the income

statement in the period that they arise.

3.6 Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
Corporate income tax is calculated on the profit/(loss) before taxation in the profit and loss
account, taking into account any tax-exempt items and non-deductible expenses, using current tax
rates. Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) BV is part of fiscal unity Sony Overseas Holding
B.V. Receivables or liabilities related to corporate income taxes are included in the intercompany
account with Sony Overseas Holding B.V,

4 Financial instruments and risk management
4.1 Currency risk

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Eurcpe) B.V has limited currency nsks on current posrtions with trading
partners. The currency risks are reduced by uvsing derivatives closed with Sony Treasury. The Company has
entered into two foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar and Japanese Yen). The values as per March 31,
2012 (EUR 12.000 ,credit, included under other liabilities) and as per March 31, 2011 (EUR 7.000 ,debet,
included under financial fixed assets) represent revaluation against month end rates versus contract rates.

4.2 Credst risk

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V. does not have any significant concentrations of credit risk.
Almost all services are rendered to Sony companies.

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 12




Notes to the balance sheet

5 Fixed assets
5.1 Tangible fixed assets

Movements in tangible fixed assets can be broken down as follows:

Buildings Equipment Assets under Total
construction
€ 000 € 000 €000 €000
Balance as at April 1, 2011
Cost 3,675 7,801 9 11,485
Accumulated depreciation (3,231) (6,914) - (10,145)
[
444 887 9 1,340
Movements
Acquired - - 5 5
Disposed (3,675) (6,479 © (10,163)
Depreciated - am - M
Acc. depreciation disposed 3,231 5,965 - 9,196
(444) (691) (G)) (1,139)
Balance as at March 31, 2012
Cost - 1,321 5 1,326
Accumulated depreciation - (1,125) - (1,125)
- 196 5 201

Assets with a net book value of € 988.000 have been sold to CEPL at book value.

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 13
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3.2 Itangible fixed assets

Movements in intangible fixed assets can be broken down as follows:

Software
€000
Balance as at April 1, 2011
Cost 2,259
Accumulated depreciation (409)
1.850
Movemepts
Acquired 194
Disposed -
Depreciated (340)
Acc. depreciation disposed -
(146)
Balance as at March 31, 2012
Cost 2,453
Accumulated depreciation (749)
1,704

Inciuded is software under construction with a book value of € 241.000. This software is not yet
utilized, therefore not depreciated.

6 Shareholders’ equity

6.1 Share capital
The authorised share capital of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V. is € 9,075,604 and
consists of 20,000 shares of € 453.78 each, of which 17,100 shares have been issued and fully
paid.

6.2 Accumulated other comprehensive income

2011/2012

€000

Balance beginning financial year (3,376)
Movement relating to pension obligations 738
Balance ending financial year (2,638)

Sony Supply Chain Solufions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 14
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6 3 Retained earnings

2011/2012 2010 /2011
€ 000 € 000
Balance beginning financial year 7,685 5,985
Profit appropriation prior year (351) 1,700
Balance ending financial year 7,334 7,685
7 Provisions
7.1 Pension provision
Movements in the pension provision for defined benefit schemes are as follows:
2011/2012 2010/2011
€000 € 000
Balance beginning financial year {1,934) (2,642)
Attributed pension costs for defined benefit schemes (379) {1,356)
Pension contributions paid 1,055 1,241
Actuarial gains / (losses) 437 202
Curtailment 127 383
Amortization of prior service cost (8) {8)
Amortization of actuarial gains / (losses) 181 246
Balance ending financial year (521) (1,934)
The net pension obligation as at March 31, 2012 can be analysed as follows:
March 31, March 31,
2012 2011
€000 €000
Fair value of pension benefit obligation (7,218) (12,492)
Fair value of plan assets 6,697 10,558
(521) (1,934)

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V,, Tilburg, The Netherlands 15
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The movement in the pension obligations can be analysed as follows:

201172012 2010/2011
€000 €000

Balance beginning financial year 12,492 12,361
Service costs 111 722
Interest costs 237 592
Employee contributions 59 302
Actuarial (gains) / losses 2,193 (1,061)
Benefits paid (7) (41)
Settlements (7.866) -
Curtailment - (383
Balance ending financial year 7,219 12,492
The movement in the fair value of the plan assets can be analysed as follows:

2011/2012 2010/2011

€ 000 € 000

Balance beginning financial year 10,558 9,720
Actual returp on plan assets 2.768 (691)
Employer contributions 1,055 1,240
Employee contributions 62 330
Benefits paid N 41
Settlements (7.738) -
Balance ending financial year 6,698 10,558

The settlement relates to the transfer of the pension rights of employees from SSCS(E) to CEPL.

Plan assets break down by category:

2010/2011 2010/2011

% %

Equity security funds - 8

Others 100 92
The main actuarial assumptions are as follows:

2011 /2012 2010/2011

% %

Discount rate 3.90 5.15

Expected return on plan assets 350 5.15

Expected salary mcreases 2.00 2.00

Expected indexation of pensions 200 200

Sony Supply Chain Selutions (Europe) B. V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 16




7 2 Jubilee provision

2011/2012

€ 000
Balance beginning financial year (196)
Movement relating to transfer staff to CEPL 154
Balance ending financial year (42)

The jubilee provision relates to the jubilee obligation for staff of Sony Supply Chain Solutions
(Europe) BV. The obligation is valued based on actuarial calculations.

8 Off-balance sheet items

|
8.1 Bank credit facilities
The commpany has bank credit facilities totaling € 11,000,000 with its bankers.

8 2 Guarantees
The company has, through its bankers, given the following guarantees which are included within

bank credit facilities:

- a guarantee of € 3,126,890 to the Dutch State for payment of import duties and VAT
- a guarantee of € 5,500,000 to Slovakian customs for payment of import duties and VAT

8 3 Capital and lease commitments
The company bas contractual obligations which have not been included in the balance sheet as per
31 March 2012. These items concerns:

<1 year I —5 year > 5 years Total

€000 €000 €000 €000

Lease contracts cars 80 317 - 116
80 37 - 116

8.4 Corporate Tax
The company (Tilburg entity) forms an income tax group with Sony Overseas Holding B.V.
Under the standard conditions, the members of the tax group are jointly and severally liable for any
taxes payable by the Group.

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands 17




Notes to the profit and loss account

9 Turnover

United Kingdom
France

Spam

The Netherlands
Germany
Hungary
Slovakia

Poland

Other EU

Rest of Europe
Other

201172012

2010/2011

€000

97,801

1,190

5,362

€ 000

65,353
14,072
16,688
2,467
10,302
3,264
3,968
2,573
3,158
78
8,233

104,353

131,156

Most European entities are now branches under the umbrella of legal entity Sony Europe Ltd.

10 Qperating expenses

2011 /2012 2010/2011
€000 €000
‘Wages and salaries 3,140 16,387
Social charges 253 2,870
Pension expenses 9.1 380 1,356
Rent 1,876 7,314
Net depreciation of fixed assets 517 1,357
Freight expenses 50,976 70,058
Storage related expenses 46 207 12,674
Other operating expenses 32 19,978
103,721 131,394
10.1  Pension expenses

Pension expenses can be analysed as follows:
2011 /2012 2010/2011
€000 € 000
Service costs 111 722
Interest costs 237 592
Expected return on plan assets (141) (196)
Recognised actuarial gains / (losses) attributed 181 246
Recognised past service costs (8) ()]
380 1,356

18
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11 Audit fees

Audit of financial statements

12 Financial income and expense

Interest income from group companies
Interest and similar mncome

Interest expenses to group companies
Interest and similar expenses
Exchange rate differences

13 Tax

The income tax expense can be broken down as follows:

Result before taxation
Income tax expense

Effective tax rate
Applicable tax rate

2011 /2012 2010 /2011
€ 000 € 000

47 50

47 50

2011 /2012 2010 /2011
€000 € 000

64 23

61 3

(503) (270)

0 &)

43 36

(335) (208)

2011 /2012 2010 /2011
€ 000 €000

297 (446)

64 95

21,5% 21.3%

25.0% 25.4%

The effective tax rate is different from the applicable tax rate due to deferred income tax asset for the

Slovakian branch.

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tilburg, The Netherlands
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14 Information on personnel and remuneration

141  Average number of employees
During the year the average number of employees was:
-Tilburg site: 31 (previous year: 316)
-Nitra site: 1

142  Remuneration of Managing and Supervisory Boards
President J-L.D.M. Duquesne is not on the payroll of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V.
In accordance with the provisions of Article 383 of the Dutch Civil Code the remuneration of the
Managing Director has not been disclosed. The Supervisory Directors did not receive any
remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2012 (2010/2011: nil).

Tilburg, June 12, 2012

G.D. de Witt K. Takeda
Managing Director Supervisory Director
Y. Ezure

Supervisory Director

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V., Tiiburg, The Netherlands 20
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Auditors' Report

The report of the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V,, is included on the next
page.

Statutory appropriation of results

According to Article 12 of the articles of association, the result for the year is at the disposal of the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Proposed result appropriation

In the forthcoming General Meeting of Shareholders it will be proposed to add the profit for the
year, amounting to € 233,707 to the retained earnings.
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Independent auditor'’s report

To: the General Meeting of Shareholders of Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2011/2012 as set out on pages 5 to 20 of Sony

Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V, Tilburg, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2012,

the profit and loss account for the year then ended and the notes, comprising a summary of accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Board of directors’ responsibility

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements and for the preparation of the directors’ report, both in accordance with Part g of Book 2 of
the Dutch Civil Code, Furthermore, the board of directors is responsible for such internal control as it
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Duteh law, mcluding the Dutch Standards on Auditing.
This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the rsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit alse includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the board of directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., Flight Forum 840, 5657 DV Emdhoven, P.O, Box 6365,
5600 HJ Eindhoven, The Netherlands
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(Chamber of Commerce 34180264), PricewaterhcuseCoopers Advisory NV (Chamber of Commerce 34180267), PricawaterhousaCoopers Gompﬂm Servicos BV
{Chamber of Commerce 51414406), Pricewal BV (Chamber of Commerce 34180288) and clhar comp and p ssrvices These
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Sony
Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B.V. as at 31 March 2012, and of its result for the year then ended in
accordance with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2: 393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we
have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors’ report, to the extent
we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the
nformation as required under Section 2. 392 sub 1 at b-h has been annexed. Further we report that
the directors’ report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial staternents as required
by Section 2: 391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code,

Eindhoven, 12 June 2012
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.

Original has been signed by
drs. AH.M van Bree RA

Sony Supply Chain Solutions (Europe) B V , 30117882/TuB/e0255199/zm
Page2 of 2




SCHEDULE 3

Interim accounts of SEU and SSCSE as at 31 October 2014

16




STS'S6L'Z ST9'v60'vE - OTT'668'TE
62L'SYT 700'05£9Z TET'S69Z
L 'OYE'T €LOVPL L 6L8'c0b’S
vLL'S68'LT LTTYSET 168'6%2°0C
T8P'EST'VT S80L1E'6 96E'9ER Y
LEO'E80'9 615'976°E 97960001
8166651 1€6'598'C 6v8'99vY
2.9'(88'C £889/8'TT GSSYSL YT
60E'LET LY 105100222 0T8'8ET'VLL
£88'G16'0T LZ1'592'SYT 010181291
618'€C9vL TZ0°9€6'06€ 0v8'655°S9Y
P0L'E80°TSE Z69'cYT625'T 96E°/72°088'T
LSY'9EL'6TY ETT'80T'STOT 0L9'vv8'vb'T
L9Y'YTO'T 0STPIS'LY LTL'8TS"6V
950'€69'€2Y £91'S95'TL8T 615'852'962'T
UARYIG HT-das #T-100

21e(Q O] JB3A

2ieq@ o] Ieay

ajep 0} Jea) |eUBUY] Y] 10} 5507
S3IIAI10Y AJRUIPIO UG §507 UO UQITEXE |
uoIlexe} 210)3q SAJAIPE AIBUIPIO UO S507
sadieys Jejiwis pue ajqeied 1sa191u]
AWODU| LRJILIS PUE B]QBAIIIDY 1534231U|
awoou| Suigesado

asuadxa (swodw) dunesado Jayip
s}asse paxid a|qidueiur pue ajgiFuel o UM SIUNOLWE JOYI0 pue uoilenasdaq

$asuUadx] UIWPY [BISUID PUE SA|ES JAYID
$1500 e1s
31304d S504D)

anuanly Buitelado Jaylo pue sajes 30 150D

awoaut Juijesado BY10

Janowin],

Y10¢ IE 1200300 O1 SIUN0JDY WIS - pajillnr] 9doing AUoS



8'852'1

T T8¢~
L STST
999

V'SST-

8'852'T

£ [Z0E-
L8141
995

269

08281

p'esht-

811-

8 98-

CELE

9L

T 6LET-

0 18P

6 191-

9 18-

£ SBE-

9 Z.L8T-

9 I6ET

¢ 9¢5-

¥ 1Z
¥ 6C0T
B ObE

8101

L EEST-

S B0OT

A
9L
81Lc

102 PO Al

08 6¥
L5689
gLz

S6C1

907
100t
88

vT0Z - £TAL

yaq siapjoy=Jeys (210}

1UNO3J® $50| pue Jyo1d

IUNO2IE WINNLA AIBYS

jendes aseys dn pajed

$3A19534 pue eiden

Aujiger) uoisuad Suipnpu) saniigen 1an
Anjiges] uoisuay

Aijiger) uoisuad Suipnpaxa samiqert yap
S3IjIge] O} UoISIADL]

JeaA auo Jaye anp Bulfjep SJUNOWY SIONPaLD
SIIM|IQEI] JUDLINY $59] SITSSY [BYO)L

S313|IqEN] JUILIND) N

JeaA 3uo wiyum anp Buijje} stunowy  $1031PaID
puey i pue yueq je yse)

s10198Q

$H2015

51355y UaLIND

SIUBWISIAL|

s1asse 3|qidue)]

syasse a)qtdueiuy
s1as5Y paxyy

Y102 T€ 19G0I0 IE SE 19915 souejeg - pa3ilii] odoing AUoS




00'¥0T'LLI'E 00°€29'1S¢ 00°185'S2V'E 00'v0Z'LL9'E
00 ¥0€'TS- 00 Z8Y¥'t8 00 98£'SET- 00 v0g'TS-
00'006'vZ9'E 00°SOT'SEE 00'S6.'68Z°€E 00°006'v29'
00 £58'992- 00 €81'v- 00 ¥£9'19¢- 00 £58'592-
00 62T'S0T 00 88£'TT 00 TvL'E8 00 6ZT'S0T
00°829°S8L'E 00°006°LT€E 00°82L'L9V°E 00'879'S8L'E
00 661'678'¢- 000 00 66¥'678°€- 00 66¥'6Z8'¢-
00 0ZT'v¥8L'YS 00 T€Z'8L9'6 00688'SOTL'Sy 00 0TT'Y8L'YS
00°6YZ'0bL'YS 00'TET'966'6 OQO'SIT'VYL'vr  QO'6VZ'OVL'VS

palepiosuo)) palepIosuD])
PI-120 dduatepq pr-dss v0-10

21eq 0] 1BaA

318 Of JB3\

aleq o] Jeap

HNsaY 18N
jnsay uo xe|
uonexe] 310434 HYNsay

sasuadxa |eDUBUY JBLIO
3WOIUI [BIDUBUI J3YI0

1j0id Sunesadp
asuadxe (swodur) Bunesado Jay1p

sasuadx3 Bunelad(
Janouan)

t1I0Z 1€ 190120 03 - JUSWDIEIS S50 PUE 11j01d - SIUN0JIE WG] A § 35958




COMPANY NO. 02422874

THE COMPANIES ACTS 1985 TO 2006

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
SONY EUROPE LIMITED

(Adopted by special resolution passed on 19 March 2010)
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PART 1
PRELIMINARY
L ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

These articles constitute the articles of association of the company No regulations contained
in any statute or subordinate legislation, including the regulations contained in the Schedule 1
to the Companites (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (as amended), apply to the company

INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
2. DEFINED TERMS
In the articles, unless the context requires otherwise
"alternate" or "alternate divector" has the meaning given m article 24,
"appointor" has the meaning given 1 article 24,
"articles" means the company's articles of association,
"auditors" means the auditors of the company,

"bankruptey" includes individual insolvency proceedings in a jurisdiction other than
England and Wales or Northern Ireland which have an effect similar to that of bankruptcy,

"call" has the meaning given n article 37,

"call notice" has the meaning given 1n article 37,

"chairman" has the meaning given in article 13,

“chairman of the meeting" has the meaning given 1n article 62,

"Companies Acts" means the Companies Acts (as defined n section 2 of the Companies Act
2006), in so far as they apply to the company,

"company's lien" has the meaning given in article 35,

“director" means a director of the company, and includes any person occupying the position
of director, by whatever name called and "directors” means the directors or any of them
acting as the board of directors of the company,

"distribution recipient" has the meaning given 1n article 53,

"document” mcludes, unless otherwise spemﬁed any document sent or supphed m electronic
i Y
fonn,

"electronic form" has the meaning given 1n section 1168 of the Companies Act 2006,

"fully paid" in relation to a share, means that the nominal value and any premium to be paid
to the company 1n respect of that share have been paid to the company,

"hard copy ferm" has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Companies Act 2006,

“holder” 1n relation to shares means the person whose name 15 entered in the register of
members as the holder of the shares,
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"instrument" means a document 1n hard copy form,

"lien enforcement notice" has the meaning given n article 36,

"member" has the meanming given n section 112 of the Companies Act 2006,

"office" means the registered office of the company,

"ordinary resolution” has the meaning given in section 282 of the Companies Act 2006,
"paid" means paid or credited as paid,

"parent company" means a company (wherever incorporated) which 1s the holder of not less
than ninety per cent of the issued shares of the company,

"participate", 1n relation to a directors' meeting, has the meaning given n article 11,

“partly paid" in relation to a share means that part of that share's nominal value or any
premium at which 1t was 1ssued has not been paid to the company,

“proxy notice" has the meaning given 1n article 68,

“"secretary” means the secretary of the company or any other person appointed to perform the
duties of the secretary of the company, including a joint, assistant or deputy secretary,

"shares" means shares in the company,
"special resolution” has the meaning given 1n section 283 of the Companies Act 2006,
"subsidiary" has the meaning given n section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006,

"transmittee" means a person entitled to a share by reason of the death or bankruptcy of a
member, or in consequence of the merger or consohdation of any member being a
corporation, or otherwise by operation of law, and

"writing" means the representation or reproduction of words, symbols or other information in
a visible form by any method or combination of methods, whether sent or supplied i
electronic form or otherwise

Unless the context otherwise requires, other words or expressions contained 1n these articles
bear the same meaning as in the Companies Act 2006 as 1n force on the date when these
articles become binding on the company

Unless expressly provided otherwise, a reference to a statute, statutory provision or
subordinate legislation 1s a reference to 1t as 1t 15 in force from time to time, taking account of

(a) any subordmate legislation from time to time made under 1t, and

(b) any amendment or re-enactment and includes any statute, statutory provision or
subordinate legislation which it amends or re-enacts

Clause and paragraph headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not affect
construction

3. LIABILITY OF MEMBERS

The hability of the members s limited to the amount, 1f any, unpaid on the shares held by
them
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PART 2

DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS' POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

4.

DIRECTORS' GENERAL AUTHORITY

Subject to the articles, the directors are responsible for the management of the company's
business, for which purpose they may exercise all the powers of the company

MEMBERS' RESERVE POWER

51 The members may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or reframn from
taking, specified action

52 No such direction imvalidates anything which the directors have done before the
passmg of the resolution

DIRECTORS MAY DELEGATE

61 Subject to the articles, the directors may delegate any of the powers which are
conferred on them under the articles

(a) to such person or management commitiee,

(b) by such means (including by power of attorney),

() to such an extent,
()] i relation to such matters or terntones, and
(e) on such terms and conditions,

as they think fit, and that any such person or management commuttee to which the
directors delegate powers may include individual directors

62 Any such delegation shall, 1 the absence of express provision to the contrary 1n the
terms of delegation, be deemed to include authority to sub-delegate all or any of the
powers delegated

63 The directors may revoke any delegation or sub-delegation in whole or part, or alter
its terms and conditions

ASSOCIATE DIRECTORS

The directors may appoint any person to any office or employment having a designation or
title including the word "director” and/or may attach such a designation or title to any existing
office or employment with the company and may terminate any such appointment or the use
of any such designation or title The inclusion of the word "director” in the designation or
title of any such office or employment shall in no way mply that the holder 1s a director of
the company, and the holder shall not thereby be empowered in any respect to act as, or be
deemed to be, a director of the company for any of the purposes of the articles
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DECISION-MAKING BY DIRECTORS
8. DIRECTORS TO TAKE DECISIONS COLLECTIVELY

81 The general rule about decision-making by directors 1s that any decision of the
directors must be either a majority decision at a meeting or a decision taken n
accordance with article 9

82 It.
(a) the company only has one director, and
(b) no provision of the articles requires 1t to have more than cne director,

the general rule does not apply, and the director may take decisions without regard to
any of the provisions of the articles relating to directors' decision-making, save that
he shall comply with the requirements of article 18

9. UNANIMOUS DECISIONS

91 A decision of the directors 1s taken in accordance with this article when all ehgible
directors indicate to each other by any means that they share a common view on a
matter

92 Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing where each ehgible

director has signed one or more copies of it, or to which each eligible director has
otherwise indicated agreement in writing

93 References 1n this article to ehigible directors are to directors who would have been
entitled to vote on the matter had it been proposed as a resolution at a directors'
meeting (but excluding any director whose vote 1s not to be counted 1n respect of the
particular matter).

94 A decision may not be taken tn accordance with this article 1f the eligible directors
would not have formed a quorum at such a meeting

10. CALLING A DIRECTORS' MEETING

101  Any director may call a directors' meeting by giving notice of the meeting to the
directors or by authorising the secretary (if any) to give such notice

102 Notice of any directors’ meeting must indicate
{a) its proposed date and time,
(b) where 1t 1s to take place, and

(c) if 1t 15 anticipated that directors participating n the meeting will not be 1n the
same place, how it 1s proposed that they should communicate with each other
during the meeting

103 Notice of a directors’' meeting must be given to each director, but need not be in
writing

104 Notice of a directors' meeting need not be given to directors who wawve their
entitlement to notice of that meeting, by giving notice to that effect to the company
not more than 7 days after the date on which the meeting 1s held Where such notice

LONDOCS\3180280 08 4




11.

12.

13.

14,

is given after the meeting has been held, that does not affect the vahidity of the
meeting, or of any business conducted at 1t

PARTICIPATION IN DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

111

112

113

Subject to the articles, directors participate in a directors’ meeting, or part of a
directors' meeting, when

(a) the meeting has been called and takes place 1n accordance with the articles,
and
{b) they can each communicate to the others any information or opinions they

have on any particular item of the business of the meeting

In determining whether directors are participating i a dwectors' meeting, 1t 18
urelevant where any director 15 or how they communicate with each other

If all the directors participating i a meeting are not in the same piace, they may
decide that the meeting 1s to be treated as taking place wherever any of them 1s In
default of such a decision, the meeting shall be deemed to take place where the
largest group of those participating 15 assembled, or, 1f there 15 no such group, where
the chairman of the meeting 1s

QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

12.1

12 2

123

At a directors' meeting, unless a quorum 1s participating, no proposal 18 to be voted
on, except a proposal to call another meeting

The quorum for directors’ meetings may be fixed from tiume to time by a decision of
the drrectors, but it must never be less than two, and unless otherwise fixed it 15 two

If the total number of directors for the tune being 1s less than the quorum required, the
directors must not take any decision other than a decision

(a) to appoint further directors, or
(b) to call a general meeting so as to enable the members to appoimnt further
directors

CHAIRING OF DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

131
132
133
13 4

The directors may appont a director to chair their meetings
The person so appointed for the time being 1s known as the chairman
The directors may terminate the chairman's appointment at any time

If the chairman 1s not participating 1n a directors’ meeting within ten minutes of the
time at which 1t was to start, the participating directors must appomnt one of
themselves to chair 1t

VOTING AT DIRECTORS' MEETINGS: GENERAL RULES

14 1

142

Subject to the articles, each director participating 1n a directors' meeting has one vote

Subject to such disclosure as 1s required by law and the articles, a director who 15
interested 1n an actual or proposed transaction cr arrangement with the company 1s to
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be counted as participating n the decision making process (including for this purpose
any directors’ meeting or part of a directors’ meeting) for quorum and voting
purposes

15. CHAIRMAN'S CASTING VOTE AT DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

151  If the numbers of votes for and against a proposal are equal, the chairman or other
director charing the meeting has a casting vote

152  But this does not apply if, in accordance with the articles, the chairman or other
director 1s not to be counted as participating in the decision-making process for
quorum or voting purposes

16. ALTERNATES VOTING AT DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

A director who 1s also an alternate director has an additional vote on behalf of each appointor

who 18
(a)
(b)

not participating in a directors' meeting, and

would have been entitled to vote 1f they were participating in 1t

17. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

171 Subject to the articles, and provided that he has declared the nature and extent of his
interest m accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acts, a director
notwithstanding his office

(@)

(b)

)

and

(0

()
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may be a party to, or otherwise mterested 1n, any transaction or arrangement
with the company or in which the company 1s otherwise interested,

may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any
transaction or arrangement with, or otherwise nterested 1n, any body
corporate promoted by the company or n which the company 1s otherwise
interested, and

may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any
transaction or arrangement with, or otherwise interested in, any parent
undertaking or substdiary undertaking of the company, or any subsidiary
undertaking of any parent undertaking of the company, or any body corporate
in which any such parent undertaking or subsidiary undertaking 1s interested

unless the directors decide otherwise shall not, by reason of s office, be
accountable to the company for any remuneration or other benefit which he
derives from any such office or employment or from any such transaction or
arrangement or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such
transaction or arrangement shall be hable to be avoided on the ground of any
such mterest or benefit,

shall not infringe his duty to avond a situation in which he has, or can have, a
direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the
mterests of the company as a result of holding any such office or employment
with or being a party to any such transaction or arrangement or otherwise
being nterested in any such body corporate,




172

173

174

(i)  shall not be required to disclose to the company, or use m performing his
duties as a director of the company, any information relating to any such
office or employment 1f to make such a disclosure or use would result in a
breach of a duty or obligation of confidence owed by him 1n relation to or in
connection with that office, employment, transaction, arrangement or interest,
and

(v) may absent himself from discussions, whether 1n meetings of the directors or
otherwise, and exclude himself from the receipt or use of information, which
will or may relate to that office, employment, transaction, arrangement or
Interest

The directors may authorise (subject to such terms and conditions, 1f any, as they may
think fit to impose from time to time, and subject always to their right to vary or
terminate such authorisation), to the fullest extent permitted by law

(a) any matter which would otherwise result in a director mfringing his duty to
avold a situation in which he has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that
conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the company and
which may reasonably be regarded as likely to give nse to a conflict of
interest (aincluding a conflict of mnterest and duty or conflict of duties), and

(b) a director to accept or continue 1 any office, employment or position in
additton to his office as a director of the company (not bemg an office,
employment or position which the director 1s authorised to hold pursuant te
article 17(1)(b) and article 17(1)(c))

and may authorise the manner in which a conflict of interest arising out of such
matter, office, employment or position may be dealt with, either before or at the time
that such a conflict of interest arises

Any authonsation pursuant to article 17(2) 1s effective only 1f

(a) the matter in question was proposed 1in writing for consideration at a
directors' meeting, 1in accordance with normal procedures or in such other
manner as the directors may approve,

(b) any requirement as to the quorum at the meeting at which the matter 1s
considered is met without counting the director i question or any other
interested director, and

(c) the matter was agreed to without their voting or would have beent agreed to if
their votes had not been counted

In relation to any matter, office, employment or position that has been authorised
pursuant to article 17(2) (subject to such terms and conditions, 1f any, as the directors
may think fit to impose from time to time, and subject always to their right to vary or
terminate such authorisation or the permissions set out below)

(a) the director shall not be required to disclose to the company, or use In
performing his duties as a director of the company, any information relating
to such matter, or such office, employment or position, if to make such a
disclosure or use would result in a breach of a duty or obhgation of
confidence owed by him 1n relation to or 1in connection with that matter, or
that office, employment or position,
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(b)

(c)

the director may absent himself from discussions, whether in directors'
meetings or otherwise, and exclude himself from the receipt or use of
information, which will or may relate to that matter, or that office,
employment or position, and

the director shall not, by reason of his office as a director of the company, be
accountable to the company for any remuneration or other benefit which he
derives from any such matter, or from any such office, employment or
position

18. RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT

The directors must ensure that the company keeps a record, in writg, for at least 10 years
from the date of the decision recorded, of every unanimous or majority decision taken by the

directors

19. DIRECTORS' DISCRETION TO MAKE FURTHER RULES

Subject to the articles, the directors may make any rule which they think fit about how they
take decisions, and about how such rules are to be recorded or communicated to directors

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

20, METHODS OF APPOINTING AND REMOVING DIRECTORS

201  The parent company (if any) may at any time and from time to time appomt any
person who 1s willing to act as a director, and 1s permitted by law to do so, to be a
director, erther to fill a vacancy or as an additional director, and may remove any
director from office

202  Any appointment or removal of a director in accordance with article 20(1) must be
effected by notice in wniting to the company signed by the person making the
appointment or removal or m any other manner approved by the directors

21. TERMINATION OF DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT

A person ceases to be a director as soon as

(2)

(b)
(c)

(d)

()

LONDOCS\3180280 08

that person ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the
Compantes Act 2006 or 1s prohibited from being a director by law,

a bankruptcy order 1s made against that person,

a composition 1s made with that person’s creditors generally 1n satisfaction of
that person's debts,

a registered medical practitioner who 1s treating that person gives a written
opinion to the company stating that that person has become physically or
mentally mecapable of acting as a director and may remain so for more than
three months,

by reason of that person's mental health, a court makes an order which whoily
or partly prevents that person from personally exercising any powers or rights
which that person would otherwise have,




22

23.

43} notification 1s received by the company from the director that the director is
resigning from office as director, and such resignation has taken effect n
accordance with its terms,

(2) that person 1s convicted of a criminal offence involving fraud or dishonesty
and the dwrectors resolve that he shall for that reason cease to be a director;

(h) that person 1s removed as a director n accordance with article 20(1), or

(1) that person ts requested to resign in writing by all of the other directors In
calculating the number of directors who are required to make such a request
to the directer

(A) an alternate director appointed by him acting 1n his capacity as such
shall be excluded, and

B) a director and any alternate director appointed by him and acting in
his capacity as such shall constitute a single director for this purpose,
so that the signature of either shall be sufficient

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

221  Directors, provided that they have obtained the approval of the parent company (if
any), may undertake any services for the company that the directors decide

222  Directors, provided that they have obtamed the approval of the parent company (if
any), are entitled to such remuneration as the directors determine

(a) for therr services to the company as directors, and

(b) for any other service which they undertake for the company
223  Subject to the articles, a director's remuneration may

(a) take any form, and

(b) include any arrangements 1 connection with the payment of a pension,
allowance or gratutty, or any death, sickness or disability benefits, to or n
respect of that director

224  Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors' remuneration accrues from day to
day

DIRECTORS' EXPENSES

The company may pay any reasonable expenses which the directors properly mcur n
connection with their attendance at

(a) meetings of directors or commuttees of directors,

(b) general meetings, or

(c) separate meetings of the holders of any class of shares or of debentures of the
company,

or otherwise 1n connection with the exercise of thewr powers and the discharge of their
responsibilities 1n relation to the company
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ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

24, APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF ALTERNATES

241

242

Any director (the "appointor") may appoint as an alternate any other director, or any
other person who 1s willing to act as a director, and 1s permitted by law to do so, and
who has been approved by decision of the directors, to

(a) exercise that director's powers, and
(b) carry out that director's responsibilities,

in relation to the taking of decisions by the directors 1n the absence of the alternate's
appotor.

Any appointment or removal of an alternate must be effected by notice in writing to
the company signed by the appointor or 1 any other manner approved by the
directors

25. RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

251

2512

253

254

255

An alternate director may act as alternate director for more than one director and has
the same rights 1n relatton to any decision of the directors as the alternate's appointor

Except as the articles specify otherwise, alternate directors

(a) are deemed for ail purposes to be directors,

(b) are liable for their own acts and cmissions,

(c) are subject to the same restrictions as their appointors, and
{d) are not deemed to be agents of or for their appointors

A person who 1s an alternate director and also a director 1s entitled, in the absence of
his appomtor, to a separate vote on behalf of his appomtor, 1in addition to his own
vote, on any decision of the directors, but shall not be counted as more than one
director for the purposes of determining whether a quorum 1s present

A person who 1s an alternate director but not a director

(a) may be counted as participating for the purposes of determining whether a
quorum 15 present (but only 1f that person’s appointor 1s not participating),

(b) may participate in taking a decision m accordance with article 9 (but only 1f
that person's appomntor has not so participated), and

(©) shall not be counted as more than one director for the purposes of articles
25(4)(a) and 25(4)(b).

An alternate director 1s not entitled to recerve any remuneration from the company for
serving as an alternate director except such part of the alternate's appointor's
remuneration as the appointor may direct by notice in writing made to the company

26. TERMINATION OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORSHIP

An alternate director's appomtment as an alternate terminates
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SECRETARY

27.

(a) when the alternate's appoimntor revokes the appointment by notice to the
company mn writing specifying when 1t 1s to terminate,

) on the occurrence in relation to the alternate of any event which, if 1t occurred
n relation to the alternate's appointor, would result 1n the termination of the
appomtor's appointment as a director,

() on the death of the alternate's appointor,
(d) when the alternate's appointor's appointment as a director terminates, or

(e) when the alternate director resigns his office by notice to the company

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF SECRETARY

271

272

PART 3

Subject to the articles, the secretary may be appointed by the parent company (1f any)
or the directors for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they
may think fit and any secretary so appointed may be removed by such appontor(s)

In the case that two or more jomnt secretaries have been appomted pursuant to the
provisions of this article 27, each shall have full authority to act alone and
independently of the other

SHARES AND DISTRIBUTIONS

ISSUE OF SHARES

28.

29,

30.

POWERS TO ISSUE DIFFERENT CLASSES OF SHARE

281  Subject to the articles, but without prejudice to the rnights attached to any existing
share, the company may 1ssue shares with such nights or restrictions as may be
determined by ordinary resolution or, subject to and m default of such determmation,
as the directors may determine

282 The company may issue shares which are to be redeemed, or are liable to be
redeemed at the option of the company or the holder, and the directors may determine
the terms, conditions and manner of redemption of any such shares

POWER TO ALLOT SHARES

291  None of the requirements of sections 561 and 562 of the Compames Act 2006 shall
apply to the company

292  The directors shall not exercise any power of the company to allot shares, or to grant

rights to subscribe for or to convert any security inte shares, except with the prior
approval of the parent company (if any) save that no such approval shall be required
1n respect of any allotment or grant to the parent company (if any)

PAYMENT OF COMMISSIONS ON SUBSCRIPTION FOR SHARES

301

The company may pay any person a commuission 1n consideration for that person

(a) subscribing, or agreemng to subscribe, for shares, or
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(b) procuring, or agreeing to procure, subscriptions for shares
302  Any such commission may be paid

(a) in cash, or 1n fully paid or partly paid shares or other securities, or partly n
one way and partly in the other, and

(b) in respect of a conditional or an absolute subscription
INTERESTS IN SHARES
a1. COMPANY NOT BOUND BY LESS THAN ABSOLUTE INTERESTS

Except as required by law, no person 1s to be recognised by the company as holding any share
upon any trust, and except as otherwise required by law or the articles, the company 1s not 1n
any way to be bound by or recognise any interest 1n a share other than the holder's absclute
ownership of 1t and all the rights attaching to 1t

SHARE CERTIFICATES
32. CERTIFICATES TO BE ISSUED

321 The company must 1ssue each member with one or more certificates m respect of the
shares which that member holds

322  Except as otherwise specified mn the articles, all certificates must be 1ssued free of
charge

32.3  No certificate may be 1ssued 1n respect of shares of more than one class

324  If more than one person holds a share, only one certificate may be 1ssued 1n respect of
it

33. CONTENTS AND EXECUTION OF SHARE CERTIFICATES

331  Every certificate must specify

(a) 1n respect of how many shares, of what class, 1t 15 issued,
(b) the nominal value of those shares,

(c) the amount paid up on them, and

(d) any distinguishing numbers asstgned to them

332  Certificates must
(a) have affixed to them the company's common seal, or
(b) be otherwise executed m accordance with the Companies Acts
34, REPLACEMENT SHARE CERTIFICATES
341 Ifacertficate 1ssued in respect of a member's shares 1s
(a) damaged or defaced, or

{b) said to be lost, stolen or destroyed,
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that member 15 entitled to be 1ssued with a replacement certificate 1n respect of the
same shares

342 A member exercising the right to be issued with such a replacement certificate

(a) may at the same time exercise the right to be 1ssued with a single certificate
or separate certificates;

(b) must return the certificate which 1s to be replaced to the company 1f 1t s
damaged or defaced, and

(c) must comply with such conditions as to evidence, indemnity and the payment
of a reasonable fee as the directors decide

PARTLY PAID SHARES

35. COMPANY'S LIEN OVER PARTLY PAID SHARES

351

352

353

The company has a lien (the "company's lien") over every share which 1s partly paid
for any part of

(a) that share’s nominal value, and
)] any premium at which 1t was 1ssued,

which has not been paid to the company, and which 1s payable immediately or at
some time 1n the future, whether or not a call notice has been sent 1n respect of 1t

The company's lien over a share
(a) takes prionity over any third party's interest in that share, and

(b) extends to any dividend or other money payable by the company in respect of
that share and (if the lien 15 enforced and the share is sold by the company)
the proceeds of sale of that share.

The directors may at any time decide that a share which 1s or would otherwise be
subject to the company's lien shall not be subject to 1t, either wholly or 1n part

36. ENFORCEMENT OF THE COMPANY'S LIEN

36 1

362

Subject to the provisions of this article, If

(a) a lien enforcement notice has been given n respect of a share, and
(b) the person to whom the notice was given has failed to comply with it,
the company may sell that share in such manner as the directors decide

A hen enforcement notice

(a) may only be given 1n respect of a share which 1s subject to the company's
lien, 1n respect of which a sum 1s payable and the due date for payment of
that sum has passed,

(b) must specify the share concerned,

(c) must require payment of the sum payable within 14 days of the notice,
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37.

(d) must be addressed etther to the holder of the share or to a transmittee of that
holder, and

(e) must state the company's intention to sell the share 1if the notice 1s not
complied with

363  Where shares are sold under this article

(a) the directors may authorise any person to execute an mstrument of transfer of
the shares to the purchaser or to a person nominated by the purchaser, and

(b) the transferee 1s not bound to see to the application of the consideration, and
the transferee's title is not affected by any irregulanty i or invalidity of the
process leading to the sale

364  The net proceeds of any such sale (after payment of the costs of sale and any other
costs of enforcing the lien) must be applied

(a) first, in payment of so much of the sum for which the lien exists as was
payable at the date of the lien enforcement notice,

(b) second, to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale, but only
after the certificate for the shares sold has been surrendered to the company
for cancellation or a suitable indemnity has been given for any lost
certificates, and subject to a lien equivalent to the company's lien over the
shares before the sale for any money payable 1n respect of the shares after the
date of the hen enforcement notice

365 A statutory declaration by a director or the secretary (if any) that the declarant 15 a
drector or the secretary and that a share has been sold to satisfy the company's hen
on a specified date

(a) 15 conclusive evidence of the facts stated in it as against all persons claiming
to be entitled to the share, and

(b) subject to compliance with any other formalities of transfer required by the
articles or by law, constitutes a good title to the share

CALL NOTICES
37t Subject to the articles and the terms on which shares are allotted, the directors may
send a notice (a "call notice”) to a member requiring the member to pay the company

a specified sum of money (a "call") which 1s payable n respect of shares which that

member holds at the date when the directors decide to send the call notice

372 A call notice’

(a) may not require 2 member to pay a call which exceeds the total sum unpaid
on that member's shares (whether as to the share's nommal value or any
amount payable to the company by way of premium),

(b) must state when and how any call to which 1t relates 1t 1s to be paid, and

(c) may permit or require the cali to be paid by instalments

373 A member must comply with the requirements of a call notice, but no member 15

obliged to pay any call before 14 days have passed since the notice was sent
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38.

39.

40.

374  Before the company has recetved any call due under a call notice the directors may
(a) revoke it wholly or m part, or
(b) specify a later time for payment than is specified 1n the notice,
by a further notice 1n writing to the member mn respect of whose shares the call 15
made.

LIABILITY TO PAY CALLS

381 Laability to pay a call 1s not extinguished or transferred by transferring the shares 1n
respect of which 1t is required to be paid

382  Jomnt holders of a share are jointly and severally hable to pay all calls 1n respect of
that share

383  Subject to the terms on which shares are allotted, the directors may, when 1ssuing

shares, provide that call notices sent to the holders of those shares may require them
(a) to pay calls which are not the same, or

() to pay calls at different times

WHEN CALL NOTICE NEED NOT BE ISSUED

391

392

A call notice need not be 1ssued in respect of sums which are specified, 1n the terms
on which a share 15 1ssued, as being payable to the company n respect of that share
{whether 1n respect of nominal value or premium)

(a) on allotment,
(b) on the occurrence of a particular event, or
{c) on a date fixed by or in accordance with the terms of 1ssue

But if the due date for payment of such a sum has passed and it has not been paid, the
holder of the share concerned 1s treated 1n all respects as having failed to comply with
a call notice 1n respect of that sum, and 15 hable to the same consequences as regards
the payment of interest and forfeiture

FATLURE TO COMPLY WITH CALL NOTICE: AUTOMATIC CONSEQUENCES

401

402

If a persen 1s liable to pay a call and fails to do so by the call payment date
(a) the directors may 1ssue a notice of intended forferture to that person, and

(b) unti] the call 1s paid, that person must pay the company mterest on the call
from the call payment date at the relevant rate

For the purposes of this article

(a) the "call payment date” 1s the time when the call notice states that a call 15
payable, unless the directors give a notice specifying a later date, in which
case the "call payment date" 1s that later date,

(b) the "relevant rate" is
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() the rate fixed by the terms on which the share i respect of which the call 1s
due was allotted,

(1) such other rate as was fixed in the call notice which required payment of the
call, or has otherwise been determined by the directors, or

(it  1f no rate 15 fixed in either of these ways, 5 per cent per annum

403  The relevant rate must not exceed by more than 5 percentage points the base lending
rate most recently set by the Monetary Policy Commuitee of the Bank of England 1n
connection with 1ts responsibilities under Part 2 of the Bank of England Act 1998

404  The directors may waive any obligation to pay interest on a call wholly or 1n part
41. NOTICE OF INTENDED FORFEITURE
A notice of intended forfeiture

(a) may be sent in respect of any share n respect of which a call has not been
paid as required by a call notice,

(b) must be sent to the holder of that share or to a transnuttee of that holder,

(c) must require payment of the call and any accrued interest and all expenses
that may have been mcurred by the company by reason of such non-payment
by a date which 1s not less than 14 days after the date of the notice,

(d) must state how the payment 1s to be made, and

(e) must state that if the notice 1s not complied with, the shares in respect of
which the call 1s payable will be hiable to be forfeited

42. DIRECTORS' POWER TO FORFEIT SHARES

If a notice of intended forfeiture 15 not complied with before the date by which payment of the
call 1s required m the notice of mtended forfeiture, the directors may decide that any share 1n
respect of which 1t was given 1s forfeited, and the forfeiture 1s to include all dividends or other
moneys payable in respect of the forfeited shares and not paid before the farfeiture

43. EFFECT OF FORFEITURE
431  Subject to the articles, the forfeiture of a share extinguishes

(a) all interests in that share, and all clauns and demands against the company 1n
respect of 1t, and

(b) all other nghts and labilities incidental to the share as between the person
whose share 1t was prior to the forfeiture and the company

432  Any share which 1s forfeited 1n accordance with the articles
(a) 15 deemed to have been forfeited when the directors decide that 1t 1s forfeited,
(b) i5 deemed to be the property of the company, and
© may be sold, re-allotted or otherwise disposed of as the directors think fit

433  Ifaperson's shares have been forfeited
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(a) the company must send that perscn notice that forfeiture has occurred and
record 1t 1n the register of members;

(b) that person ceases to be a member in respect of those shares,

{©) that person must surrender the certificate for the shares forfeited to the
company for cancellation,

(d) that person remains liable to the company for all sums payable by that person
under the articles at the date of forferture in respect of those shares, including
any interest (whether accrued before or after the date of forferture), and

{e) the directors may waive payment of such sums wholly or in part or enforce
payment without any allowance for the value of the shares at the tme of
forferture or for any constderation received on their disposal

434 At any time before the company disposes of a forfeited share, the directors may
decide to cancel the forfeiture on payment of all calls, interest and expenses due 1n
respect of 1t and on such other terms as they think fit

44, PROCEDURE FOLLOWING FORFEITURE
441  If a forferted share 15 to be disposed of by being transferred, the company may receive
the consideration for the transfer and the directors may authorise any person to

execute the instrument of transfer

4472 A statutory declaration by a director or the secretary (1f any) that the declarant 1s a
director or the secretary and that a share has been forferted on a specified date

(a) 15 conclusive evidence of the facts stated 1n 1t as against all persons claiming
to be entitled to the share, and

(b) subject to compliance with any other formalities of transfer required by the
articles or by law, constitutes a good title to the share

443 A person to whom a forfeited share is transferred 1s not bound to see to the
application of the consideration (1f any) nor 1s that person's title to the share affected
by any irregularity mn or mvalidity of the process leading to the forfeiture or transfer
of the share

44 4 If the company sells a forfeited share, the person who held 1t prior to its forfeiture 1s
entitled to receive from the company the proceeds of such sale, net of any
commussion, and excluding any amount which

(a) was, or would have become, payable, and

(b) had not, when that share was forfeited, been paid by that person n respect of
that share

but no interest 15 payable to such a person in respect of such proceeds and the
company 18 not required to account for any money earned on them

45. SURRENDER OF SHARES
451 A member may surrender any share

(a) in respect of which the directors may 1ssue a notice of intended forfenture,
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452
453

454

(b) which the directors may forfeit, or

©) which has been forfeited

The directors may accept the surrender of any such share

The effect of surrender on a share 15 the same as the effect of forfeiture on that share

A share which has been surrendered may be dealt with in the same way as a share
which has been forfeited

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

46. TRANSFERS OF SHARES

46.1

462

463
46 4

46 5

46 6

Shares may be transferred by means of an mstrument of transfer in any usual form or
any other form approved by the directors, which 1s executed by or on behalf of

(a) the transferor, and
(b) (if any of the shares 1s partly paid) the transferee

No fee may be charged for registering any instrument of transfer or other document
relating to or affecting the title to any share

The company may retatn any instrument of transfer which 1s registered

The transferor remains the holder of a share until the transferee's name 1s entered in
the register of members as holder of 1t

The directors shall register a transfer of shares which is’
(a) lodged at the office or such other place as the directors have appointed,

(b) accompanied by the certificate for the shares to which 1t relates, or such other
evidence as the directors may reasonably require to show the transferor's right
to make the transfer, or evidence of the right of someone other than the
transferor to make the transfer on the transferor's behalf, and

(c) presented for registration duly stamped or 1s an exempt transfer within the
Stock Transfer Act 1982,

and may, n therr absolute discrefion, refuse to register any other transfer of shares

If the directors refuse to register the transfer of a share, the nstrument of transfer
must be returned to the transferee with the notice of refusal unless they suspect that
the proposed transfer may be fraudulent

47. TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

471

47 2

If title to a share passes to a transmittee, the company may only recognise the
transmittee as having any title to that share

Nothing in these articles releases the estate of a deceased member from any habihty
in respect of a share solely or jointly held by that member
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48. TRANSMITTEES' RIGHTS

481

432

A transmittee who produces such evidence of entitlement to shares as the directors
may properly require

(a) may, subject to the articles, choose either to become the holder of those
shares or to have them transferred to another person, and

b subject to the articles, and pending any transfer of the shares to another
person, has the same rights as the holder had

But transmittees do not have the right to attend or vote at a general meeting, or agree
to a proposed written resolution, m respect of shares to which they are entitled, by
reason of the holder's death or bankruptcy or otherwise, unless they become the
holders of those shares

49, EXERCISE OF TRANSMITTEES' RIGHTS

49 1

49 2

493

Transmittees who wish to become the holders of shares to which they have become
entitled must notify the company in writing of that wish

If the transmuttee wishes to have a share transferred to another person, the transmittee
must execute an instrument of transfer n respect of 1t

Any transfer made or executed under this article 1s to be treated as 1f 1t were made or
executed by the person from whom the transmittee has derived rights 1n respect of the
share, and as 1f the event which gave rise to the transmission had not occurred

50. TRANSMITTEES BOUND BY PRIOR NOTICES

If a notice 15 given to a member 1n respect of shares and a transmittee 1s entitled to those
shares, the transmittee 1s bound by the notice 1f it was given to the member before the
transmittee's name has been entered 1n the register of members

DISTRIBUTIONS

51. PROCEDURE FOR DECLARING DIVIDENDS

511

512

513

514

515

The company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends

A dividend must not be declared unless the directors have made a recommendation as
to 1ts amount Such a dividend must not exceed the amount recommended by the
directors

No dividend may be declared or paxd unless 1t 1s in accordance with members'
respective rights

Unless the members' resolution to declare a dividend, or the terms on which shares
are 1ssued, specify otherwise, 1t must be paid by reference to each member's holding
of shares on the date of the resolution or deciston te declare or pay it

If the company's share capital 1s divided into different classes, no dividend may be
paid on shares carrying deferred or non-preferred nghts if, at the time of payment,
any preferential dividend 1s 1n arrear
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516 If the directors act in good faith, they do not incur any habihity to the holders of
shares conferring preferred rights for any loss they may suffer by the tawful payment
of a dividend on shares with deferred or non-preferred nights

52. CALCULATION OF DIVIDENDS

521 Except as otherwise provided by the articles or the rights attached to shares, all
dividends must be*

(a)

(b

declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the shares on which
the dividend 1s paid; and

apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on the shares
during any portion or portions of the period 1n respect of which the dividend
15 paid

522 Ifany share s 1ssued on terms providing that 1t ranks for dividend as from a particular

(a)

(b)

(©

\
( (d)

date, that share ranks for dividend accordingly
r 53. PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS

531  Where a dividend or other sum which 1s a distribution 1s payable in respect of a share,
it must be paid by one or more of the following means

transfer to a bank or building society account specified by the distribution
recipient either 1n writing or as the directors may otherwise decide,

sending a cheque made payable to the distribution recipient by post to the
distribution recipient at the distribution recipient's registered address (if the
distribution recipient 1s a holder of the share), or (in any other case) to an
address specified by the distribution recipient either in writing or as the
directors may otherwise decide,

sending a cheque made payable to such person by post to such person at such
address as the distribution recipient has specified either in writing or as the
directors may otherwise decide, or

any other means of payment as the directors agree with the distribution
reciptent either in writing or by such other means as the directors decide

532 In the articles, the "distribution recipient" means, in respect of a share n respect of
which a dividend or other sum 1s payable

(a)
(b)

©

COMPANY

541 If
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the holder of the share, or

if the share has two or more joint holders, whichever of them 1s named first 1n
the register of members, or

if the holder 1s no longer entitled to the share by reason of death or
bankruptey, or in consequence of the merger or consolidation of any helder
being a corporation, or otherwise by operation of law, the transmittee

54. DEDUCTIONS FROM DISTRIBUTIONS IN RESPECT OF SUMS OWED TO THE

20




(a) a share 1s subject to the company's lien, and
(b) the directors are entitled to 1ssue a lien enforcement notice 1n respect of 1t,

they may, instead of 1ssuing a len enforcement notice, deduct from any dividend or
other sum payable in respect of the share any sum of money which 15 payable to the
company mn respect of that share to the extent that they are entitled to require payment
under a lien enforcement notice

542 Money so deducted must be used to pay any of the sums payable mn respect of that
share

543  The company must nofify the distribution recipient in writing of
(a) the fact and amount of any such deduction,

(b) any non-payment of a dividend or other sum payable 1n respect of a share
resulting from any such deduction, and

() how the money deducted has been applied
55, NO INTEREST ON DISTRIBUTIONS

The company shall not be obliged to pay mnterest on any dividend or other sum payable 1n
respect of a share unless otherwise provided by

(a) the terms on which the share was 1ssued, or
() the provisions of another agreement between the holder of that share and the
company,

56. UNCLAIMED DISTRIBUTIONS
561  All dividends or other sums which are
(a) payable n respect of shares, and
(b) unclammed after having been declared,

may be ivested or otherwise made use of by the directors for the benefit of the
company until claimed

562  The payment of any such dividend or other sum into a separate account does not
make the company a trustee in respect of it

563 If

(a) twelve years have passed from the date on which a dividend or other sum
became due for payment, and

(b) the distribution reciprent has not claimed 1,

the distribution recipient 1s no longer entitled to that dividend or other sum and it
ceases to remain owing by the company
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57. NON-CASH DISTRIBUTIONS

571  Subject to the terms of 1ssue of the share in question the company may, by ordmmary
resolution, on the recommendation of the directors decide to pay all or part of a
dividend or other distribution payable in respect of a share by transferring non-cash
assets of equivalent value (including, without limitation, shares or other securities in

any company)

572  For the purposes of paying a non-cash distribution, the directors may make whatever
arrangements they think fit, including, where any difficulty anses regarding the
distribution

(a) fixing the value of any assets,

(b) paying cash to any distribution recipient on the basis of that value m order to
adjust the rnights of recipients, and

{c) vesting any assets 1n trustees
58. WAIVER OF DISTRIBUTIONS

Distribution recipients may waive their entitlement to a dividend or other distribution payable
n respect of a share by giving the company notice 1 writing to that effect, but 1f

(a) the share has more than one holder, or

(b) more than one person is entitled to the share, whether by reason of the death
or bankruptcy of one or more jont holders, or otherwise,

the notice 1s not effective unless 1t 15 expressed to be given, and signed, by all the holders or
persons otherwise entitled to the share

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS
59. AUTHORITY TO CAPITALISE AND APPROPRIATION OF CAPITALISED SUMS

591  Subject to the articles, the directors may, if they are so authonsed by an ordnary
resolution

(a) decide to capitalise any profits of the company (whether or not they are
available for distribution) which are not required for paying a preferential
dividend, or any sum standing to the credit of the company's share premium
account or capital redemption reserve, and

(b) appropriate any sum which they so decide to caprtalise (a "capitalised sum")
to the persons who would have been entitled to 1t if 1t were distributed by way
of dividend (the "persons entitled") and 1n the same proportions

592  Capntalised sums must be applied
(a) on behalf of the persons entitled, and
(b) in the same proportions as a dividend would have been distributed to them

593  Any capitalised sum may be applied in paying up new shares of a nominal amount
equal to the capitalised sum which are then allotted credited as fully paid to the
persons entitled or as they may direct
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594

395

PART 4

A capitalised sum which was appropriated from profits available for distributien may
be appled

(a) n or towards paying up any amounts unpaid on existing shares held by the
persons entitled, or

(b) 1n paying up new debentures of the company which are then allotted credited
as fully paid to the persons entitled or as they may direct

Subject to the articles, the directors may

(a) apply capitalised sums n accordance with paragraphs (3) and (4) partly m
one way and partly 1n another,

(b) make such arrangements as they think fit to deal with shares or debentures
becoming distributable in fractions under this article (including the tssuing of
fractional certificates or the making of cash payments); and

authorise any person to enter into an agreement with the company on behalf of all the
persons entitled which is bimding on them in respect of the allotment of shares and
debentures to them under this article

DECISION-MAKING BY MEMBERS

ORGANISATION OF GENERAL MEETINGS

60. ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

60 1

60 2

603

604

605

A person 1s able to exercise the right to speak at a general meeting when that person
1s 1 & position to communicate to all those attending the meeting, during the meeting,
any information or opinions which that person has on the business of the meeting

A person 15 able to exercise the right to vote at a general meeting when

(a) that person 1s able to vote, during the meeting, on resolutions put to the vote
at the meeting, and

(b) that person's vote can be taken into account i determining whether or not
such resolutions are passed at the same time as the votes of all the other
persons attending the meeting

The directors may make whatever arrangements they consider appropnate to enable
those attending a general meeting to exercise their rights to speak or vote at 1t

In determining attendance at a general meeting, 1t 1s immaterial whether any two or
more members attending 1t are in the same place as each other

Two or more persons who are not in the same place as each other attend a general
meeting if their circumstances are such that if they have (or were to have) nights to
speak and vote at that meeting, they are (or would be) able to exercise them

61. QUORUM FOR GENERAL MEETINGS

611

No business other than the appointment of the chairman of the meeting 1s to be
transacted at a general meeting 1f the persons attending 1t do not constrtute a quorum
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612

613

614

621

622

( 623

631

632

Save 1n the case of a company having only one member, two qualifying persons
present at a meeting shall be a quorum, unless each 1s a qualfymmg person only
because

(a) he 1s duly authorised to act as the representative of a corporation 1n relation to
the meeting and they are representatives of the same corporation, or

(3)] he 1s appointed as proxy of a member 1n relation to the meeting and they are
proxies of the same member

In the case of a company having only one member, one qualifying person present at a
meeting shall be a quorum

In this article, a "qualifying person" means
(a) an individual who 1s a member of the company,

(b) a person duly authorised to act as the representative of a corporation 1n
relation to the meeting, or

(©) a person appointed as a proxy of a member in relation to the meeting

62. CHAIRING GENERAL MEETINGS

If the directors have appomnted a chairman, the chairman shall chair general meetings
if present and willing to do so

If the directors have not appointed a chairman, or if the chairman 1s unwilling to charr
the meeting or 1s not present within ten minutes of the ime at which a meeting was
due to start:

(a) the directors present, or
{b) (1f no directors are present), the meeting,

must appomt a director or member to chair the meeting, and the appointment of the
chairman of the meeting must be the first business of the meeting

The person chairing a meeting i accordance with this article 1s referred to as the
"chairman of the meeting"

63. ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING BY DIRECTORS AND NON-MEMBERS

Directors may attend and speak at general meetings, whether or not they are
members

The chairman of the meeting may permit other persons who are not

(a) members of the company, or
(b) otherwise entitled to exercise the rights of members in relation to general
meetings,

to attend and speak at a general meeting
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64. ADJOURNMENT

641

642

643

64 4

645

646

If the persons attending a general meeting within half an hour of the time at which the
meeting was due to start do not constitute a quorum, or 1f during a meeting a quorum
ceases to be present, the chairman of the meeting must adjourn 1t

The chairman of the meeting may adjourn a general meeting at which a quorum 18
present 1f

(a) the meeting consents to an adjournment, or

m) it appears to the chairman of the meeting that an adjournment 1s necessary to
protect the safety of any person attending the meeting or ensure that the
business of the meeting 18 conducted 1n an orderly manner

The charrman of the meeting must adjourn a general meeting if directed to do so by
the meeting

When adjourning a general meeting, the chairman of the meeting must

(a) either spectfy the time and place to which 1t 1s adjourned or state that 1t 1s to
continue at a time and place to be fixed by the directors, and

(b) have regard to any directions as to the time and place of any adjournment
which have been given by the meeting

If the continuation of an adjourned meeting 15 to take place more than 14 days after 1t
was adjourned, the company must give at least 7 clear days' notice of 1t (that s,
excluding the day of the adjourned meeting and the day on which the notice 15 given)

(a) to the same persons to whom notice of the company's general meetings 15
required to be given, and

(b) containing the same information which such notice 1s required to contain

No business may be transacted at an adjourned general meeting which could not
properly have been transacted at the meeting 1f the adjournment had not taken place

VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

65. YOTING: GENERAL

651

652

653

A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting must be decided on a show of hands
unless a poli 1s duly demanded n accordance with the articles

Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any shares, on a show of hands every
member (being an individual) present in person or by proxy or (being a corporation)
present by a duly authorised representative or by proxy has one vote, unless the proxy
(in erther case) or the representative 1s himself a member entitled to vote

Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any shares, on a poll every member
has one vote for every share of which he 1s the holder
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66,

67.

68.

ERRORS AND DISPUTES

66.1 No objection may be raised to the quahfication of any person voting at a general
meeting except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to 1s
tendered, and every vote not disallowed at the meeting 15 vahd

662  Any such objection must be referred to the chairman of the meeting, whose decision
is final

POLL VOTES

671 A poll on a resolution may be demanded
(a) n advance of the general meeting where 1t 1s to be put to the vote, or
(b) at a general meeting, either before a show of hands on that resolution or

immediately after the result of a show of hands on that resolution 1s declared

672 A poll may be demanded by
(a) the chairman of the meeting,

(b) the directors, or

() any member (being an 1ndividual) present in person or by proxy or (being a
corporatton) present by a duly authorised representative or by proxy and
having the nght to vote on the resolution

673 A demand for a poll may be withdrawn 1f
(a) the poll has not yet been taken, and
(b) the chairman of the meeting consents to the withdrawal

674  Polls must be taken at such time and in such manner as the chairman of the meeting

directs

CONTENT OF PROXY NOTICES

63 1

682

Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice m writing (a "proxy notice”)
which

(a) states the name and address of the member appointing the proxy,

(b) identifies the person appomted to be that member's proxy and the general
meeting 1n relation to which that person 1s appointed,

(c) 15 signed by or on behalf of the member appointing the proxy, or 1s
guthenticated 1n such manner as the directors may determine, and

(d) 15 delivered to the company in accordance with the articles and any
instructions contamned in the notice of the general meeting to which they
relate

The company may require proxy notices to be delivered n a particular form, and may
specify different forms for different purposes

LONDOCS\3180280 08 26




683

684

Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appomnted under them 1s to vote (or that the
proxy 1s to abstain from voting) on one or more resolutions

Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, 1t must be treated as

(a) allowing the person appomnted under 1t as a proxy discretion as to how to vote
on any anciflary or procedural resolutions put to the meeting, and

)] appointing thal person as a proxy n relation to any adjournment of the
general meeting to which 1t relates as well as the meeting itself

69. DELIVERY OF PROXY NOTICES

69 1

69 2

693

694

695

69 6

697

A person who 1s entitled to attend, speak or vote (etther on a show of hands or on a
poll) at a general meeting remains so entitled in respect of that meeting or any
adjournment of 1t, even though a valid proxy notice has been delivered to the
company by or on behalf of that person

Subject to articles 69(3) and 69(4), a proxy notice must be delivered to the company
or to such other place within the United Kingdom as s spectfied i the notice
convenmg the meeting or mn any mstrument of proxy sent out by the company
relation to the meeting not less than 48 hours before the start of the meeting or
adjourned meeting to which 1t relates

In the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it 1s demanded, the notice must be
delivered to the company or to such other place within the United Kingdom as 1s
specified i the notice convening the meeting or  any instrument of proxy sent out
by the company n relation to the meeting not less than 24 hours before the time
appointed for the taking of the poll

In the case of a poll not taken during the meeting but taken not more than 48 hours
after 1t was demanded, the proxy notice must be delivered m accordance with article
69(2) or at the meeting at which the poll was demanded to the chairman, the secretary
(if any) or any director

An appomtment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the company a
notice m writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on whose behalf the
proxy notice was grven

A notice revoking a proxy appomtment only takes effect 1f it 1s delivered before the
start of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which 1t relates

If a proxy notice 1s not signed by the person appointing the proxy, it must be
accompanied by written evidence of the authority of the person who signed 1t to sign
1t on the appomntor's behalf

70. AMENDMENTS TO RESOLUTIONS

701

An ordinary resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by
ordinary resolution 1f

(a) notice of the proposed amendment 1s given to the company 1n writing by a

person entitled to vote at the general meeting at which 1t 1s to be proposed not
less than 48 hours before the meeting 1s to take place (or such later time as
the chairman of the meeting may determine), and

LONDOCCS\3180280 08 27




{b) the proposed amendment does not, in the reasonable opinion of the chairman
of the meeting, materially alter the scope of the resolution,

702 A special resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by ordinary
resolution, if

(a) the chairman of the meeting proposes the amendment at the general meeting
at which the resolution 1s to be proposed, and

(b) the amendment does not go beyond what 1s necessary to correct a
grammatical or other non-substantive error m the resolution

703  If the charrman of the meeting, acting mn good faith, wrongly decides that an
amendment to a resolution is out of order, the chairman's error does not invalidate the
vote on that resolution

RESTRICTIONS ON MEMBERS' RIGHTS
71. NO VOTING OF SHARES ON WHICH MONEY OWED TO COMPANY

No voting nghts attached to a share may be exercised at any general meetng, at any
adjournment of 1t, or on any poll called at or nt relation to 1t, unless all amounts payable to the
company 1n respect of that share have been pad

APPLICATION OF RULES TO CLASS MEETINGS
72. CLASS MEETINGS

The provisions of the articles relating to general meetings apply, with any necessary
modifications, to meetings of the holders of any class of shares.

PART 5
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS
73. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION TO BE USED

731  Subject to the articles, anything sent or supphed by or to the company under the
articles may be sent or supplied in any way m which the Companies Act 2006
provides for documents or information which are authorised or required by any
provision of that Act to be sent or supplied by or to the company

732  Subject to the articles, any notice or document to be sent or supplied to a director 1n
connection with the taking of decisions by directors may also be sent or supphed by
the means by which that director has asked to be sent or supplied with such notices or
documents for the time being

733 A director may agree with the company that notices or documents sent to that director
in a particular way are to be deemed to have been received within a specified time of
their being sent, and for the specified time to be less than 48 hours

74. COMPANY SEALS
741  Any common seal may only be used by the authority of the directors

742  The directors may decide by what means and in what form any common seal 1s to be
used
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